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GUAM CONSOLIDATED COMMISSION ON UTILITIES
Guam Power Authority | Guam Waterworks Authority
CCU P.O. Box 2977 Hagatno, Guam 96932 | {(671}649-3002 | guamccu.org

RESOLUTION NO. 37-FY2018

RELATIVE TO APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF UPGRADE
OF THE NORTHERN DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT,
PROJECT NO. §17-003-OEA

WHEREAS, under 12 G.C.A. § 14105, the Consolidated Commission on Utilities
(*CCU”) has plenary authority over financial, contractual and policy matters relative to the Guam
Waterworks Authority (“GWA"); and

WHEREAS, the Guam Waterworks Authority (“GWA™) is a Guam Public Corporation

established and existing under the laws of Guam; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Defense, Office of Economic Adjustment awarded
to GWA a General Assistance Grant (OCON676-16-02) for the Northern District Wastewater
Treatment Plant (“NDWWTP”) Upgrade Project (pre-construction) on August 26, 2016 issued
for $21,000,000, and subsequent additional grants (OCON676-16-04) for the NDWWTP Upgrade
Project (construction) awarded on April 18, 2018 issued for $50,750,000, and (OCON676-16-05)
for the NDWWTP Upgrade Project (construction) awarded on August 1, 2018 issued for
$67,164,022, of which funding for the Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade is

included; and

WHEREAS, the General Assistance Grant is to be used for water and wastewater

improvements in support of the relocation of U.S. Marines and their dependents to Guam; and

WHEREAS, the report “Final Guam Water and Wastewater Assessment Report in
Support of the Economic Adjustment Committee Implementation Plan,” (NAVFAC, Department
of the Navy, February 2015) has recommended the design and construction of NDWWTP

treatment upgrades to comply with the current National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
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(“NPDES”) permit and mitigate impacts to wastewater utilities, nearshore waters, and marine

biological resources; and

WHEREAS, the upgrade and expansion of the NDWWTP is necessary to provide
treatment to secondary standards in accordance with the NDWWTP NPDES permit and to ensure

long term, reliable operation; and

WHEREAS, in January 2017, GWA procured the services of a consulting engineering
team (Brown and Caldwell} to provide Project Management / Construction Management
(PM/CM) Services for the Office of Economic Adjustment “Guam Water and Wastewater
Infrastructure Improvements” via Resolution 15-FY2017 of which construction management

services for the Northern District WWTP is a component; and

WHEREAS, via Resolution 47-FY2017 Relative to Approval of Contract for Design
Services for the Upgrade of the Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant to Secondary
Treatment, GWA Project No. S17-003-OEA (OEA Grant OCO N676-16-02), approved by the
CCU in July of 2017, GWA management was authorized to enter into a contract with Duenas
Camacho and Associates to design the WWTP Upgrade on the existing site and the new property
obtained for the WWTP; and

WHEREAS, GWA has determined that the most expedient process to meeting the OEA
Grant deadline for completion of the Northern District WWTP Upgrade of December 31, 2021
was to break the construction activities into two phases with Phase I for Clearing and Grading

and Phase II for all vertical and plant process construction; and

WHEREAS, GWA has procured Phase I construction services from IAN Corporation to
clear and grade the project site to meet design specifications in preparation for all vertical

construction activities that are part of Phase II; and

WHEREAS, GWA has advertised an Invitation for Bid IFB-02-ENG-2019, Step 1 —
Technical Proposal on January 11, 2019 soliciting technical proposals for prequalification







10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

purposes from experienced, responsible and responsive bidders to construct the necessary WWTP

improvements through a multi-step bid; and

WHEREAS, seventeen (17) interested firms picked up an electronic copy (CD) of the
appropriate Step 1 — Technical Proposal bid documents, and thirteen (13) of those firms attended
the Step 1 Pre-Bid Conference and of those GWA received five (5) technical proposal submittals
before the bid submittal deadline; and

WHEREAS, GWA Engineering evaluated all technical proposals received on March 1,
2019 and determined that five (5) firms met the qualification criteria established for the project
(See EXHIBIT A - Step 1 Evaluation and Qualified Bidders List); and

WHEREAS, GWA invited the five (5) firms qualified by the Step 1 Technical Proposal
criteria to participate in the Step 2 Pricing Proposal by invitation on March 14, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Step 2 Bid Form established a Base Bid and four (4) alternate deductive
bids, Alternate Bid A (eliminate ATAD and Digester Complex), Alternate Bid B (eliminate New
Administration Building), Alternate Bid C (eliminate New Septage Receiving Station) and
Alternate Bid D (eliminate Extended Warranty); and

WHEREAS, the Bid documents provide GWA sufficient flexibility to award the contract

based on available funding and the elimination of one or more alternate bid itemns; and

WHEREAS, the five (5) qualified firms picked up the Step 2 - Pricing Proposal bid
documents, and those five (5) firms attended the Step 2 Pre-Bid Conference on April 4, 2019 and
of those GW A received five (5) pricing proposal submittals before the bid submittal deadline (See
EXHIBIT B — Abstract of Bids); and

WHEREAS, GWA Engineering and the Program Manager (PM/CM) and Engineer of
Record (EOR) analyzed all bid proposals received on May 29, 2019 and determined that Black
Construction Corporation, who submitted the lowest bid for both the Base bid, and all Alternate
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bids as being the responsive and responsible bidder and met all the bid requirements set forth by
GWA (See EXHIBIT C — Recommendation Letter from DCA dated June 1, 2019); and

WHEREAS, GWA Management desires to complete all work included under the Base
Bid and the Bid Submission Requirements allow that “After determination of the Successful
Bidder based on this comparative process and on the responsiveness, responsibility, and other
factors set forth in these Instructions, the award may be made to said Successful Bidder on its
appropriate Base Bid and any combination of its deductive alternate Bid items for which Owner

determines funds will be available at the time of award”, and

WHEREAS, GWA Management finds the Black Construction Corporation bid proposal
of One Hundred Twenty-Two Million Seventy-Seven Thousand and Eighty-Eight Dollars
($122,077,088.00) for the Base Bid to be acceptable (See EXHIBIT D — Bid Proposal); and

WHEREAS, GWA Management is seeking approval to enter into contract with Black
Construction Corporation for IFB-02-ENG-2019 in the amount of One Hundred Twenty-Two
Million Seventy-Seven Thousand Eighty-Eight Dollars ($122,077,088.00); and

WHEREAS, GWA further seeks CCU approval of the total bid Proposal in the amount
of One Hundred Twenty-Two Million Seventy-Seven Thousand Eighty-Eight Dollars
($122,077,088.00); plus a five percent (5%) contingency of Six Million One Hundred Three
Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty Cents ($6,103,854.40), to bring the total
authorized funding amount to One Hundred Twenty-Eight Million One Hundred Eighty
Thousand Nine Hundred Forty-Two Dollars and Forty Cents ($128,180,942.40); and

WHEREAS, the funding source for the construction project will be from the General
Assistance Grants (OCON676-16-02, OCON676-16-04, and OCON676-16-05), and the System
Development Charge (SDC) funds or the Bond funds as necessary; and

NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, the Consolidated Commission on Utilities

does hereby approve the following;
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of this Resolution.

1. The recitals set forth above hereby constitute the findings of the CCU.
. The CCU finds that the terms of the bid proposal submitted by Black

Construction Corporation are fair and reasonable.

. The CCU hereby authorizes the management of GWA to accept the bid from

Black Construction Corporation attached hereto as EXHIBIT D, and which is

also incorporated into this Resolution in its entirety.

. The CCU hereby authorizes the management of GWA to execute an

Agreement with Black Construction Corporation in the amount of One
Hundred Twenty-Two Million Seventy-Seven Thousand Eighty-Eight Dollars
($122,077,088.00).

. The CCU hereby authorizes the funding source for this project to be as

described above.

. The CCU hereby authorizes the funding total of One Hundred Twenty-Two

Million Seventy-Seven Thousand Eighty-Eight Dollars ($122,077,088.00);
plus a five percent (5%) contingency of Six Million One Hundred Three
Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty-Four Dollars and Forty Cents ($6,103,854.40),
to bring the total authorized funding amount to One Hundred Twenty-Eight
Million One Hundred Eighty Thousand Nine Hundred Forty-Two Dollars and
Forty Cents ($128,180,942.40).

RESOLVED, that the Chairman certified and the Board Secretary attests to the adoption

DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED, this 5" day of June, 2019.

Certified by: Attested by:

JOSEPH T. DUENAS
Chairperson

e

MICHAEL T. LIMTIACO
Secretary
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SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, Michael T. Limtiaco, Board Secretary of the Consolidated Commission on Utilities as]
evidenced by my signature above do hereby certify as follows:

The foregoing is a full, true and accurate copy of the resolution duly adopted at a regular
meeting by the members of the Guam Consolidated Commission on Ultilities, duly and
legally held at a place properly noticed and advertised at which meeting a quorum was
present and the members who were present voted as follows:

AYES: g
NAYS: 0
ABSTENTIONS: 0
ABSENT: 0







EXHIBIT A
Step 1 Evaluation and Qualified Bidders List
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GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY

“Better Water. Better Lives.”
Gloria B Nelson Public Service Building | 688 Route 15 Mangilag, Guam 96913
P.O Box 3010, Hagatna, Guam 96932
Tel. No_(671) 300-6035

IFB-02-ENG-2019

Multi-Step Bid for the Upgrade of the Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant (NDWWTP)
GWA Project No. $17-003-CEA

STEP 1 - TECHNICAL PROPOSAL EVALUATION SCORES

Qualification and Experience (60 pts.)
Technical Approach and Capacity to Perform the Work (40 pts)
(Total Points Possible = 100}
STEP 1
Technical Proposal STEP 1 - Technical Proposal Offerors
Evaluators
Su“q;;tszrino Conlet?SI;tion Cﬁ;i’;?::- Hensel Nan Inc
Construction . - Dredging, Phelps ]
Co., Ltd. P LLC
John Davis, P.E. = X e e 2
Mauryn McDonald, P.E. 94 = = = =
Prudencio Aguon = 81 88 7 &
Ernesto Villarin e e 77 e =
David Fletcher = = Ll = (A
Total Score 440 420 444 460 417
Average Score 88 84 88.8 92 83.4
Pass/Fail Pass Pass Pass Pass Pass




\h
GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY

Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building » 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913 s Tel. (67 1) 300-6036

QUALIFIED BIDDERS LIST NOTIFICATION

This is a notification of a current project under the Guam Water and Wastewater Infrastructure
Improvements Program. The project is the Upgrade of the Northem District Wastewater
Treatment Plant, GWA Project No. S17-003-OEA which will be complete under a Multi-Step Bid
process. Step 1 of the Multi-Step Bid which included the Technical Proposals has been
completed and the project moved into Step 2 on March 18, 2019.

The Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA) has invited Contractors (“Bidders”) who completed Step
1 of the Multi-Step Bid process to provide Step 2 Pricing Proposals to complete the construction
services necessary for the Upgrade of Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant
{(NDWWTP) project. The five Qualified Bidders invited to proceed to Step 2 are as follows:

Black Construction Corporation

Core Tech — Hawaiian Dredging LLC
Hensel Phelps Construction Co.

Nan Inc.

Sumitomo Mitsui Construction Co. LTD

G DN

Interested Subcontractors and Suppliers must obtain the relevant bid documents from the
Qualified Bidders listed above. GWA will not be supplying the Step 2 Pricing Proposal
documents to any parties other than the invited Step 2 Contractors.

MIGUEL C. BORD.
General Manager,



EXHIBIT B
Abstract of Bids
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EXHIBIT C
Recommendation Letter from DCA dated June 1, 2019



Website: www.dcaguam.com
Emall: decaddcaguam.com

Dua'ﬂA_s *CAMACHO
June 1, 2019

Miguel C. Bordallo, P.E.

General Manager, Guam Waterworks Authority
Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building

688 Route 15

Mangilao, Guam, 96913

Attn: Jerald Johnson, Brown & Caldwell

Ref: Upgrade of Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant (Clearing and Grading) ,
GWA Project No. S17-003-OEA

Sub;j: Black Construction Corporation, Bid Proposal Review
Hafa Adai,

Duefias, Camacho, & Associates, Inc. (DCA) has reviewed the May 29, 2019 bid proposals submitted by the
prequalified bidders for the referenced project. Black Construction Corporation’s bid proposal was the apparent
low bid for the base bid and all alternatives. This apparent lowest bid was compared to the other bids received and
the engineer’s estimate. In addition to cost, the supplier/equipment and sub-contractor lists were reviewed. Below
are noteworthy items identified as part of this bid review.,

1) The highest bidder, Nan Inc, is considered an outlier, and as such was not used in comparing the other
qualified bids.

2) The engineers estimate provided was considered the lower end of the estimates. It is noted the engineer
provided an estimate range to which the three lowest bidders were within.

3) Black Construction Corporation’s bid does not appear to be an outlier or excessively low when compared
the other bidders and the engineers estimate.

4) Black Construction Corporations supplier list included perceived equal equipment. These perceived equals
were not evalauted at this time as clearly stated in the instruction to bidders. Perceived equals will be
evaluated after award.

5) Black Construction Corporation listed the fewest sub-contractors under $500,000 when compared to all
other bidders.

Based on our review, the design team has no exceptions with GWA moving forward with contracting Black
Construction Corporation for this referenced project. A copy of the bid review tab for the base and alternate A
bids is attached to this letter.

Regards,

A=/

Kenneth M Rekdahl, PE
Vice-President and Project Manager
Duefias, Camacho & Associates
671-477-7991

Att:

ENGINEERING * PLANNING * SURVEYING * ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES * GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM * CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
GUAM P.O, Box 8900, Tamuning, Guam 96931 / 238 E. Marine Corps Drive, Suite 201 Diamond Plaza, Hagatfia, GU 96910 / Tel: (671) 477-7991 [ Fax: (671) 479-6315
SAIPAN Caller Box PPP, Suite 164, Salpan, MP 56950 / Chalan Pale Amold, Ada‘s Building Scuth Garapan, Saipan 96950 / Tel: (670) 234-9017 / Fax: {670) 234-3842
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EXHIBIT D

Bid Proposal



UPGRADE OF THE NORTHERN
DISTRICT WASTEWATER

TREATMENT PLANT
GWA Project No. S17-003-OEA

Mr. Miguel C. Bordallo, P.E.
General Manager

GUAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY




UPGRADE OF THE NORTHERN DISTRICT

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
GWA Project No.: S17-003-OEA

MR. MiIGUEL C. BORDALLO, P.E.
GENERAL MANAGER

GuAM WATERWORKS AUTHORITY

Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building
688 Route 15, Mangilao, GU 96913

This proposal includes data that shall not be disclosed outside the Government and shall not
be duplicated, used, or disclosed — in whole or in part — for any purpose other than to evaluate
this proposal. If, however, a contract is awarded to this offeror as a result of — or in connection
with — the submission of this data, the Government shall have the right to duplicate, use, or
disclose the data to the extent provided in the resulting contract. This restriction does not limit
the Government's right to use information contained in this data if it is obtained from anaother
source without restriction. The data subject to this restriction are contained in sheets:

» STEP 2 Price Proposal — all sheets

May 29, 2019 - NLT 3:00 pm Chamorro Standard Time
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Procurement Checklist

CHECKLIST OF FORMS AND DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TQ
BE SUBMITTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH BIDS

A. Form or document that must be submitted with bid Initial if Submitted;

1. Bid Bond Equal to 15% of total amount of bid

2. Bid Proposal and 8id Schedule

3. Non-Collusion Affidavit

4. Certification of Bidder Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity
5. Certification Regarding Non-Segregated Facilities

6. Sex Offender Certification

7. Wage and Benefit Determination

8. Major Shareholders Disclosure Affidavit

9. Special Instructions to Bidders

10. Proof of Licensure (if not included in Step 1}
to Perform Work Called For by the 8id

11. Financial Statements
12. Proof of Status as Veteran {if applies)

13. Forms or Documents Required by Bid
or Bid Amendments not referred to above

AN

!, Leonard K. Kaas _, a duly authorized representative

of Black Construction Corporation , do hereby certify, that the forms list above
has in fact been submitted with my firm’s bid. | acknowledge that, failure to submit any of the
above documents will result in my firm being deemed non-responsive and having my firm’s bid

rejected.
Signed: y %\

May 24, 2019

Date:
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B. Forms or documents that must be submitted after the bid but prior to entering

into a Contract are as follows:

1. Proof of Insurance (complete insurance policies) per Article 6 — Bonds and Insurance

2. Performance and Payment Bond
3. Other Forms as Required by GWA

*Most forms or documents above must be submitted on forms supplied by GWA. Failure to
use the correct form, or submit a form when required, could result in the vendor being
deemed to be non-responsive which would require GWA to reject the bid. Failure to
submit the correct forms or documents that are required after award but prior to contract
are a condition precedent to GWA entering into a contract. Failing to provide the forms or
documents could result in loss of award.

{
!
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BiD BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

Black Construction Corporation
JL Baker Street, Harmon Industrial Park, Harmon, Guam 96913
P.O. Box 24667, Barrigada, Guam 96921

SURETY {Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

Safeco Insurance Company of America
175 Berkeiey Street
Boston, MA 02116

OWNER (Name and Address}:
Guam Waterworks Authority
Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building
688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913

BID
Bid Due Date: May 29, 2019
Description {Project Name— Include Location):
Upgrade of Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant (NDWWTP), Dededo, Guam
GWA Project No. 517-003-OEA

BOND
Bond Number: n/a
Date: May 29, 2019
Penal sum Eighteen Million Three Hundred Eleven Thousand $18,311,563.00
Five Hundred SIXTY (worgs) 10Lee & V0700 U5 DOLlars {Figures)

Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY
Black Construction Corporation (Seal) Safeco Insurance Company of America {seal)
Bidder's Name and Cgfporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal

By: By: = o
(,Sigﬁature/ ach Power of Attcrney)
Leonard K. Kaae Lisa L. Thornton ]
Print Name Print Name

Senior Vice President & General Manager ayqmeyin fact

Attest: % Attest:

Slgnﬁture Signature
of Fina ce cretar & Trea er Maria Pena, Assistant Vice President
Title Title
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Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.

Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.
1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the penal
sum is the extent of Bidder's and Surety's liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond shall be
Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents [or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the 8idding Documents {or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3  Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Decuments (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required by
Paragraph 5 hereof) '

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after receipt
by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable promptness,
identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of Award
agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including extensions
shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the 8id due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. Nosuit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default required
in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state
in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attarney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
8ond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length.
if any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall govern and
the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.
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CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT Civil Code § 1189

A notary public or other officer _cg;rialgt_i_ng this certificate verifies onlymt-ﬂ;emidentity of the
| individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the |
truthfulness, accuracy or validity of that document.

State of California )
) ss
County of Los Angeles )
on__ May 29, 2019 , before me, Maria Pena, Notary Public, personally appeared
Lisa L. Thornton , who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

person{s} whose name{s} isfare subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me
that he/shefthey executed the same in histherftheir authorized capacityfies), and that by
histherftheir signature{s} on the instrument the personi{s}, or the entity upon behalf of which
the person{s} acted, executed the instrument,

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

! 3 MARIA PEHA i
Lt Notary Public - Calilerma z

3 3 Los Angeles County 2

.

ﬁ? Commission # 2218398 1 .
] UEHS y Comm, Expires May 12, 2022 E ( = _

Signature: S~
(Seal) Maria Pena, Notary Public




NOI vani 10r morgage, nowe, 1oan, jeuer o1 creait,

currency rate, interest rate or residu~*"alue guarantees.

THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS NOT VALID UNLESS IT iS PRINTED ON RED BACKGROUND.
This Power of Attorney fimits the acts of those named herein, and they have no authority o bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent herein stated,

Certificate No 7538474
Amencan Slates Insurance Company
First National Insurance Company of America
Genaral Insurance Company of America
Salfeco ingurance Company of America

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS 8Y THESE PRESENTS: That Amencan Slales Wsurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws ol lhe Stale of Indiana, Lhat First Nationa!
Insurance Company of Amenca, General Insurance Company of Amenca, and Safeco Insurance Cempany of Amenca are corporabions duly organized under Lhe laws of Ihe Slate of
New Hampshwe (herein  colleclwely called the “Companies™), pursuant 1o and by authonly herein set forth, does hereby name, conshiule and appowl,

C. K. Nakamura; E. S. Albrecht, Jr_; Jeffrey Strassner; Jessica L. Rosser; Lisa L. Thorntan; Maria Pena; Natahe K. Trofimoff; Noami Quiroz; Patricia 8.
Arana; Tim M. Tomko

all of he city of Lag Angeles , slate of CA eachindividually if there be move than ona named, its true and lawlul altorney-in-lact lo make, execule seal, acknowledge
and debver, for and on s behalf as surety and as ils acl and deed, any and all underiakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations, in pursuance of these presents and
shall be as binding upon Ihe Companies as tf they have been duly signed by Lhe president and attested by the secrelary of the Companses in thew awn proper persons

1N WITNESS WHERECF, this Power of Attorney has been subscnbed by an authanzed officer or offictal of the Companies and the corporate seals of the Companies have been affixed
thereto this 7ih day of November . 2016

American States Insurance Company

First Nalional Insurance Company of America
General Insurance Company of America
Safeco Insurance Company of America

o ST

David M Careﬁ Assislant Secrelary

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA 55
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

Cn this 7th__ day of November 2016, before me personally appeared Dawd M. Carey, who acknowledged himsell to be Ihe Assisiant Secretary of Amenican Stales Insurance
Company. Firsl National Insurance Company of America, General Insurance Company of Amenca, and Safeco Insurance Company of America, and thal he, s such, being authenzed
50 to do, execute tha loregoing instrument for the purposes therein contaned by signing on behall of the corporalions by limsell as a duly aulhonzed officer.

WITNESS WHEREQF, | have hereunto subscnbed my name and affixed my notanal seat al King of Prussta, Peansylvania, on the day and year first above wnllen
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Notansl Seal /\
Teresa Pasleta, Notary Public By:

Upper Meron Twp , Montgomery County :
My Commission Expires March 28, 2017 Teresa Paslelta, Nalary Public

Member, Pennsylvania Assoaabon of Nolares

This Power of Altorney 15 made and execuled pursuant to and by aulhority of the lotlowing By-laws and Aulhorizations of The Omio Casually Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual
insurance Company, and Wes! American Insurance Company which resolulions are now in full force and eHlecl reading as lollows

ARTICLE IV ~ OFFICERS - Section 12 Power of Attorney. Any officer or other official of the Corporation authorized for that purpose in wriling by the Chairman or the Presidenl, and
subjecl lo such limilalion as the Chawman or the President may prescabe, shall appoint such attorneys-n-facl, as may be necessary to aclin behalf of the Corparalion 1o make, execule.

seal, acknowledge and deliver as surely any and all undertakings, bonds, recogmizances and other surely obligalions. Such attorneys-in-lact, subject lo the bmitations se! forth n their | -

respechve powers of alterney. shall have full power lo bind the Corporalion by their signature and execuled, such instruments shall be as binding as if signed by Ihe President and
altesled to by the Secretary Any power or authodily granted to any representalive or attarney-in-fact under Ihe provisions of Ihis arficle may be revoked al any I'me by the Board, the
Chairman, the Presiden! or by the officer or officers granting such power or authonty

Certificate of Designation - The Prasident of the Company, acling pursuanl 1o Ihe Bylaws of the Company, aulhorizes Dawid M. Carey, Assistant Secretary to appoint such allorneys-n-
fact as may be necessary lo act on behalf of the Company to make, execule, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bands. recogmizances and olher surety
obligations.

Authorization — By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company consents (hat facsimile or mechamcally reproduced signature of any assistant secrelary
of the Campany. wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of alteiney issued by Ihe Company in conneclion with surety bonds, shall be valid and bindmg upon
the Company with the same force and effec! as though manually affixed.

I, Renee C Llewellyn, the undersigned, Assistant Secrelary, of Amencan Stales Insurance Company, First Nationa! Insurance Company of Amenca, General Insurance Company of
Amaerica, and Safeco Insurance Company of America do hareby certify thal the original power of allomey of which Ihe foregong is 8 full, Ive and comect copy of the Power of Altomey
executed by said Companies. is in full larce and effect and has not been revoked.

N TESTEIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seals of said Companies this 29th day of 20 19

//M

Renee C. Liewslyn, Assistant Secrelary

150t 50

POA - FNICA. GICA & SICA
LMS_12674_082018

To confirm the validity of this Power of Attorney call

1-610-832-8240 between 9

y business day.

00 am and 4:30 pm EST on an
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POWER
OF ATTORNEY

Mo 4577

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:
Thet SAFECO IRSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA snd GENERAL SNSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA, esch &

T 4enesssssssersRAYMOND A MARTINEZ; Agana, Guam®+sessveenesse

& bue and linwfid sliomey(s)iv-Eact; willy 8.8 Buihorlly 1o iacute on s bitwlf Sidelly and sunity boride or underiaiings snd ofher

doduanent ol s skilercprucser sased I 59 courmd of B Sonkibba, o it rspecive oy Bocyty.

N WITHESS WHEREOF, SAFECO INBURANCE COMPANY UF AMERICA and GENERAL INSURAKCE COMPANY OF
- 29th — May . 2019

Extiact o & Resokon of e Board of Direcks of BAPROO INSURANCE COMMANY OF AMERICA
ond of GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY DF AMERICA sdoptad Ady 28, 1970,

O sy axpcuted by the Secrelary of en essisient sscreting of Bw Compeny seling out,
The giovislone of Arficls V, Section 13 of #i6 By-Lains; and _

the sigrmiure of the cerifying ofcer maty be by Giciimile, arid e seal of Sis Carmiparly misy be & faciimile theteo!.”

Dwder R, « Sucretiry of EAFECO INSURANCE COMPANRY OF AMERICA and of GENERAL IMEURANCE COMPANY

b&mﬁwﬂhhmmdhlﬂuddlmdhhddﬁumdm
ans, and of & Power of Ationiey issust puscint heretn, a8 £ue end conect; swd Bl both the By-Livws, the Rssohulion snd the

Power of Atfiomey ars o in 1l loros and elffed.

N WITNIEESS WHEREOF, | have herasmio sef iy hand and affixad the tecsimils saal of sald corporation

sy ___May . 2019

3

Oextor R. Lagg, Secretiry
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BID FORM (ADDENDUM C}

Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant (NDWWTP) Upgrade to Secondary Treatment
GWA Project No, 517-003-0EA
OEA Grant OCO N676-16-02

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
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ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT

1.01  This Bid is submitted to:

Migue! C. Bordalilo, P.E.

General Manager

Guam Waterworks Authority

Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building
688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913

1.02  The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid s accepted, ta enter into an Agreement
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and
in accardance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01  Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to
acceptance for 75 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree toin writing upon request of Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01 Insubmitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and
reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of
the following Addenda:

Addendum No. Addendum Date
o1 April 09, 2019
o2 April 11, 2019
03 April 17, 2019
04 April 29 2019
05 May 02, 2019
06 May 08, 2019

B. Bidder has conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site, staging and adjacent
areas, videos, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and 5Site
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect
cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions
at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface
or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary
Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and {2)
reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent

.éection 00410
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ta the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect
to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.

Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known
to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations
obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related reports and
drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information,
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2)
the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed
by Bidder; and (3} Bidder's safety precautions and programs.

Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data
are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid
and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the
Bidding Dacuments.

Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents,

Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies
that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the written
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the
Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required
by the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 - BIDDER'S CERTIFICATION

4.01 Bidder certifies that:

A.

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual
or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any
group, association, organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or
sham Bid;

Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing
for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or saliciting of anything of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a} to
influence the bidding process to the detriment of Qwner, (b} to establish bid prices at
artificial non-competitive levels, or [c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open
competition;

Section 004 ld_
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3. "collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders,
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices
at artificial, non-competitive {evels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect
the execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF BID

5.01 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following
price(s) as delineated per scope item. Prices include all labor, materials, services, and equipment
necessary for completion of the Work for a complete and operational wastewater treatment
facility at the Northern District WWTP site. All other Work nat listed in the following list are
considered incidental and are an obligation of the Contractor under the various Bid [tems as
specified in the Bid at no additional cost to Owner.

A. Bidders are informed that the bid plans are ordered by Process. Each process presented in
the list below consists of but may not be limited to Mechanical, Architectural, Structural,
Plumbing, Electrical, and Instrumentation disciplines. Bidders will use this ordering system
when developing the Price for the bid items below that call out a specific process.

B. Owner may elect to provide a portion (approximately 200 tons) of the reinforcing steel for
this project at a unit rate per ton, provided to the Contractor as a deductive change order.
This unit rate will be based on Contractor’s realized actual unit pricing, delivered to Guam,
and supported by receipts. This rebar is currently located at the Baza Gardens WWTP Site
approximately 17 miles from the NDWWTP Site. The Contractor will be responsible for
transporting this rebar from Baza Gardens WWTP to the NDWWTP. If there is a cost
difference between transporting from Baza Gardens WWTP and transporting from the port
to the NDWWTP Site, the Contractor will be reasonably compensated at a price agreed to by
both parties.

C. Bidderstoinclude in other Bid item(s) the other costs {if any} associated with accepting such
assignment and administering the assigned contract.

5.02 Base Bid:

Base Bid
Scope ltem Description Price

Mobilization, Not to Exceed 3% of

1 o $ 366231300
Total Basic Price

2 Insurance and Bonds S 2,915,053.00

3 Pro!e.sc't Managgment, Temparary §  14130,186.00
Facilities and Site Layout

4 Extended Warranty S 789.505.00

5 Envu_'onmental Protection and S 468,889.00
Erosion Control Measures

Section 00410
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Base Bid

6 Site Clearing $ 117,982.00
| 7 Access Road, Guard Rails and Site $ 1.137.512.00
| Pavement
,! 8 Perimeter Fence Line 5 244,949.00
]
|
i 9 Project Site Grading and Site Turf $ 415,228.00
|[ 10 Project Site Drainage Improvements | $ 521,686.00
11 Site yard piping demolition works $ 49.404.00
12 Facility Demolition Works S 332,805.00
- Asbestos and Lead containing
13 . 151,029.00
Material Handling and Abatement ?
14 Sludge Removal S 492,570.00
Process Yard Piping, Including
15 Piping Between Existing and New $ 8.720,179.00
Site
16 Project off-site Pavement $ 617,299.00
17 Site Electrical $ 1,965,380.00
SR . S ST——
18 mt.:ess 1: Southern Link Pump $ 1.217.950.00
Station
i9 Process 1-1: Route 3 Pump Station S 1,576,102.00
20 Process 2: New Headworks § 9,988,518.00
1
' 21 Process 3: Oxidation Ditches $ 14,087,703.00
Process 4: Secondary Clarifiers and
22 . . $ 10,283,398 00
Scum Pumping Station
23 Process 6: UV Disinfection System S 5,855,281.00
[ 7. —
24 Proc'ess Septage Receiving $ 103647500
Station
25 Process 8: RAS/WAS Pump Station | $ 2,952.020.00
E Process §: Aerated Sludge Storage
, :
’, = Facility and Pump Station 3 3,980.984.00
Section 00410 B ) -
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Base Bid

27 Process 10: Thickening Facility 5 4.575949.00

28 Process 11: ATAD S 5,479,138.00
P ss 12: Digester Equipment

29 roce '8 quipmen S 8,812.643.00
Building

30 Process 13: Sludge Storage Tanks $ 2,143.592.00

31 Process 14: Dewatering Facility S 3.545203.00

32 Proriess 15: Side-Stream Pump Ty
Station

33 Process 16: Plant Water Systems S 640,003 00
Process 17: New Administration

34 o S 2,073,255 00
Building

: ted/ R

35 Process 18: Renovated/ Repurpose $ 2.058.398 00
Lab

36 Process 19: Maintenance Building S 154.844 00
Process 20: Standby Generator and

37 o S 2,840,160 00
Building

38 Plant Start-up and Training S 408129 00

35 Project Closeout S 351.312.00
Total Base Price S 122,077,088.00

{Total Price in words]

ONE HUNDRED TWENTY TWO MILLION, SEVENTY SEVEN THOUSAND, EIGHTY EIGHT

& 00/100 U.S.DOLLARS
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5.03  The following bid items describe the Deductive Alternate ltems, in order of priority, for this Work,
Evaluation of Bids and award of Contract will proceed as described in Article 19 of the Instructions
to Bidders. In the case that any of the following deductive alternates items are executed to the
Contract, the Bidder will complete the following in accordance with the Contract Documents for
the following price(s}):

A, Alternate Bid A, ATAD and Digester Complex: This deductive alternate item will remove the
ATAD treatment process, The solids process system provided in process 9, 10, 11 and 12 will
remain and provide for solids stabilization, thickening and dewatering.

i} Alternate Bid A
Alternate Bid A
Scope ltem Description Price

1 Mobilization, Not to Exceed 3% of $
Total Basic Price 3.184.825,90

2 insurance and Bonds $ 2,692,305.00
Project Management, Temporary

3 i ) : -
Facilities and Site Layout 3 14.130,166.00

4 Extended Warranty $ 1357,84000

5 Environmental Protection and $
Erosion Control Measures 165.883:00

6 Site Clearing S 117.982.00
Access Road, Guard Rails and Site

7 S 1.137.513.00
Pavement

8 Perimeter Fence Line S 24494900

9 Project Site Grading and Site Turf $ 415228.00

10 Project Site Drainage Improvements | $ 521,586.00

11 Site yard piping demaolition works S 49.404 00

12 Facility Demolition Works $ 332.805.00

13 Asbestos and Lead containing S 15102900

Material Handling and Abatement T
Process Yard Piping, Including
14 Piping Between Existing and New S 8,720,179.00
Site
Section 00410
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Alternate Bid A

15 Project Off-site Pavement $ 617,299.00
: 16 Site Electrical $ 1,965,380 00
17 Process 1: Southern Link Pump $
Station 1,717,950 00
18 Process 1-1: Route 3 Pump Station 5 1.576.102.00
19 Process 2: New Headworks $ 9.988.518.00
i 20 Process 3: Oxidation Ditches S 14,087,703 00
| 71 Process 4: Secondary Clarifiers and $
| Scum Pumping Station 10,283,336,00
 E RSO
' 22 Process &6: UV Disinfection System S 5.855.281.00
N Process 7: Septage Receivi
23 ) L ving S 1,034,479.00
Station
24 Process 8: RAS/WAS Pump Station S 2.852,020.00
. Process 9: Aerated Sludge Storage
25 Facility and Pump Station B
26 Process 10: Thickening Facility 5 4,575.949.00
| 27 Process 13: Sludge Storage Tanks $ 2,143,592.00
i
| 28 Process 14: Dewatering Facility $ 3.545,203.00
29 Procﬁess 15: Side-Stream Pump $ 786.077.00
- Station
30 Process 16: Plant Water Systems S 640.002.00
31 Prt?ce:ss 17: New Administration § 2,072.255.00
L Building
Process 18: Renovated/ Repurpose
32 i LT $ 2,058,398.00
| - ab
33 Process 19: Maintenance Building S 154,844 .00
34 Prc_:ce:ss 20: Standby Generator and ¢ 2.840.160.00
Building
; 35 Plant Start-up and Training S 408,129.00
. 36 Project Closeout $ 351,31200
i e
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Alternate Bid A

1. Total Price $ 106,160,836.00

{Total Price In words]

ONE HUNDRED SIX MILLION, ONE HUNDRED SIXTY THOUSAND, EIGHT HUNDRED
THIRTY-SIX & 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS

Section 00410
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B. Alternate Bid B, New Administration Building: This deductive alternate item will remove the
processes noted in Alternate A and the new administration building (Process 17). The
renovated and repurposed laboratory {process 18} will serve as the administrative office if
this alternate bid item is executed.

i} Alternate Bid B

Alternate Bid B

Scope ltem | Description Price

Maobilization, Not to Exceed 3% of Total

1 N 3,118,987,
Basic Price s 987.00
[
2 Insurance and Bonds $ 2,636,808.00
3 PrOJet.:t Management, Temporary Facilities $ 14.130,166.00
and Site Layout
4 Extended Warranty $ 357,840.00

5 Environmental Protection and Erosion $ 468.889.00
Control Measures

6 Site Clearing $ 117,982 00
Access Road, Guard Rails and Site
7 $ 1.137,513.00
i Pavement
8 Perimeter Fence Line S 244,949 00
|
i 9 Project Site Grading and Site Turf S 415,228 00
i
i 10 Project Site Drainage Improvements $ 521.686.00
I
|
; 11 Site yard piping demolition works S 49,404 00
i
| 12 fFacility Demofition Works § 332,805.00
x Asbestas and Lead containing Material e
Handling and Abatement T
Process Yard Piping, Including Piping
14 Between Existing and New Site e
15 Project Off-site Pavement S 617,299.00
' 16 Site Electrical $ 1,965,380.00
! 17 Process 1: Southern Link Pump Station 5 1.717,950.00
!
18 Process 1-1: Route 3 Pump Station $ 1,576,102.00
£ -
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Alternate Bid B

19 Process 2: New Headworks $ 9,988,518.00
ke
. 20 Process 3: Oxidation Ditches $ 14,087,703.00
21 Proces:.s 4: Setfondary Clarifiers and Scum $ 10,283,396.00
Pumping Station
22 Process 6: UV Disinfection System S 5.855,281.00
23 Pracess 7: Septage Receiving Staticn $ 1,034,479.00
24 Process 8: RAS/WAS Pump Station $ 2,952,020.00
, 25 Process 9: Aeralted Sludge Storage Facility $ 3.980,984 00
| and Pump Station
E
; 26 Process 10: Thickening Facility $ 4,575,949,00
27 Process 13: Sludge Storage Tanks $ 2,143,582.00
f
' 28 Process 14: Dewatering Facility $2,545,203.00
29 Process 15: Side-Stream Pump Station S 786,077.00
30 Process 16: Plant Water Systems S 640,003.00
31 Process 1B: Renavated/ Repurpose Lab $ 2,058,398.00
32 Process 19: Maintenance Building S 154,844.00
Pracess 20: Standby Generator and
33 . S 2,840,160.00
Building
34 Plant Start-up and Training 5 408,129.00
35 Project Closeout $ 351,312.00
I |
| |
I T
T
![- Total Price $ 103,966,246.00

{Total Price in words]

ONE HUNDRED THREE MILLION, NINE HUNDRED SIXTY SIX THOUSAND, TWO
HUNDRED FORTY SIX & 00/10C U.S. DOLLARS
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C. Alternate Bid C, New Septage Receiving Station: This deductive alternate item will remove
the processes noted in Alternates A and B and the new septage receiving station (Process 7).
The existing septage receiving station will remain in operation if this alternate is executed.

i) Alternate Bid C

Alternate Bid C
Scope Item Description Price

1 Mobilization, Not to Exceed 3% of e
Total Basic Price T

2 Insurance and Bonds $ 2,598,775.00

3 Pro!e.c.t Managternent, Temporary $ 14.130.166.00
Facilities and Site Layout

4 Extended Warranty S 357 840.00

5 Environmental Protection and e
Erosion Control Measures B

6 Site Clearing S 117,882.00
Access Road, Guard Rails and Site

7 5 $1,137,513.00

avement

8 Perimeter Fence Line $ 244,949 00

9 Project Site Grading and Site Turf $ 415,228 00

10 Project Site Prainage Improvements | $ 521.686.00

11 Site yard piping demolition works § 49,404 00

12 Facifity Demolition Works S 332.805.00
Asbestos and Lead cantaining

13 . . 151,0298.00
Material Handling and Abatement 2
Process Yard Piping, Including

14 Piping Between Existing and New $ 8,720,179 00
Site

15 Project Off-site Pavement $ 617,299.00

16 Site Electrical S 1,865,380 00

1: i

17 Proc.ess Southern Link Pump T
Station

18 Process 1-1: Raute 3 Pump Station | S 1,576,102.00
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Alternate Bid C

19 Process 2: New Headworks $ 9,988,518.00

20 Process 3: Oxidation Ditches S 14,087,703 00

21 Process 4: Sgcondary Clarifiers and $ 10.263,398.00
Scum Pumping Station

22 Process 6: UV Disinfection System $ 5,855,281.00

23 Process 8: RAS/WAS Pump Station S 2,952,020.00
Process 9: Aerated Sludge Storage

24 . . ,980,984.
Facility and Pump Station kit

25 Process 10: Thickening Facility $ 4,575,949.00

26 Process 13: Sludge Storage Tanks $ 2,143,592.00

27 Process 14: Dewatering Facility $ 3.545,203.00

28 Proc'ess 15: Side-Stream Pump $ 786.077.00
Station

29 Process 16: Plant Water Systems $ 640,003.00

30 Process 18; Renovated/ Repurpose $ 2.058,398.00
Lab

31 Process 19: Maintenance Building S 154,844.00
Process 20: Standby Generator and

32 - $ 2,840,160.00
Building

33 Plant Start-up and Training $ 408,129.00

34 Project Closeout $ 351.312.00
Total Price S 102,858,502.00

[Total Price in words]

ONE HUNDRED TWO MILLION, EIGHT HUNDRED FIFTY EIGHT THOUSAND, FIVE
HUNDRED TWO & 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS
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D. Alternate Bid D, Extended Warranty: This deductive alternate item will remove the processes
noted in Alternates A, B, and € and the extended warranties from the equipment listed in
specification 017820 - Extended Equipment Warranties. Warranties presented in each
individual specification will still be required if this alternate is executed.

i)

Alternate Bid D

Alternate Bid D
Scope ltem Description Price

1 Mobslszat.lon, 'Not to Exceed 3% of § 3,074.261.00
Total Basic Price

2 tnsurance and Bonds $ 2,582,965.00
Project Management, Temporary

14,130,166 00

. Facilities and Site Layout >

4 Environmental Protection and W
Erosion Control Measures T

5 Site Clearing § 117,982.00

6 Access Road, Guard Rails and Site $ 1,137.513.00
Pavement

7 Perimeter fence Line S 244,949.00

B Project Site Grading and Site Turf S 415.228.00

9 Project Site Drainage Improvements | $ 521.686.00

10 Site yard piping demolition works S 49,404.00

11 Facility Demolition Works $ 332,805.00

12 Asbestos and Lead containing $ 151.029.00
Material Handling and Abatement o
Pracess Yard Piping, Including

13 Piping Between Existing and New $ 8,720,179.00
Site

14 Project Off-site Pavement S 617,299 00

15 Site Electrical $ 1.965,380.00

16 Proc.ess 1: Southern Link Pump $ 1.717.950.00
Station

i7 Process 1-1: Route 3 Pump Station S 1.576,102.00
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Aiternate Bid D
18 Process 2: New Headworks $ 9.988.518.00
th_ ................ _{ ....... -
19 Process 3: Oxidation Ditches 5 14,087,703.00
20 Process 4: szcondar.v Clarifiers and $ 10,283,398 00
Scum Pumping Station
21 Process 6: UV Disinfection System $ 5,855,281.00
22 Process 8: RAS/WAS Pump Station $ 2.952,020.00
23 Pro.c.ess 9: Aerated SIuFlge Storage $ 2.980,984.00
Facility and Pump Station
{ 24 Process 10: Thickening Facility $ 4,575.949.00
25 Process 13: Sludge Storage Tanks $ 2,143,582.00
26 Process 14: Dewatering Facility § 3,545,203.00
27 Procfess 15: Side-Stream Pump § 786.077.00
Station
28 Process 16: Plant Water Systems $ 640,003.00
29 Process 18: Renovated/ Repurpose $ 2,058,398.00
} Lab
| 30 Process 19: Maintenance Building $ 154,844.00
! Process 20: Standby Generator and
| 31 o S5 2,840,160.00
| Building
|
| 32 Plant Start-up and Training S 408,129.00
33 Project Closeout $ 351,312.00

Total Price

$ 102,475,358.00

[Total Price In words]

ONE HUNDRED TWO MILLION, FOUR HUNDRED SEVENTY FIVE THOUSAND, THREE

HUNDRED FIFTY EIGHT & 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS
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ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will he completed and ready for
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the
dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.

6.02  Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.
ARTICLE 7 - ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID

7.01  The following information must be submitted as part of this Bid Form.

A. List of Proposed Subcontractors whose subcontract amount exceeds $500,000;
Hawaiian Rock Products

1l
2
3.
4
5

8. List of manufacturers for the following major equipment:

Specification Manufacture Name
Number Equipment
ALFA LAVAL, INC
442223 Centrifuges
P . QOdortool
443119 Biotrickling Filter Odor Control -
System AOTAMIX
444713.13 Let h:;-:;e;:ct:;n System and o o
- SULZER
444256.09 Non-Clog Centrifugal Pumps
) ) SEEPEX
444256.13 Progressing Cavity Sludge Pumps
_ _ FLOWSERVE
444257.11 Non-Clog Dry-Pit Centrifugal Pumps
ANDRITZ
444626.02 Gravity Belt Thickener
LAKESIDE EQUIPMENT
462133 Rotary Drum Screens
LAKESIDE EQUIPMENT
462183 Septage Receiving Equipment
HYDRO INTERNATIONAL
462323 Vortex Grit Removal System
Westech Engineering ing
464321 Secondary Clarifier
Westech Engineering Ing.
465361 Oxidation Ditches
’ o . XYLEM WEDECO
466656 Ultravigtet {UV) Disinfection
System
- . Thermal Process Systems
Autothermal Thermophilic Aerobic
467324 X .
Digestion System
Section00410
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ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions
to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

ARTICLE 9 - BID SUBMITTAL

BIDDER: findicate correct name of bidding entity]

Black Construction Cerporation

By: M\
[Signature}
e [

Leonard K. Kaae, Senior Vice President & General Manager

[Printed name]
{If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, o partnership, or a joint venture, attach
evidence of authority to sign.)

Attest:

[Signature] I S
[Printed name] Mark J. Mamczarz

Title: Vice Presidant of Finance, Secretary & Treasurer

Submittal Date: May 29, 2019

Address for giving notices:

Black Construction Corporation

Physical Addrass: JU Baker St. Harmon Industrial Park, Harmon, Guam 96913

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 24667, Barrigada, Guam 96921

Telephone Number: (671) 646-4861

(671) 645-9086

Fax Number:

Contact Name and e-mail address: Leonard K. Kaae L
leonardk@blackguam.com

Bidder's License No.: C-0418-0038

{where applicable}
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APPENDIX B

FORM OF NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

AFFIDAVIT
{Prime Bidder)

TERRITORY OF GUAM )

) 5.s.
HAGATNA, GUAM, M.I. )
Leonard K Kaae being first duly sworn, deposes and says:
That he js _ Officer of the firm the {a partner or officer of the firm of, etc.) party making

the foregoing proposal or bid, that such proposal or bid is genuine and not collusive or sham,
that said bidder has not colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any
bidder or person, to put in a sham bid or to refrain from bidding, and has not in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or communication or conference, with
any person, to fix the bid price of affiant or of any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit or
cost element of said bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against
the Guam Waterworks Authority or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and that
all statements in said proposal or bid are true.

e

Signature of ©

Bidder, if the bidder is an individual;
Partner, if the bidder is a partnership;
Officer, if the bidder is a corporation

Subscribed and.sworn to befo\Te thlS day of '\A‘F 201
(t M— W-A»y,‘a NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission explresA‘ﬂ 'J-\ 20?2’1’-

ANGELA T. MASSEY
NOFARY-PUBLIE——

Section 0900 In and for Guam, U.S.A.
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APPENDIX G

CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

GENERAL

In accordance with Executive Order 11246 (30 F.R, 12319-25}, the implementing rules and
regulations thereof, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, a Certification regarding Equal
Opportunity is required of bidders or prospective Contractors and their proposed sub-
contractors prior to the award of Contract or sub-contracts.

CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER

Bidder's Name:
Biack Construction Corporation

Address: Physical Address: JL Baker St. Harman industrial Park Harmon Guam 96913
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 24667 Barrigada, Guam 96921

Internal Revenue Service Employer Identification No.; 860454616

1. Participation in a previous Contract or sub-contract.

a. Bidder has participated in a previous Contract
or sub-contract subject to the Equal Opportunity
clause [ Yes[]No

b. Compliance reports were required to be

filled in connection with such Contract

OF SUD-CONTIBEL ..ottt st e et i Yes{] No
c. Bidder has filed all compliance reports

required by Executive Orders 10925, 11114,

11246 or by regulations of the Equal

Employment Opportunity Commission issued

pursuant to Title VIl or the Civil Rights

ACE OF 29688 G e Tkt e e e S385E0 v e et v esvaeerensiiibaresnneatasnserassnanssrenstsseasns [ Yes [ ] No

d. If answer to item c is “NO”, please explain in detail on reverse side of this
certification.

2. Dollar Amount of Bid: § 122,077,088.00
3. Anticipated performance period _ 908 _days.
Section 0900 Page 17
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4, Expected total number of employees who will perform the proposed construction:
5. Non-segregated Facilities
a. Notice to Prospective Contractor.

(1) A Certification of Non-segregated Facilities, as required by the May 9,
1967, order {32 F.R. 7439, May 19, 1967} on Elimination of Segregated
Facilities, by the Secretary of Labor, must be submitted to the recipient
prior to the award of a Contract exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt
from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause.

(2) Contractors receiving Contract awards exceeding $10,000 which are not
exempt from the provisions of the Equa!l Opportunity Clause will be
required to provide for the forwarding of the following notice to
prospective sub-contractors for supplies and construction Contracts
where the sub-contracts exceed $10,000 and are not exempt from the
provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause.

b. Notice to Prospective sub-contractors of Requirements for Certification of Non-
segregated Facilities.

(1) A Certification of Non-segregated Facilities, as required by the May 9,
1967, order (32 F.R. 7439, May 19, 1967} on Elimination of Segregated
Facilities, by the Secretary of Labor, must be submitted prior to the
award of a sub-contract exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the
provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause,

(2} Contractors receiving sub-contract awards exceeding $10,000 which are
not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Clause will be
required to pravide for the forwarding of this notice to prospective sub-
contractors for supplies and construction Contracts, where the sub-
contractors exceed $10,000 and are not exempt from the provisions of
the Equal Opportunity Clause.

c. Certification of Non-segregated Facilities.

The Contractor certifies that he does not maintain or provide for his employees any
segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he does not permit his
employees to perform their services at any location, under his control, where
segregated facilities are maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this
certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this Contract.

Section 0900 Page 18
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As used in this certification, the term “segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work
areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker
rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking iots, drinking fountains, recreation or
entertainment areas, transportation, or housing facilities provided for employees which are
segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or
national origin because of habit, local custom, or otherwise, The Contractor agrees that (except
where he has obtained identical certifications from proposed sub-contractors for specific time
periods) he will obtain identical certifications in duplicate from proposed sub-contractors prior
to the award of sub-contracts exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of
the Equal Opportunity Clause, and that he will retain the duplicate of such certifications in his
files. The Contractor will include the original in his Bid Package.

6. Race of ethnic group designation of bidder. Enter race or ethnic group in the
appropriate box:

[} African American [ ] Spanish American [ ] Oriental
[] Aleut [ ] American Indian [ ] Eskimo
4 White {other than Spanish American)
M Pacific Islander

REMARKS:

Certification: the information above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and
belief.

Name and Title of Signer:

Leonard K. Kaae

V(Signature)

May 24, 2019
(Date)

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.
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APPENDIX H

CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

{Applicable to Contracts and related sub-contracts $10,000 which are not exempt from the
Equal Opportunity Clause.)

The Contractor certifies that he does not maintain or provide for his employees any
segregated facilities in any of his establishment, and that he does not permit his employees to
perform their services at any location, under his control, where segregated facilities are
maintained. The Contractor certifies further that he will not maintain or provide for his
employees any segregated facilities at any of his establishments, and that he will not permit his
employees to perform their services at any location under his control, where segregated
facilities are maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation
of the Equal Opportunity Clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term
“segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms and
other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment
areas, transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by
explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin,
because of hahit, local custom, or otherwise. The Contractor agrees that {except where he has
obtained identical certifications from proposed sub-contractors for specific time periods) he will
obtain identical certifications exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provision of
the Equal Opportunity Clause, and that he will retain such certifications in his files.

NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER:

Leonard K. Kaae
Senior Vice President & General Manager

e)
May 24, 2019
(S'ignature) {Date)
NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.
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APPENDIX |

CERTIFICATION OF NON-EMPLOYMENT OF CONVICTED SEXUAL OFFENDERS

Pursuant to Guam Public Law 28-24, as amended by Guam Public Law 28-98, if a Contract for
services is awarded to the bidder or offeror, then the service provider must warrant that no
person in its employment who has been convicted of a sex offense under the provisions of
Chapter 25 of Title 9 of the Guam Code Annotated or of an offense defined in Article 2 of
Chapter 28 of Title 9 of the Guam Code Annotated, or who has been convicted in any other
jurisdiction of an offense with the same elements as heretofore defined, or who is listed on the
Sex Offender Registry, shall provide services on behalf of the service provider while on
government of Guam property, with the exception of public highways. If any employee of a
service provider is providing services on governmemnt property and is convicted subsequent to
an award of a Contract, then the service provider warrants that it will notify the Government of
the conviction within twenty-four hours of the conviction, and will immediately remove such
convicted person from providing services on government property. If the service provider is
found to be in violation of any of the provisions of this paragraph, then the Government will
give notice to the service provider to take corrective action. The service provider shall take
corrective action within twenty-four hours of notice from the Government, and the service
provider shall notify the Government when action has been taken. If the service provider fails
to take corrective steps within twenty-four hours of notice from the Government, then the
Government in its sole discretion may suspend temporarily any Contract for services until
corrective action

Leonard K Kaae being a duly authorized representative acknowledge the

{print name)
directive as describe above and ensure the Bid Proposal as submitted addresses the directive.

Black Construction Corporation

(Company Name)

Senior Vice President & General Manager

(Title)
May 242019

(Signature) (Date)
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APPENDIX D

WAGE AND BENEFIT DETERMINATION

Black Construction Corporation

Bid No.: |FB-02-ENG-2019 Name of Offerar:

l, St D hereby certify under penalty of perjury as
follows:
{1) That | am __2n officer of the afleror [please select one: the offeror, a portner of the offeror, on

officer of the offeror] making the bid or proposal in the faregoing identified procurement;

{2} That | have read and understand the provisions of 5 GCA § S801 and § 5802 below and that | wili
ensure that | and my sub-contractors will comply with said provisions which read as follows:
§ 5801. Wage Determination Established.
In such cases where the government of Guam enters inta Contractual arrangements with a sole
proprietorship, a partnership or a corporation {“Contractor”) for the provision of a service to the
government of Guam, and in such cases where the Contractor employs a person(s} whose
purpose, in whole or in part, is the direct delivery of service Contracted by the government of
Guam, then the Contractor shall pay such employee(s) in accordance with the Wage
Determination for Guam and the Northern Mariana Islands issved and promulgated by the U.S.
Department of Labor for such labor as is employed in the direct delivery of Contract deliverables
to the government of Guam.

The Wage Determination most recently issued by the U.S. Department of Labor at the time a
Contract is awarded to a Contractor by the government of Guam shall be used to determine
wages, which shall be paid to employees pursuant to this Article. Should any Contract contain a
renewal clause, then at the time of renewal adjustments, there shall be made stipulations
contained in that Contract for applying the Wage Determination, as required by this Article, so
that the Wage Determination promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor on a date most
recent to the renewal date shall apply.

§ 5802. Benefits

In addition to the Wage Determination detailed in this Article, any Caontract to which this Article
applies shall also contain provisions mandating health and similar benefits for employees
covered by this Article, such benefits having a minimum value as detailed in the Wage
Determination issued and promulgated by the U.5. Department of Labor, and shall contain
provisions guaranteeing a minimum of ten (10) paid holidays per annum per employee.

{3) That the offeror and its sub-contractors are now, or will be prior to beginning performance and
throughout the Contract term, in full compliance with 5 GCA § 5801 and § 5802.

{4) That | have attached the most recent wage and benefit determinations applicable to Guam issued by
the U.5. Department of Labor and that | will ensure all of my employees and the employees of my sub-

contractorsill be provided a minimum of ten (10) paid holidays per annum,
May 24, 2019

Siﬁ;atd’re' Date

Section 0900 Page 14
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General Pecision Number: GU198026 ©3/15/2019 GU6
State: Guam

Construction Type: Building

Building Construction (Applies only to projects funded under
the National Defense Authorization Act of 2818 - Guam
Realignment Fund - Defense Policy Review Initiative) BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include single family homes or
apartments up to and including 4 stories)

County: Guam Statewide.

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage
of $10.60 for calendar year 2019 applies to all contracts
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is
awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January
1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EQ, the contractor
must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage
determination at least $18.60 per hour {or the applicable wage
rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for
all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year
2019. If this contract is covered by the EO and a
classification considered necessary for performance of work on
the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the
contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the
wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth
in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) {(or the EQ minimum wage rate,if it is
higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate
will be adjusted annually. Please note that this E0 applies to
the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the
federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act
itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the
Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR
5.1{(2)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor
requirements and worker protections under the EQ is available
at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date
e 03/08/201%
1 83/15/2019

suGu2e18-6e1 81/87/20819

Rates Fringes
CARPENTER (Drywall Hanging
(4l 508000 00600008 d0a 80000006 $ 15.00 0.00
CARPENTER {Form Work Only)....... $ 15.27 ©.80
CARPENTER, Excludes Drywall
Hanging, and Form Work........... $ 16.11 1.17

CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER,..§ 14.42 e.0e



—

ELECTRICIAN. ... ivvvvnvsnrnnnnasnn $ 16.59 1.00
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING.......... $ 14.84 0.99
LABORER: Common or General...... $ 9.64 0.00
OPERATOR:

Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe.......$ 16.49 e.00
PAINTER (Brush and Roller)....... $ 14.56 8.43
PIPEFITTER....... 0CO0C000D00a00000 $ 19.28 8.98
PEUNB R L L e e e e e e e $ 14.63 .00
SHEET METAL WORKER (HVAC Duct

Installation Only)........cvvnuns $ 17.89 8.54
TRUCK DRIVER: Dump Truck........ $ 14.50 9.00

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13786, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2817. If this
contract is covered by the EQ, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 38 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EOQ
is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical



order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
{weighted union average rate}.

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or
"UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUMB198-805 87/81/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 2198. The next number,
@85 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 87/01/2814 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2814,

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification. As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-867 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. tA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 087
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2814 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 108% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-6018
08/29/2814. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate, OH indicates the state. The next number, 8018 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. ©8/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of



—

each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

* an existing published wage determination
a survey underlying a wage determination

* 2 Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
a wage determination matter

* a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted
because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the
Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial
contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.)
and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
Wage and Hour Division

U.S. Department of Labor

286 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, DC 28218

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
{(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator
U.S. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, 0C 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice materizl,
etc.} that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board
U.S. Department of Labor



200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20218

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION



General Decision Number: GU190087 @3/15/201% GU7
State: Guam

Construction Type: Heavy

Heavy Construction (Applies only to projects funded under the
National Defense Authorization Act of 2019 - Guam Realignment
Fund - Defense Policy Review Initiative)

County: Guam Statewide.

Note: Under Executive Order (E0O) 12658, an hourly minimum wage
of $10.60 for calendar year 2919 applies to all contracts
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is
awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January
1, 2815. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor
must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage
determination at least $18.62 per hour (or the applicable wage
rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for
all hours spent performing eon the contract in calendar year
2019. If this contract is covered by the EO and a
classification considered necessary for performance of work on
the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the
contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the
wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth
in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate,if it is
higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate
will be adjusted annually. Please note that this €0 applies to
the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the
federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act
itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the
Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR
5.1{a){2)-{68). Additional information on contractor
reguirements and worker protections under the EC is available
at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date
B 03/e8/2019
1 83/15/2019

SUGU2018-802 81/07/2819

Rates Fringes
CARPENTER (Form Work Only)....... $ 15.00@ 2.00
CARPENTER, Excludes Form Work....$} 14.87 0.00
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER.,.$ 15.55 0.90
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING..... voee.$ 16,59 0.60
LABORER: Common or General...... $ 13.45 0.60

OPERATOR:



Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe.......% 19.77 9.00

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EQ) 137@6, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this
contract is covered by the EQ, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 38 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member {(or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
{29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate {current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" ar
"UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUMB198-885 ©7/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 8198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 8198. The next number,
085 in the example, is an internal number used in processing



the wage determination. 87/@1/2814 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014,

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification. As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-887 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2812 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 807
in the example, is an internal number used in preoducing the
wage determination. 5/13/2614 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 1éeX% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0@10
B8/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, €018 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. ©8/29/2814 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

* an existing published wage determination

* a survey underlying a wage determipation

* a3 Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
3 wage determination matter



* a conformance {additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted
because those Regional CGffices have responsibility for the
Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial
contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.)
and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
Wage and Hour Division

U.5. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, DC 2821@

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
{See 25 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator
U.5. Department of Labor

200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20218

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board
U.S. Department of Labor

2¢@ Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 208210

4,) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION
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APPENDIX C

MAJOR SHAREHOLDER DISCLOSURE AFFIDAVIT

TERRITORY OF GUAM  }

}
HAGATNA, GUAM }
. Leonard K. Kaae . .
|, the undersigned , being first duly swarn, depase and says:

1. That the persons who have held more than ten percent (10%) of the company's share during the
past twelve months preceding the submission of the bid are as follows {if none, so state):

NAME ADDRESS PERCENTAGE OF SHARES HOLD
. Aanald N. Tu}g_r‘ o 1590 Qlden St. Syimar CA 91342 49%

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES 49%
2. Persons who have received or are entitled to receive a commission, gratuity or other

campensation for procuring or assisting in obtaining business related to the bid for which this affidavit is
submitted are as follows:

AMOUNT OF COMMISSIONS,
GRATUITY OR OTHER
NAME ADDRESS COMPENSATION

Further, affiant sayeth naught.

Date: _Lﬂl-ll[ ‘{ ) Q-OIq

Leonard K Kaae

Signature of intit¥idual’f bidder is a sole proprietorship; partner, if
the bidder is a partnership; officer, if the bidder
is a carporation (or other autharized person)

ibed and sworn to before me this | lh, day of - a:201 ﬁ

Public In and for the Territory of Guam

My commission expires: A‘-‘U{ Q

ANGELA T. MASSEY
NOTARY PUBLIC

In and for Guam, U.S.A. Pag-eE

" ission Expires: AUG. 62, 2022
e Appfmi% Do 24067 Bervigad, Guam 96921
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APPENDIX J

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS — ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

For use only in indefinite quantity Contracts or where there has been an estimated amount

included in GWA's bid specifications that is to be used to determine the bid price

Bidders are hereby served notice that the following Directives or information described below
must be taken into account when preparing the Bid Proposal. The Bidder shall acknowledge
the directives by signing and submitting this section with their Bid Proposal.

Directive #1

The bidder is cautioned to note that while the quantities specified in the Bid Schedule are based
upon the best information available to GWA, the quantities for the items listed in the Bid
Schedule may or may not be completely accurate. Thus, GWA makes no assurances or
warranty to any bidder that the guantities listed are 100% accurate.

l, Leonard K. Kaae being an Authorized Representative acknowledge the
directive as describe above and ensure the Bid Proposal as submitted addresses the directive.

Black Construction Corporation

{Company Name)

May 24, 2019

(Signature) {Date)

Section 0900 Page 22
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] Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Los Angeles, CA 90013-1010
usa

Tel: +1 213 688 0800
Fax: +1 213 688 0100
www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Tutor Perini Corporation
Sylmar, California

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tutor Perini Corporation
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2017, the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes {collectively referred to as the
“financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financia! position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity
with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S, federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. QOur audit included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staterments. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Report on Supplemental Consolidating Information

The supplemental consolidating information on pages 34-37 has been subjected to audit
procedures performed in conjunction with the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The supplemental consolidating information is the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our audit procedures included determining whether the
supplemental consolidating information reconciles to the financial statements or the
underlying accounting and other records, as applicable, and performing procedures to test



the completeness and accuracy of the information presented in the supplemental
consolidating information. In our opinion, such information is falrly stated, in all material
respects, in relatlon to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Qs « Tomcke LLP

February 27, 2018
(March 30, 2018 as to the supplemental consolidating information)

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(in thousands, except per common share data)

REVENUE $ 4,757,208
COST OF OPERATIONS (4,302 803)
GROSS PROFIT 454,405
General and administrative expenses (274 928)
INCOME FROM CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS 179,477
Other income, net 43,882
Interest expense {69,384)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 153,975
Incomg tax benefit 569
NET INCOME $ 154,544
LESS: NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (6,162)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION 148,382
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE $ 2.99
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE ) 2.92
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:

BASIC 49,647

DILUTED 50,759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statemnents.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(in thousands)
NET INCOME $ 154,544
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX:
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments 1,424
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,273
Unrealized loss in fair value of investments (2}
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX 2,695
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 157,239
LESS: COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TQO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (6,162)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION 3 151,077

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

{in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash, including cash equivalents of $1,481 (353,067 related to VIEs) b 192,868
Restricted cash 4,780
Restricted investments 53,014
Accounts receivable, including retainage of $535,939 (AR of $42,413 related to VIEs) 1,801,656
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 932,758

_Othercurrentassety 89316

Total current assets 3,074,392

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 41,382
Building and improvemenis 125,029
Construction equipment 477988
Other equipment o 182 288

826,687
Less accurmnulated depreciation {359,188)
Total property and equipment, net ($11,641 related to VIEs) e 467,499

GOODWILL 585,006

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET 89,454

OTHER ASSETS L 47,772
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4264,123

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Current maturities of long-term debt ] 30,748
Accounts payable, including retainage of $261,820 (AP of 19,243 related to VIEs) 961,791
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings ($120,952 related to VIEs) 456,869
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities e 132 438
Total current liabilities 1,581,846
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities, net of unamortized discounts and debt issuance costs totaling $45,631 705,528
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 108,504
OTHE N ILIT 163,465
_TOTAL LIABILITIES R 2,559,343
EQUITY
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock — authorized 1,000,000 shares ($1 par value), none issued -
Common stock — authorized 75,000,000 shares ($1 par value), issued and outstanding 49,781,010 sharcs 49,781
Additional paid-in capital 1,084,205
Retained eamings 622,007
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (42,718)
Total stockholders' equity 1,713,275
Noncontrolling interests (8,495}
TOTAL EQUITY 1,704,780
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY § 4264123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income 154,544
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 48,387
Amortization of intangible assets 3,543
Share-based compensation expense 21,174
Change in debt discounts and deferred debt issuance costs 17,595
Deferred income taxes {23,096}
Loss on sale of property and equipment 1,131
Changes in other components of working capital (60,214}
Other long-term liabilities 3,656
_Other, get (3,170)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 163,550
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (30,280)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 2,744
Investments in securities, restricted (54,504)
Investments in securities (6,463)
Proceeds from maturities of investments in securities 1,370
Change in restricted cash 45,724
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {41,409)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from debt 2,161,384
Repayment of debt (2,195,068)
Debt issuance and extinguishrment costs {15,266)
Cash payments related to share-based compensation (11,769)
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests (17,499)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests 2.842
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {(75,376)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 46,765
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 146,103
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 192,868

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consalidated financial stalements.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-in Retained Comprebensive Noncoatrolling
Stock Capital Earnings Loss Interests Total

Balance - December 31, 2016 $ 49211 $ 1075600 $ 473,625 $ {45413) § — § 1,553.023
Net income - 148,382 —- 6,162 154,544
Other comprehensive income = - - 2,695 2,695
Share-based compensation expense 20,877 20,877
Issuance of common stock, net 570 (12,272) - - (11,702)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests - - 2,842 2,842
Distributions to noncontrolling interests - - (17.499) {17,499}
Balance - December 31, 2017 S 49781 § 1084205 § 622007 $ {42,718) § (8,495} § 1,704,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The accempanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“GAAP") as codified in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s ("FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC").

d) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tutor Perini Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the
“Company”). The Company occasionally forms joint ventures with unrelated third parties for the execution of single contracts or
projects. The Company assesses its joint ventures at inception to determine if they meet the qualifications of a variable interest entity
("VIE") in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810"). If a joint venture is a VIE and the Company is the primary
beneficiary, the joint venture is fully consolidated (See Note 11 below). For construction joint ventures that do not need to be
consolidated, the Company accounts for its interest in the joint ventures using the proportionate consolidation method, whereby the
Company's proportionate share of the joint ventures’ assets, liabilities, revenue and cost of operations are included in the appropriate
classifications in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated
in consolidation.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts. These estimates are based on information available through the date of the issuance of the financial statements;
therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates.

{d) Construction Contracts

The Company and its affiliated entities recognize construction contract revenue using the percentage-of-completion method, based
primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared to total estimated contract cost. Cost of revenue includes an allocation of
depreciation and amortization. Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred. Changes to tolal estimated contract cost ot losses, if any,
are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its construction contracts with periods typically
extending for a limited duration following substantial completion of the Company's work on a project. Histarically, warranty claims
have not resulted in matenial costs incurred.

The Company classifies as current construction-related assets and liabilities that may be settled beyond one year from the balance
sheet date, consistent with the length of time of the Company's project operating cycle. Included in these balances are the following:
costs and estimaled earnings in excess of billings, which represent the excess of contract costs and profits (or contract revenue) over
the amount of contract billings to date; billings in excess of costs and estimated eamnings, which represent the excess of contract
billings to date over the amount of contract costs and profits {or contract revenue) recognized to date; and contract retainage
receivables and payables, which represent amounts invoiced to customers and amounts invoiced to the Company by subcontractors
where paymenis bave been withheld pending the completion of certain milestones, other contractual conditions or upon the
completion of the project.

Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings result when either: 1) the appropriate coniract revenue amount has been recognized
in accordance with the percentage-of-completion accounting method, but a portion of the revenue recorded cannot be billed currently
due 1o the billing terms defined in the contract, or 2) costs are incurred related to certain claims and unapproved change orders. Claims
occur when there is a dispute regarding both a change in the scope of work and the price associated with that change. Unapproved
change orders occur when a change in the scope of work results in additional work being performed before the parties have agreed on
the corresponding change in the contract price. For both claims and unapproved change orders, the Company recognizes revenue, but
nol profit, when it is determined that recovery of incurred cost is probable and the amounts can be reliably estimated. For claims, these
requirements are satisfied under ASC 605-35, Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts, when the contract or other evidence
provides a legal basis for the claim, additional costs were caused by circumstances that were unforeseen at the contract date and not
the result of deficiencies in the Company’s performance, claim-related costs are identifiable and considered reasonable in view of the
work performed, and evidence supporting the claim or change order is objective and verifiable.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2017 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Claims $ 549,849
Unapproved change orders 296,591
Other unbilled costs and profits §6.318
Total costs and estimated earnings in excess of bitlings b 932,758

Claims and unapproved change orders are billable upon the resolution of any disputed or open items between the contractual parties
and the execution of contractual amendmtents. Increases in claims and unapproved change orders typically result from costs being
incurred against existing or new positions where recovery is concluded to be both probable and reliably estimable; decreases normally
result from resolutions and subsequent billings. For both claims and unapproved change orders, the Company recognizes revenue, but
not profit. Other unbilled costs and profits are billable in accordance with the billing terms of each of the existing contractual
arrangements and, as such, the timing of contract billing cycles can cause fluctuations in the balance of unbilled costs and profits.
Ultimate resolution of other unbilied costs and profits typically involves the passage of time and, often, incremental progress toward
contractual requirements or milestones. The amount of costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2017
estimated by management to be collected beyond one year is approximately $443.7 million.

Retainage agreements vary from project to project and balances could be outstanding for several months or years depending on a
nutmber of circumstances, such as contract-specific terms, project performance and other vaniables that may arise as the Company
makes progress towards completion. Generally, retainage payables are not remitted to the Company’s subcontractors until the
associated retainage receivables from the customer are collected. As of December 31, 2017, the amount of retainage receivables and
payables estimated by management to be collected or remitted beyond one year is approximately 30% and 19% of the balances,
respectively.

{e) Changes in Estimates on Construction Contracts

The Company’s estimates of contract revenue and cost are highly detailed and many factors change during a contract performance
period that result in a change to contract profitability. These factors include, but are not limited to, differing site conditions;
availability of skilled contract labor; performance of major material suppliers and subcontractors; on-going subcontractor negotiations
and buyout provisions; unusual weather conditions; changes in the timing of scheduled work; change orders; accuracy of the original
bid estimate; changes in estimated labor productivity and costs based on experience to date; achievement of incentive-based income
1argets; and the expected, or actual, resolution terms for claims. The factors that cause changes in estimates vary depending on the
maturation of the project within its lifecycle. For example, in the ramp-up phase, these factors typically consist of revisions in
anticipated project costs and during the peak and close-out phases, these factors include the impact of change orders and claims, as
well as additional revisions in remaining anticipated project costs. Generally, if the contract is at an early stage of completion, the
current period impact is smaller than if the same change in estimate is made to the contract at a later stage of completion. Management
evaluates changes in estimates on a contract by contract basis and discloses significant changes, if material, in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, The cumulative catch-up method is used to account for revisions in estimates.

{f) Depreciation of Property and Equipment and Amortization of Long-Lived Intangible Assets

Property and equipment and long-lived intangible asscts are depreciated or amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives ranging from three to forty years.

(g) Recoverability of Long-Lived Assels

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances indicate that the future cash flows generated by the assets
might be less than the assets’ net carrying value. In such circumstances, an impairment loss will be recognized by the amount the
assets’ net carrying value exceeds their fair valuc.

{h) Recoverability of Goodwill

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually for each reporting unit in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year, and between
annual tests if events occur or circumstances change which suggest that goodwill should be reevaluated. Such events or circumstances
include significant changes in legal factors and business climate, recent losses al a reporting unit, and industry trends, among other
factors. The Civil, Building and Specialty Contractors segments each represent a reporting unit. The Company performs its annual
quantitative impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each year using a weighted-average of an income and a market
approach. The income approach is based on estimated present value of future cash flows for each reporting unit. The market approach
is based on assumptions about how market data relates to the Company. The weighting of thesc two approaches is based on their

-9.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

individual correlation to the economics of each reporting unit. The quantitative assessment performed in 2017 resulted in an estimated
fair value for each of the Company’s reporting units that exceeded their respective net book values; therefore, no impairment charge
was necessary for the year.

(i) Recoverability of Non-Amortizable Trade Names

Certain trade names have an estimated indefinite life and are not amortized to earnings, but instead are reviewed for impairment
annually, or more often if events occur or circumstances change which suggest that the non-amortizable trade names should be
reevaluated. The Company performs its annual quantitative impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each year using an
income approach (relief from royalty method). The quantitative assessment performed in 2017 resulted in an estimated fair value for
the non-amortizable trade names that exceeded their respective net book values; therefore, no impairment charge was necessary for the
year,

@) Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the effects of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the income tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect when such differences
reverse. [ncome tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not threshold to be recognized. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of the income tax provision.

(k) Earnings Per Common Share

Basic EPS and diluted EPS are calculated by dividing net income attributable to Tutor Perini Corporation by the following: for basic
EPS, the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period; and for diluted EPS, the sum of the weighted-
average number of both outstanding common shares and potentiatly dilutive securities, which for the Company can include restricted
stock units, unexercised stock options and the Convertible Notes, as defined in Note 5. The Company calculates the effect of these
potentially dilutive securities using the treasury stock method. The calculations of the basic and diluted EPS for the year ended December
31, 2017 are presented below (in thousands, except per share data):

Net income attributable to Tutor Perini Corporation 3 148 382
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, basic 49,647
Effect of dilutive stock options and unvested restricted stock 1,112
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, diluted 50,759
Net income attributable to Tutor Perini Corporation per common share:

Basic b 2,99

Diluted M 2.92
Anti-dilutive securities not included above 798

With regard to diluted EPS and the impact of the Convertible Notes on the diluted EPS calculation, because the Company has the
intent and ability to settle the principal amount of the Convertible Notes in cash, per ASC 260, Earnings Per Share, the scttlement of
the principal amount has no impact on diluted EPS.

(1} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when acquired. Cash and cash
equivalents, as reported in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet, consist of amounts available for the Company’s general
purposes, as well as the Company's proportionate share of cash held by the Company’s unconsolidated joint ventures and also
amounts held by the Company's consolidated joint ventures. In both cases, cash held by joint ventures is available only for joint
venture-related uses, including future distributions to joint venture partners.

-10-



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

Total cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2017 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents 3 94,713
Joint venture cash and cash equivalents 98,155
Totaj cash and cash equivalents 3 192,868

{m) Restricted Cash and Restricted Investments

The Company has restricted cash and restricted investments primarily hetd as collateral to secure insurance-related contingent
obligations, such as insurance claim deductibles, in lieu of letters of credit. Restricted investments are comprised of various corporate
bonds and bank notes that are rated A3 or better and have matunities within the Company’s operating cycle. These restricted
investments are held-to-maturity securities carried at amortized cost,

{n) Share-Based Compensation

The Company's long-term incentive plans aliow the Company to grant share-based compensation awards in a variety of forms,
including restricted and unrestricted stock units and stock options. Restricted stock units and stock options generally vest subject to
service and/or performance requirements, with related compensation expense equal to the fair value of the award on the date of grant
and recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Unrestricted stock units vest immediately and are generally
issued to the directors as part of their annual retainer fees, in which case they are expensed over a 12-month service period.

For share-based awards that have a service requirement, the Company accounts for forfeitures upon occurrence, rather than estimating
the probability of forfeiture at the date of grant. Accordingly, the Company recognizes the full grant-date fair value of these awards on
a straight-line basis throughout the requisite service period, reversing any expense if, and only if, there is a forfeiture.

For share-based awards that have a performance-based vesting requirement, the Company evaluates the probability of achieving the
performance criterion throughout the performance period, and will adjust share-based compensation expense if it estimates that the
achievement of the performance criterion, the achievement of which is ultimately determined by the Compensation Committee, is not
probable.

{o) Insurance Liabilities

The Company typically utilizes third-party insurance coverage subject to varying deductible levels with aggregate caps on losses
retained. The Company assumes the risk for the amount of the deductible portion of the losses and liabilities primarily associated with
warkers’ compensation and general liability coverage. In addition, on certain projects, the Company assumes the risk for the amount
of the deductible portion of losses that arise from any subcontractor defaults. Losses are accrued based upon the Company’s estimates
of the aggregate liability for claims incurred using historical experience and certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance
industry. The estimate of insurance liability within the deductible limits includes an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based
on data compiled from historical experience.

{p) Other Comprehensive Income

ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its compotients in the
consolidated financial statements. The Company reports the change in pension benefit plan assets/liabilities, cumulative foreign
currency translation, change in fair value of investments and change in fair value of an interest rate swap as components of
accumulated other comprehensive loss (“AOCI™).



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

The tax effects of the components of other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows (in
thousands):

Before-Tax Taz (Expense) Net-of-Tsx
Amount Benefit Amouat

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Defined benefit pension plan adjustments $ 2416 § (992) $ 1,424

Forcign currency translation adjustment 2,159 (886) 1,273
—Unceslized loss in fair value of investments (4) 2 1)
Totsl other comprehensive income 3 4571 % (1.876) § 2695
Iotal other comprehensive income attributable to Tutor Perini Corporstion b3 4571 _§ {L,876) $ 2,695

The changes in AOCI balances by component (after tax) for the year ended December 31, 2017 were as follows (in thousands);

Unrealized Accumulated
Deflned Forelgn Gain in Fair Other
Benefit Currency Value of Comprehensive
Pension Plan ‘Transiation Investments Loss
Attributable to Tutor Perinl Corporation:
Balance as of December 31, 2016 $ (40,865) $ (4.864) § 316§ (45,413)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassificetions 306 £,273 (2) 1,577
Amounts rectassified from AQC] L118 — = LIS
Balance as of December 31, 2017 3 (39.441) $ (3,591) § 3l4 § (42,718)

The significant items reclassified out of AOCI for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the corresponding location and impact on
the Consolidated Statement of Income were as follows (in thousands):

Location in Consolidated

Component of AOCE: Statement of Income
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments Various accounts™ 3 1,897
_Income tax benefit Income tax benefit (provision) (1%
Netof tax $ 1,118

{a) Defined benefit pension plan adjustments were reclassified to cost of operations and general and administrative expenses.
{9) New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU™) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
as amended by subscquent ASUs {collectively, “ASU 2014-09). ASU 2014-09 amends the existing accounting standards for revenue
recognition and establishes principles for recognizing revenue upon the transfer of promised goods or services to customers based on
the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance is effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning afier December 15, 2017. The amendments may be applied retrospeclively to each prior period presented
or with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application (modified retrospective method). The Company will adopt
this new standard using the modified retrospective method, The Company has rcvicwed its contract portfolio in order to determine the
impact that the adoption of ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements. Based on the Company’s evaluation of
ASU 2014-09, the Company cxpects an immaterial reduction to beginning retained eamnings, with an immaterial impact to net income
on an ongaing basis. The Company has implemented changes to its business processes, systems and internal controls to support the
adoption of this new standard and the related disclosure requirements. The adoption of the standard is also expected to impact the
presentation of the consolidated balance sheet. The impact primarily relates te reclassifications among project working capital
financial statement accounts to align with the new standard.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which amends the existing guidance in ASC 840, Leases. This
amendment requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases currently classified as operating
leases. Other significant provisions of the amendment include (i) defining the “lease term” to include the non-cancellable period
together with periods for which there is a significant economic incentive for the lessee to extend or not terminate the lease; (i)
defining the initial lease liability to be recorded on the balance sheet to contemplate only those variable lease payments that depend on
an index or that are in substance “fixed"; and (iii} a dual approach for determining whether lease expense is recognized on a straight-
line or accelerated basis, depending on whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant.portion of the leased
asset’s economic benefits. This guidance will be effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018
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TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017

and will be applied using the modified retrospective transition method for existing leases. The Company is currently evaluating the
effect that the adoption of this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-
Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2016-09"), which simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment
transactions, including the accounting for the income tax effect of share-based transactions and the forfeiture of share-based
instruments. The Company prospectively adopted this ASU effective January 1, 2017. Upon this adoption, the Company changed its
accounting policy for share-based awards that have service requirements such that the impact for failure to meet service requirements
will only be recognized upen occurrence. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and
Cash Payments (“ASU 2016-15™), seeking to eliminate diversity in practice related to how certain cash receipts and cash payments are
presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The amendments in ASU 2016-15 address eight specific cash flow issues
including the classification of debt prepayment and extinguishment costs in the cash flow statement. The amendments in ASU 2016-
15 are effective for public business eniities for fiscal years beginning after Deccmber 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period provided any adjustments should be reflected as of the
beginning of the fiscal year that includes the interim period. The Company adopted this accounting standard in 2017 and has applied
the provisions retrospectively to the beginning of the fiscal years presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash, which requires restricted
cash to be included with cash and cash equivalent balances in the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The adoption of this ASU will result in an increase of net cash used in
investing activities of 345.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017,

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill
Impairment (“ASU 2017-04"). This ASU simplifies the calculation of goodwill impairment by eliminating Step 2 of the impairment
test prescribed by ASC 350. Step 2 requires companies to calculate the implied fair value of their goodwill by estimating the fair value
of their assets, other than goodwill, and liabilities, including unrecognized assets and liabilities, following the procedure that would be
required in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. The calculated net fair
value of the assets would then be compared to the fair value of the reporting unit to determine the implied fair value of goodwill, and
to the extent that the carrying value of goodwill was less than the implied fair value, a loss would be recognized. Under ASU 2017-04,
however, goodwill is impaired when the calculated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, and the impairment
charge will equal that difference (i.e., impairment will be calculated at the reporting unit level and there will be no need to estimate the
fair value of individual assets and liabilities). This guidance will be effective for any goadwill impairment tests performed in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019; however, early adoption is permitted for tests performed on testing dates after January 1,
2017. The Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting.
This ASU clarifies the scope of modification accounting under Topic 718 with respect to changes to the terms or conditions of a share-
based payments award, Under this new guidance, modification accounting would not apply if a change to an award does not affect the
total current fair value, vesting conditions or the classification of the award. This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to
have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, fncome Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220):
Reclassification of Ceriain Tax Effects from the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. This ASU gives entities the option io
reclassify to retained earnings tax effects related to items in accumulated other comprehensive income that the FASB refers to as
having been stranded in accumulated other comprehensive income as a result of tax reform. Enlities can apply the provisions of this
ASU either in the period of adoption or retrospectively. The guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of this ASU
will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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2, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Below are the changes in other components of working capital, as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the
supplemental disclosure of cash paid for interest and income taxes during the year ended December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Increase in:
Accounts receivable b3 {57,609)
Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings (100,932)
Other current assets (19,718)
(Decrease) Increase in:
Accounts payable (32,225)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamnings 125,757
Accrued expenses 24,513
Changes in other components of working capital b (60,214)
Cash paid during the year for:
_Interest 5 50,443
Income taxes 3 39,776

3. Income Taxes

Income before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2017 is summarized as follows (in thousands):

United States operations L3 135,177
Foreign operations 18,798
Total 3 153,975

The income tax (benefit) provision for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

Current expense:
Federal 3 12,329
State 6,763
Foreign 3435
Total current 22 527

Deferred (benefit) expense:

Federal (30,021)
Stale 5,560
Foreign 1,365
Total deferred (23,096}
Tolal benefit 3 (569}
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The following table is a reconciliation of the Company’s income tax provision at the statutory rate to the income tax benefit at the
Company's effective rate for the year ended December 31, 2017 (dollars in thousands):

Amount Rate
Federal income tax expense at statutory tax rate $ 53,892 350 %
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 7,753 5.0
Impact of federal tax law change (53,348) (34.6)
Officers' compensation 2,622 1.7
Domestic production activities deduction 2,668 (1.7
Noncontrolling interest 2,137 (149
Reversal of taxes payable due to statute expiration 4,337y (2.8)
Other L {2346} (1.6}
Income tax benefit $ {569) (04} %

On December 22, 2017, the U.8. government enacted significant tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of
2017 (the “TCJA™). The TCJA makes broad and complex changes to the U.S. tax code that will impact the Company's financial
statements, including but not limited to a permanent decrease in the corporate federal statutory income tax rate from 35% to 21%,
effective January 1, 2018, and a one-time transition tax from the inclusion of foreign eamnings, which the Company can elect to pay
over eight years, Future distributions from foreign subsidiaries, however, will no longer be subject to federal income tax.

As a result of the TCJA, the Company recognized an income tax benefit of $53.3 million in 2017, primarily due to the remeasurement
of deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the reduced corporate federal statutory income tax rate of 21%.

The Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118™), which provides guidance on
accounting for the tax effects of the TCJA. SAB 118 provides a measurement period that should not extend beyond one year from the
TCJA enactment date for companies to complete the accounting under ASC 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740™). In accordance with SAB
118, a company must reflect the income tax effects of those aspects of the TCJA for which the accounting under ASC 740 is complete.
To the extent that a company’s accounting for certain income tax effects of the TCJA is incomplete but it is able to determine a
reasonable estimate, it must record a provisional estimate in the financial statements. If a company cannot determine a provisional
estimate to be included in the financial statements, it should continue to apply ASC 740 on the basis of the provisions of the tax laws
that were in effect immediately before the enactment of the TCJA.

The one-time transition tax is based on the Company's total post-1986 eamnings and profits ("E&P™) that it previously deferred from
11.S. income taxes. The Company recorded a provisional amount for its one-time transition tax liability for its foreign subsidiaries,
resulting in an increase in income tax expense of $0.5 million. The Company has not yet completed its calculation of the total post-
1986 E&P for these foreign subsidiaries. Further, the transition tax is based in part on the amount of those earnings held in cash and
other specified assets. This amount may change when the Company finalizes the calculaticn of post-1986 foreign E&P previously
deferred from U.S. federal taxation and finalizes the amounts held in cash or other specified assets.
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The following is a summary of the significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 (in
thousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Timing of expense recognition $ 22,730
Net operating losses 8,590
Other, net 15,618
Deferred tax assets 46,938
Valuation allowance (381)
Net deferred tax assets 46,557
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets, due primarily to purchase accounting (30,019)
Fixed assets, due primarily to purchase accounting (73,833)
Construction contract accounting (17,539
Joint ventures (11,343)
Other (22,263)
Deferred tax liabilities (154,997}
Net deferred tax liabilities $  (108,440)

The net deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017 is presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets 5 64
Deferred tax liabilities (108,504)
Net deferred tax liabilities $  (108,440)

Prior to 2017, the Company did not provide for deferred income taxes or foreign withholding tax on basis differences in its non-U.S.
subsidiaries that result from undistributed eamings which the Company had the intent and the ability to reinvest in its foreign
operations. Due to the enactment of the TCJA, the Company no longer intends to permanently reinvest in its foreign subsidiaries. Any
tax on future distributtons will be limited to certain state taxes, which would be immaterial.

The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as an element of income tax expense. The
cumulative amounts related to interest and penalties are added to the total unrecognized tax liabilities on the balance sheet. The total
amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2017 that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is

$6.5 million. During 201 7, the Company recognized a net decrease of $1.1 million in liabilities. The Company does not expect any
significant release of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.

The Company accounts for its uncertain tax positions in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending
amounts of these tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

Beginning balance $ 7,574
Changc in tax positions of prior years (1,207)
Change in tax positions of current year 128

Ending Balance $ 6,495

The Company conducts business internationally and, as a result, one or more of its subsidiaries files income tax retums in U.S. federal,
U.S. state and certain foreign jurisdictions. Accordingly, in the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by
taxing authorities principally throughout the United States, Guam and Canada. The Company is no longer under examination by the
taxing authority regarding any U.S. federal income tax returns for years before 2011 while the years open for examination under
various state and local jurisdictions vary.
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4. Gooedwili and Other Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had $585.0 million of goodwill allocated to its reporting units as follows: Civil, $415.3
million; Building, $13.5 million; and Specialty Contractors, $156.2 million. The balances presented include historical accumulated
impairment of $76.7 million for the Civil segment and $411.3 million for the Building segment.

In addition, as of December 31, 2017, the Company had the following: (1) non-amortizable trade names with a carrying value of $50.4
million; (2) amortizable trade names with a gross carrying value of $51.1 million and accumulated amortization of $16.3 million; and
(3) amortizable customer relationships with a gross carrying value of $23.2 million and accumulated amortization of $18.9 million.
Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2017 totaled $3.5 million. Future
amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets will be approximately $3.5 million per year for the years 2018 through
2021 and $2.6 million for the year 2022,

The weighted-average amortization period for amortizable trade names and customer relationships is 20 years and 12 years,
respectively.

8. Financial Commitments
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2017 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2017 Senior Notes 3 492,734

2017 Credit Facility

2010 Senior Notes

2014 Revolver

Term Loan

Convertible Notes 161,635

Equipment financing and morigages 76,820

Other indebtedness i3 _ 5087
Total debt 736,276

Less: Current maturities (30,748)

Long-term debt, net $ 705,528

The following table reconciles the outstanding debt balance to the reported debt balances as of December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Outstanding Unamortized Long-Term

Long-Term Discount and Bebt,
{in thousands) Debt Issuance Costs as reported
2017 Senior Notes $ 500000 S {7.266) § 492,734
Convertible Notes 200,000 (38,365) 161,635

The unamortized issuance cost related to the 2017 Credit Facility was $6.2 million as of December 31, 2017 and is included in other
assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

2017 Senior Notes

On April 20, 2017, the Company issued $500 million in aggregate principal amount of 6 875% Senior Notes due 2025 (the 2017
Senior Notes") in a private placement. [nterest on the 2017 Sentor Notes is payable in arrears semi-annually in May and November of
each year, beginning in November 2017.

Prior to May 1, 2020, the Company may redeem the 2017 Senior Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of their principal amount
plus a “make-whole” premium described in the indenture. In addition, prior to May 1, 2020, the Company may redeem up to 40% of
the original aggregate principal amount of the notes at a redemption price of 106.875% of their principal amount with the proceeds
received by the Company from any offering of the Company’s equity. After May 1, 2020, the Company may redeem the 2017 Senior
Notes at specified redemption prices described in the indenture. Upon a change of control, holders of the 2017 Senior Notes may
require the Company to repurchase all or part of the 2017 Senior Noies al 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to the redemption date.
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The 2017 Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s
existing and future subsidiaries that also guarantee obligations under the Company's 2017 Credit Facility, as defined below. In
addition, the indenture for the 2017 Senior Notes provides for customary covenants, including events of default and restrictions on the
payment of dividends and share repurchases.

2017 Credit Facility

On April 20, 2017, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “2017 Credit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank as Administrative
Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer and a syndicate of other lenders. The 2017 Credit Facility provides for a $350 million
revolving credit facility (the “2017 Revolver”) and a sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit and swingline loans up to the
aggregate amount of $150 million and $10 suillion, respectively, both maturing on April 20, 2022, unless any of the Convertible
Notes, as defined below, are outstanding on December 17, 2020, in which case all such borrowings will mature on December 17, 2020
(subject to certain further exceptions). [n addition, the 2017 Credit Facility permits additional borrowings in an aggregate amount of
$150 million, which can be in the form of increased capacity on the 2017 Revolver or the establishment of one or more terrn loans.

Borrowings under the 2017 Revolver bear interest, at the Company’s option, at a rate equa) to a margin over (a) the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a margin of between 1.50% and 3.00% or (b) a base rate (determined by reference to the highest of (i)
the administrative agent’s prime lending rate, (ii) the federal funds effective rate ptus 50 basis points, (iii) the LIBOR rate for a one-
month interest period plus 100 basis points and {iv) 0%), plus a margin of between 0.50% and 2.00%, in each case based on the
Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2017 Credit Facility). In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the
2017 Credit Facility, the Company will pay a commitment fee to the fenders under the 2017 Revolver in respect of the unutilized
commitments thereunder. The Company will pay customary letter of credit fees. If an event of default occurs and is continuing, the
otherwise applicable margin and letter of credit fees will be increased by 2% per annum. The weighted-average annual interest rate on
borrowings under the 2017 Revolver was approximately 3.89% during the vear ended December 31, 2017.

The 2017 Credit Facility contains customary covenants for credit facilities of this type, including maximum consolidated leverage
ratios ranging from 4.00:1.00 to 3.25:1.00 over the life of the facility and a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio of
1.25:1.00. Substantially all of the Company’s subsidiaries unconditionally guarantee the obligations of the Company under the 2017
Credit Facility; additionally, the obligations are secured by a lien on all personal property of the Company and its subsidiaries
guaranteeing these obligations.

As of December 31, 2017, there was $350.0 million available under the 2017 Revolver, and the Company had not utilized the 2017
Credit Facility for letters of credit. The Company was in compliance with the financial cavenants under the 2017 Credit Facility as of
December 31, 2017,

Repurchase and Redemption of 2010 Senior Notes and Termination of 2014 Credit Facility

On April 20, 2017, the Company uscd proceeds from the 2017 Senior Notes and 2017 Revolver lo repurchase or redecm its 2010
Senior Notes, to pay off its Term Loan and 2014 Revolver, and to pay accrued but unpaid interest and fees. In addition, the indenture
governing the 2010 Senior Notes was satisfied and discharged, and the Company terminated the 2014 Credit Facility.

2010 Senior Notes

On October 20, 2010, the Company issued $300 million of 7.625% Senior Notes due November 1, 2018 (the “2010 Senior Notes™) in
a private placement offering. As discussed above, on April 20, 2017, the Company repurchased or redeerned the 2010 Senior Notes in
full and the related indenture was satisfied and discharged.

2014 Credit Facility

On June 5, 2014, the Company entered into a Sixth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as amended (the “2014 Credit
Facility”), with Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer and a syndicate of other lenders.
The 2014 Credit Facility provided for a $300 million revolving credit facility (the *2014 Revolver™), a $250 million term loan (the
“Term Loan") and a sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit up to the aggregate amount of $150 million, all maturing on May 1,
2018, Borrowings under both the 2014 Revolver and the Term Loan bore interest based either on Bank of America’s prime lending
rate or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), each plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.25% to 3.00%, contingent upon
the latest Consolidated Leverage Ratio.

As discussed above, on April 20, 2017, the Company repaid all borrowings under the 2014 Credit Facility and concurrently terminated
the facility.
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Convertible Notes

On June 15, 2016, the Company issued $200 million of 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2021 (the “Convertible Notes")
in a private placement offering. The Convertible Notes are unsecured obligations and do not contain any financial covenants or
restrictions on the payments of dividends, the incurrence of indebtedness or the issuance or repuschase of securities by the Company.
The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.875% per year, payable in cash semi-annually in June and December.

To account for the Convertible Notes, the Company applied the provisions of ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options
(“ASC 470-20"). ASC 470-20 requires issuers of certain convertible debt instruments that may be seftled in cash upon conversion to
separately account for the liability (debt) and equity (conversion option) components of the instrument in a manner that reflects the
issuer’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate. This is done by allocating the proceeds from issuance to the liability component based on
the fair value of the debt instrument excluding the conversion feature, with the residual allocated to the equity component and
classified in additional paid in capital. The $46.8 million difference between the principal amount of the Convertible Notes ($3200.0
million) and the proceeds initially aliocated to the liability component ($153.2 million) is treated as a discount on the Convertible
Notes. This difference is being amortized as non-cash interest expense using the interest method, as discussed below under Inferest
Expense. The equity component, however, is not subject to amortization nor subsequent remeasurement.

In addition, ASC 470-20 requires that the debt issuance costs associated with a convertible debt instrument be allocated between the
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the debt proceeds between these two components. The debt issuance
costs attributable to the liability component of the Convertible Notes ($5.1 million) are also treated as a discount on the Convertible
Notes and amortized as non-cash interest expense. The debt issuance costs attributable to the equity component (31.5 million) were
netted with the equity component and will not be amortized.

The following table presents information related to the liability and equity components of the Convertible Notes as of December 31,
2017 (in thousands):

Liability component:
Principal $ 200,000
Conversion feature (46,800)
Allocated debt issvance costs (5,851)
___Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs (non-cash interest expense) 13,486
Nel carying amount b 161,635
Equity component:
Conversion feature 5 46,800
Allocated debt issuance costs (1,543)
Deferred taxes : . (18,815}
Net carrying amount b 26,442

Prior to January 15, 2021, the Convertible Notes wili be convertible only under the following circumstances: (1) during the five
business day period after any ten consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible
Notes for such trading day was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the Company's Common Stock and the
conversion rate on each such trading day; (2) if the last reported sale price of the Common Stock for at teast 20 trading days (whether
or not consecutive} during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding
calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion rate of 33.0579 (or $39.32) on cach applicable trading day; or (3)
upon the occurrence of specified corporate events. On or afier January 15, 2021 until the close of business on the second scheduled
trading day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may convert all or any portion of their nates, in multiples of $1,000
principal amount, at the option of the holder regardless of the foregoing circumstances,

The Convertible Notes will be convertible at an initial conversion rate of 33.0579 shares of the Company’s Common Stock per $1,000
principal amount of the Convertible Noles, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $30.25. The conversion
rate will be subject to adjustment for some events but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following
certain corporate events that occur prior to the maturity date, the Company is required to increase, in certain circumstances, the
conversion rate for a holder who elects to convert their Convertible Notes in connection with such a corporate event including
customary conversion rate adjustments in connection with a “make-whole fundamental change™ described in the indenture. Upon
conversion, and at the Company’s election, the Company may satisfy its conversion obligation by paying or delivering, as applicable,
cash, shares of its Common Stock or a combination of cash and shares of its Common Stock. As of December 31, 2017, the
conversion provisions of the Convertible Notes have net been triggered.
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Equipment Financing and Mortgages

The Company has certain loans entered into for the purchase of specific property, plant and equipment and secured by the assets
purchased. The aggregate balance of equipment financing loans was approximately $61.1 million as of December 31, 2017, with
interest rates ranging from 1.90% to 5.93% with equal monthly installment payments over periods up to ten years with additional
balloon payments of $12.4 million in 2021 and $6.3 million in 2022 on the remeining loans outstanding at December 31, 2017. The
aggregate balance of mortgage loans was approximately $15.7 million as of December 31, 2017, with interest rates ranging from a
fixed 2.50% to LIBOR plus 3% and equal monthly installment payments over periods up to seven years with additional balioon
payments of $2.6 million in 2018, $2.9 million in 2021 and $7.0 million in 2023.

The following table presents the future principal payments required under all of the Company’s debt obligations, discussed above (in
thousands):

Year
2018 5 30,748
2019 12,194
2020 5321
2021 218,868
2022 7,457
Thereafter 507,319
781,907
Less: Unamortized discount and issuance costs (45631)
Total b 736,276

Interest Expense

Interest Expense as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2017 consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Cash interest expense:

Interest on 2017 Senior Notes s 23,967
Interest on 2017 Credit Facility 5517
Interest on 2010 Senior Notes 6,926
Interest on 2014 Credit Facility 4,455
Interest on Convertible Notes 5,750
Other interest 3,261
_Cash portion of loss on extinguishment 1913
Total cash interest expense 51,789
Non-cash interest expense’™:
Amortization of debt issuance costs on 2017 Senior Notes 516
Amortization of debt issuance costs on 2017 Credit Facility 962
Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs on 2010 Senior Notes 308
Amortization of debt issuance costs on 2014 Credit Facility 1,703
Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs on Convertible Notes 8,967
Non-cash portion of loss on extinguishment 5,139
Total non-cash interest expense 17.595
Total interest expense 3 69,384

(2) The combination of cash and non-cash interest expense produces effective interest rates that are higher than contractual rates.
Accordingly, the effective interest rates for the 2017 Senior Notes and the Convertible Notes were 7.13% and 9.39%,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Leases

The Company leases certain construction equipment, vehicles and office space under non-cancellable operating leases, with future
minimum rent payments as of December 31, 2017 as follows (in thousands):

Year
2018 L3 18,420
2019 12,424
2020 8,980
2021 6,240
2022 5,524
Thereafier 14,898
66,486
Less: Sublease rental agreements e (2,201}
Total 5 64,195

Rental expense under operating leases of construction equipment, vehicles and office space was $27.4 million in 2017.
6. Contingencies and Commitments

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are involved in litigation and are contingently liable for commitments and performance
guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company and certain of its customers have made claims arising from the
performance under their contracts. The Company recognizes certain significant claims for recovery of incurred cost when it is
probable that the claim will result in additional contract revenue and when the amount of the claim can be reliably estimated. These
assessments require judgments concerning matters such as litigation developments and outcomes, the anticipated outcome of
negotiations, the number of future claims, and the cost of both pending and future claims. In addition, because most contingencies are
resolved over long periods of time, assets and liabilities may change in the future due to various factors. Management believes that,
based on current information and discussions with the Company’s legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Several matters are in the litigation and dispute resolution process. The following discussion provides a background and current status
of the more significant matters.

Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Matter

The Company reconstructed the Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Interchange for the New York State Department of
Trensportation {the “NYSDOT"). The $130 million project was substantially completed in January 2004 and was accepted by the
NYSDOT as complete in February 2006. The Company incurred significant added costs in completing its work and suffered extended
schedule costs due to numerous design errors, undisclosed utility conflicts, lack of coordination with local agencies and other
interferences for which the Company believes the NYSDOT is responsible.

In March 2011, the Company filed its claim and complaint with the New York State Court of Claims and served to the New York
State Attorney General’s Office, seeking damages in the amount of $53.8 million. In May 2011, the NYSDOT filed a motion to
dismiss the Company’s claim on the grounds that the Company had not provided required documentation for project closeout and
filing of a claim. In Seplember 2011, the Company reached agreement on final payment with the Comptroller’s Office on behalf of the
NYSDOT, which resulted in an amount of $0.5 million payable to the Company and formally closed out the project allowing the
Company to rc-file its claim. The Company re-filed its claim in the amount of $53.8 million with the NYSDOT in February 2012 and
with the Court of Claims in March 2012. [n May 2012, the NYSDOT served ils answer and counterclaims in the amount of

$151 million alleging fraud in the inducement and punitive damages related to disadvantaged business enterprise (“DBE")
requirements for the project. The Court subsequently ruled that NYSDOT's counterclaims may only be asserted as a defense and
offsect to the Company's claims and not as affirmative claims. In November 2014, the Appellate Division First Department affirmed
the dismissal of the City’s affirmative defenses and affirmative counterclaims based on DBE fraud. The Company docs not expect the
counterclaims to have any material effect on its consolidated financial statements. Discovery was completed during 2017 and the
Company is currently awailing the establishment of a trial date.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded

to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.
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Fontainebleau Matter

Desert Mechanical, Inc. (“"DMI") and Fisk Electric Company (“Fisk"}, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
subcontractors or: the Fontainebleau Project in Las Vegas (“Fonteinebleau”), a hotel/casino complex with approximately 3,800 rooms.
In June 2009, Fontainebleau filted for bankruptcy protection, under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankrupicy Code, in the Southern District
of Florida.

DMI and Fisk filed liens in Nevada for approximately $44 million, representing unreimbursed costs to date and lost profits, including
anticipated profits. Other unaffiliated subcontractors have also filed liens. In June 2009, DMI filed suit against Turnberry West
Construction, Inc., the general contractor, in the 8th Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada (the “District Court™), and in

May 2010, the court entered an order in favor of DMI for approximately $45 million.

In January 2010, the Bankruptcy Court approved the sale of the property to Icahn Nevada Gaming Acquisition, LLC, and this
transaction closed in February 2010. As a result of a July 2010 ruling relating to certain priming liens, there was approximately

$125 million set aside from this sale that is available for distribution to satisfy the creditor claims based on seniority. At that time, the
total estimated sustainable lien amount was approximately $350 million. The project tender filed suit against the mechanic’s lien
claimants, including DMI and Fisk, alleging that certain mechanic's liens are invalid and that all mechanic’s liens are subordinate to
the lender's claims against the property. The Nevada Supreme Court ruled in October 2012 in an advisory opinion at the request of the
Bankruptcy Court that lien priorities would be determined in favor of the mechanic lien holders under Nevada law.

In October 2013, a settlement was reached by and among the Statutory Lienholders and the other interested parties. The Bankruptcy
Court appointed a mediator to facilitate the execution of that settlement agreement, but the parties were unable to settle. During the
third quarter of 2017, DMI filed a motion seeking permission to file an action in Nevada; the motion was granted by the Bankruptcy
Court.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges Matter

In 1999, the Company was awarded a contract for reconstruction of the Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges project for the
City of New York (the “City™). In June 2003, afier substantial completion of the project, the Company initiated an action {o recover
$8.8 million in claims against the City on behaif of itself and its subcontractors. In March 2010, the City filed counterclaims for
$74.6 million and other relief, alleging fraud in connection with the DBE requirements for the project. In May 2010, the Company
served the City with its response to the City’s counterclaims and affirmative defenses. In August 2013, the Court granted the
Company's motion to dismiss the City’s affirmative defenses and counterclaims relating to fraud.

In January 2017, the Court granted the City's molion for summary judgment and dismissed the Company’s claim against the City. The
Company has filed a notice of appeal. The Court also granted the Company’s motion for summary judgment for relcase of retention
plus interest from 2010 for an aggregate amount of approximately $1.2 million, which the City paid during the fourth quarter of 2017,

The Company does not expect ultimate resolution of this matter to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
Woestgate Planet Hollywood Matter

Tutor-Saliba Corporation (“TSC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was contracted to construct a timeshare development
project in Las Vegas, which was substantially completed in December 2009. The Company’s claims against the owner, Westgate
Planet Hollywood Las Vegas, LLC (“"WPH"), relate lo unresolved owner change orders and other claims. The Company filed a lien on
the project in the amount of $23.2 million and filed its complaint with the District Court, Clark County, Nevada, Several
subcontractors have also recorded liens, some of which have been released by bonds and some of which have been released as a result
of subsequent payment. WPH has posted a mechanic’s lien release bond for $22.3 million.

WPH filed a cross-complaint alleging non-conforming and defective work for approximately $51 million, primarily related to alleged
defects, misallocated costs and liquidated damages. WPH revised the amount of their counterclaims to approximately $45 million.

Following multiple post-trial motions, final judgment was entered in this matter on March 20, 2014. TSC was awarded total judgment
in the amount of $19.7 million on its breach of contract claim, which includes an award of interest up through the date of judgment,
plus attomey's fees and costs. WPH was awarded total judgment in the amount of $3.1 million on its construction defect claims,
which includes interest up through the date of judgment. WPH and its Sureties have filed a notice of appeal. TSC has filed a notice of
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appeal on the defect award. In July 2014, the Court ordered WPH to post an additional supersedeas bond on appeal, in the amount of
$1.7 million, in addition to the lien release bond of $22.3 million, which increases the security up to $24.0 million. In May 2017, the
Nevada Supreme Court issued its ruling on the appeal by WPH and its Sureties. With only minor adjustments, the Nevada Supreme
Court affirmed the lower district court’s judgment, and following further proceedings in the lower district court, the anticipated final
recovery to the Company is estimated to exceed $20 million, including interest and recovery of certain attorneys’ fees and costs, of
which the Company collected more than $16 million in 2017. In December 2017 and in January 2018, the Court issued severai post-
appeal orders confirming its previous rulings.

The Company does not expect ultimate resolution of this matter to have any material effect on its consolidated financial staternents.
Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Matter

Rudolph and Sletten, Inc. (“R&S"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract with the United States
Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“NOAA”) for the construction of a 287,000 square-
foot facility for NOAA's Southwest Fisheries Science Center Replacement Headquarters and Laboratory in La Jolla, California. The
contract work began on May 24, 2010 and was substantially completed in September 2012. R&S incurred significant additional costs
as a result of design errors and omissions, NOAA's unwillingness to correct design flaws in a timely fashion and a refusal to negotiate
the time and pricing associated with change order work. R&S filed claims against NOAA for contract adjustments related to the
unreselved owner change orders, delays, design deficiencies and other claims.

In March 2017, the parties agreed to a proposed settlement, which was subsequently approved and paid by the government in the third
quarter of 2017, The settlement did not have a material impact on the Company's financial results for the year ended December 31,
2017.

Five Star Electric Matter

In the third quarter of 2015, Five Star Electric Corp. ("Five Star"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that was acquired in
2011, entered into a tolling agreement (which has since expired) related to an ongoing investigation being conducted by the United
States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York (*USAO EDNY™). Five Star has been cooperating with the USAO
EDNY since late June 2014, when it was first made aware of the investigation, and has provided information requested by the
government related to its use of certain minority-owned, women-owned, small and disadvantaged business enterprises and certain of
Five Star’s employee compensation, benefit and tax practices.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of the investigation and cannot reasonably estimate the
potential loss or range of loss that Five Star or the Company may incur or the impact of the results of the investigation on Five Star or
the Company.

Alaskan Way Viaduct Matter

In January 2011, Seattle Tunnel Partners (“STP"), a joint venture between Dragados USA, Inc. and the Company, entered inlo a
design-build contract with the Washington Statc Department of Transperiation (“WSDOT”) for the construction of a large diameter
bored tunnel in downtown Seattle, King County, Washington to replace the Alaskan Way Viaduct, also known as State Route 99.

The construction of the large diameter bored tunnel required the use of a tunnel boring machine (“TBM"). In December 2013, the
TBM struck a steel pipe, installed by WSDOT as a well casing for an exploratory well. The TBM was damaged and was required to be
shut down for repair. STP has asserted that the steel pipc casing was a differing site condition that WSDOT failed to properly disclose.
The Disputes Review Board mandeted by the contract to hear disputes issued a decision finding the steel casing was a Type I differing
site condition. WSDOT has not accepted that finding.

The TBM was insured under a Builder’s Risk Insurance Policy (the “Policy”) with Great Lakes Reinsurance (UK) PLC and a
consortium of other insurers (the “Insurers™). STP submiited the claims to the Insurers and requested interim payments under the
Policy. The Insurers refused to pay and denied coverage. In June 2015, STP filed a lawsuit in the King County Superior Court, State
of Washington (“Washington Superior Court™) secking declaratory relief concerning contract interpretation, as well as damages as a
result of the Insurers’ breach of their obligations under the terms of the Policy. WSDOT is deemed a plaintiff since WSDOT is an
insured under the Policy and had filed its own claim for damages. Hitachi Zosen (“Hitachi™), the manufacturer of the TBM, has also
joined the case as a plaintiff for costs incurred to repair the damages to the TBM. Trial is scheduled for October 2018. Discovery is
ongoing.
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In March 2016, WSDOT fited a cornplaint against STP in Thurston County Superior Court for breach of contract alleging STP's
delays and failure to perform and declaratory relief conceming contract interpretation. STP filed its answer to WSDOT’s complaint
and filed a counterclaim against WSDOT and Hitachi. Trial is set for April 2019. Discovery is ongoing.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company has conciuded that the potential for a material adverse financial impact due to the Insurers’
denial of coverage and WSDOT's legal actions is neither probable nor remote, and the potential loss or range of loss is not reasonably
estimable. With respect to STP's claims against the Insurers, WSDOT and Hitachi, management has included an estimate of the total
anticipated recovery, concluded to be both probable and reliably estimable, in receivables or costs and estimated eamings in excess of
billings recorded to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recoveries vary from the estimate, the impact of the
change will be reflected in the financial statements at that time.

7. Other Income, Net

On May 31, 2017, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated
(“Merrill Lynch™), as successor in interest to Banc of America Securities LLC and Bank of America, N.A. (collectively “BofA™), to
resolve the pending litigation between the Company and Mermill Lynch. The litigation, which was filed by the Company in 2011,
related to the purchase by the Company of certain auction-rate securities from BofA.

On June 6, 2017, the Company received the $37.0 million cash settlernent payment agreed to in the settlement agreement, and the
pending litigation was dismissed with prejudice. Neither party made any admission of liability or wrongdoing, and the settlement
agreement includes mutual releases of all claims and liabilities related to the subject matter of the pending litigation.

The Company recognized the settlement as a gain during the second quarter of 2017 and reported it as a component of other income,
net in its Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2017,

8. Share-Based Compensation

On April 3, 2017, the Company adopted the Tutor Perini Corporation Incentive Compensation Plan {“Compensation Plan™), which
was approved by the Company’s shareholders on May 24, 2017. Additionally, the Company's Amended and Restated Tutor Perini
Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan™ together with Compensation Plan the “Plans™) is still active. The Plans
provide for various types of share-based grants, including restricted and unrestricted stock units and stock options. Restricted and
unrestricted stock units give the holder the right to exchange their stock units for shares of the Company’s Common Stock on a one-
for-one basis. Per the Plans, stock options give the holder the right to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock subsequent to
the grant date at a defined exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of the
stock option’s award. Restricted stock units and stock options are usually subject to certain service and performance conditions and
may not be sold or otherwise transferred until those restrictions have been satisfied; however, unrestricted stock units have no such
restrictions. The term for stock options is limited to 10 years from the date of grant. The Compensation Plan allows for 2,335,000
shares of the Company’s Common Stock to be issued. As of Dccember 31, 2017, there were 1,554,364 sharcs available to be granted
under the Compensation Plan and 405,529 shares authorized to be issucd under the Incentive Plan; however, as discussed in the
Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement (Schedule 14A) filed on April 13, 2017, the Company will not issue the 405,529 shares
remaining in the Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2017, the Incenlive Plan had an aggregate of 4,360,018 of restricted stock units
and stock options from outstanding, historical awards that either have not vested or have vested but have not been exercised.

The terms of the Plans give the Company the right to settle the vesting of share-based grants in cash or shares. During the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company paid approximately $0.6 million to settle share-based awards.

Many of the awards issued under the Plans contain separate tranches, each for a scparate performance period and each with a
performance target to be established subsequent to the award date; accordingly, the tranches are accounted for under ASC 718, Stock
Compensation (“ASC 718"} as separate grants, with the grant date being the date the performance targets for a given tranche are
established and communicated to the grantee. Similarly, for these awards, compliance with the requirements of the Plan is also based
on the number of unils granted in a given year, as determined by ASC 718, rather than the number of units awarded in a given year.
As a result, as of December 31, 2017, the Company had outstanding awards with 214,000 restricted stock units and 194,000 stock
options that had not been granted yet. These units will be granted in 2018 and 2019 when the performance targets for those respective
years are established.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock unit and stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2017:

Restrictad Stock Units Stock Options
Weighted- ‘Weighted-
Average Average
Grant Date Exercise/
Falr Value (Strike) Price
Number Per Share Number Per Share
Qutstanding as of December 31, 2016 1,156,484 3 22.64 2,174,500 § 19.50
Granted 1,064,000 30.02 539,000 24.54
Expired or cancelled (20,985) 23.91 (19,466) 26.56
Vested/exercised (801.515) 19.38 (140,000} 21.41
QOutstanding as of December 31, 2017 1,397,984 § 30.11 2,554,034 $ 20.45

The Company issued 99,155 unrestricted stock units at a weighted-average grant date fair value per share of $26.26 to the non-
employee members of the Company’s Board of Directors as part of their annual retainer fees. The fair value of unrestricted stock units
issued during 2017 was approximately $2.6 million.

The fair value of restricted stock units that vested during 2017 was approximately $25.3 million. The aggregate intrinsic value,
representing the difference between the market value on the date of exercise and the option price of the stock options exercised during
2017 was $1.3 million, with a corresponding tax benefit of $0.6 million. As of December 31, 2017, the balance of unamortized
restricted stock and stock option expense was $22.5 million and $3.7 million, respectively, which will be recognized over weighted-
average periods of 2.6 years for restricted stock units and 2.2 years for stock options.

The 2,554,034 outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2017 had an intrinsic value of $13.6 million and a weighted-average
remaining contractual life of 4.4 years. Of those outstanding options: a) 1,988,034 were exercisable with an intrinsic value of $12.8
million, a weighted-average exercise price of $19.31 per share and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 3.3 years;

b} 566,000, with an intrinsic value of $0.7 million, a weighted-average exercise price of $24.27 and a weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 8.2 years, have been granted but have not vested; and c) of the 566,000 granted but unvested options, 527,816 are
expected to vest.

The fair value on the grant date and the significant assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for stock option
awards granted during 2017 are as follows:

Total stock options granted 539,000
Weighted-average grant date fair value b 13.11
Weighted-average assumptions:
Risk-free rate 1.81 %
Expected life of options® 4.8
Expected volatility® 43.09 %
Expected quarterly dividends 3 :

(a) Calculated using the simplified method due to the terms of the stock options and the limited pool of grantees.
(b) Calculated using historical volatility of the Company’s Common Stock over pericds commensurate with the expected life of the
option.

For the year ended Decernber 31, 2017, the Company recognized, as part of general and administrative expenses, costs for share-based
payment arrangements for employees of $19.6 million and costs for share-based awards to non-employee directors of $1.6 million.
The aggregate tax benefit for these awards was approximately $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

9. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan that covers certain of its executive, professional, administrative and clerical
employces, subject to certain specified service requirements. The plan is noncontributory and benefits are based on an employee’s
years of service and “final average eamings,” as defined by the plan. The plan provides reduced benefits for early retirement and takes
into account offsets for social security benefits. The Company also has an unfunded supplemental retirement plan (“Benefit

Equalization Plan™) for certain employces whose benefits under the defined benefil pension plan were reduced because of
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compensation limitations under federal tax laws. Effective June 1, 2004, all benefit accruals under the Company’s pension plan and
Benefit Equalization Plan were frozen; however, the current vested benefit was preserved. Pension disclosure as presented below
includes aggregated amounts for both of the Company’s plans, except where otherwise indicated.

The Company historically has used the date of its year-end as its measurement date to determine the funded status of the plan.

The long-term investment goals of the Company’s plan are to manage the assets in accordance with the legal requirements of all
applicable laws; produce investment returns which maximize retumn within reasonable and prudent levels of risks; and achieve a fully
funded status with regard to current pension liabilities. Some risk must be assumed in order to achieve the investment goals.
Investments with the ability to withstand short and intermediate term variability are considered and some interim fluctuations in
market value and rates of return are tolerated in order to achieve the plan’s longer-term ohjectives.

The pension plan’s assets are managed by a third-party investment manager. The Company monitors investment performance and risk
on an ongoing basis.

A summary of net periodic benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

Interest cost L 3,919
Service cost 850
Expected return on plan assets (4,358)
Recognized net actuarial losses 1,897
Net periodic benefit cost b 2,308
Actuarial assumptions used to determine net cost:
Discount rate 3.90 %
Expected return on assets 6.00 %
Rate of increase in compensation N/A

The target asset allocation for the Company’s pension plan by asset category for 2018 and the actual asset allocation as of December
31, 2017 by asset category are as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
Target Actual
Allocation Allgcation
Asset Category 2018 2017
Cash 5% 3%
Equity funds:
Domestic 37 41
International 28 3t
Fixed income funds 30 25
Total 100 % 100 %

As of December 31, 2017, plan assets included approximately $30.7 million of investments in hedge funds and equity partnerships
which do not have readily determinable fair values. The underlying holdings of the funds were comprised of a combination of assets
for which the estimate of fair value is determined using information provided by fund managers.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $2.8 million to its defined benefit pension plan in 2018,

Future benefit payments under the plans are estimated as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2018 3 6,748
2019 6,798
2020 6,781
2021 6,785
2022 6,724
2023-2027 32410
Total $ 66243
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the fair value of plan assets and plan benefit obligations during 2017
and a summary of the funded status as of December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Balance at beginning of year b 66,057
Actual return on plan assels 9,224
Company contribution 2,838
Benefit payments {6,578}
Balance at end of year 8 71,541

Change in Benefit Obligations

Balance at beginning of vear $ 103,681
Interest cost 3919
Service cost 850
Assumption change (gain) loss 3,854
Actuarial {gain} loss 492
Benefitpayments e e e e i e s s o e N6, 8]
Balance at end of year ¥ 106,218
Funded status $ {34677}
Net unfunded amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet consist of:

Current liabilities b (279)

Long-term liabilities (34,398)
Total net unfunded amount recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet $ (34,677}

Amounts not yet recognized in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of net actuarial
losses before income taxes of $58.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

In 2017, net other comprehensive income of $2.4 million consisted of reclassification adjustments for the amortization of previously
existing actuarial losses and net actuarial gains arising during the period.

The estimated amount of the net accumulated loss (consisting of net actuarial losses) that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive loss into net period benefit cost in 2018 is $2.1 million.

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation was 3.5% as of December 31, 2017. The
discount rate used for the accumulated post-retirement obligation was derived using a blend of U.S. Treasury and high-quality
corporate bond discount rates.

The expecied long-term rate of return on assets assumption was 6.0% for 2017. The expected long-term rate of return on assets
assumption was developed considering forward looking capital market assumptions and historical return expectations for each asset
class assuming the plans’ target asset allocation and full availability of invested assets.

Fund strategies seek to capitalize on inefficiencies identified across different asset classes or markets. Hedge fund strategy types
include long-short, event-driven, multi-strategy, equity parinerships and distressed credit.

Pilan assets were measured at fair value. Registered investment companies are public investment vehicles valued using the Net Asset
Value (NAV) of shares held by the plan at year-end. Equity and fixed income funds are valued based on quoted market prices in active
markets. Closely held funds held by the plan, which are only available through private offerings, do not have readily determinable fair
values. Estimales of fair value of these funds were determined using the information provided by the fund managers and it is generally
based on the net asset value per share or its equivalent.
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The following table seis forth the plan assets as of December 31, 2017 at fair value in accordance with the fair value hierarchy
described in Note 10 (in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents 8 2390 % - $ — 3 2,390
Fixed income funds 18,031 - 18,031
__Equity funds 20,372 — — 20,372
$ 40,793 § — 3 $ 40,793
Closety held funds®
Equity parmerships 8,711
Hedge fund investments 22,037
Total closcly held funds™ 30.748
Total $ 40,793 § - § — 8 71,541

(8) Closely held funds in private investment were measured at fair value using NAV and were niot categorized in the fair value
hierarchy. Although the investments were not categorized within the fair value hierarchy, the holdings of these private investment
fuands were comprised of a combination of Level 1,2 and 3 investments, but were not categorized in the fair value hierarchy
because they were measured at NAV using the practical expedient under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement {"ASC 820™).

The plans have benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of each plan’s assets as of December 31, 2017 detailed as follows (in
thousands):

Benefit
Pension Equalization
Plan Plan Total
Projected benefit abligation $ 102,806 $ 3412 $ 106,218
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 102,806 § 3412 % 106,218
Eair value of plang’ assets 71,541 71,541

31,265 3412 § 34,677
31,265 $ 3412 % 34,677

1)
o

Projected benefit obligation greater then fair value of plans’ assets
Accumulated benefit obligation greater than fair valuc of plans' asscts

-]

Section 401(k) Plan

The Company has a contributory Section 401(k) plan which covers its executive, professional, administrative and clerical employees,
subject to certain specified service requirements. The cost recognized by the Company for its 401 (k) plan was $4.2 million in 2017.
The Company’s contribution is based on a non-discretionary match of employees’ contributions, as defined by the plan.

Multiemployer Plans

In addition to the Company’s defined benefit pension and contribution plans discussed above, the Company participates in
multiemployer pension plans for ils union construction employees. Contributions are based on the hours worked by employces
covered under various collective bargaining agreemenis. Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Acl, a contributor to a
multiemployer plan is only Hable for its proportionate share of a plan’s unfunded vested liability upon termination, or withdrawal
from, a plan. The Company currently has ne intention of withdrawing from any of the multiemployer pension plans in which it
participates and, therefore, has not recognized a liability for its proportionate share of any unfunded vested liabilities associated with
these plans.
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The following table summarize key information for the plans that the Company had significant involvement with during the year
ended December 31, 2017:

Espiratien
Peaslon Frme Date of
Protections Status Compaay Callective

EIN/Fension Act Zeme Peading Oc Contributivas'™ Surcharge Bargsiniag
Prosies Fuad Plas Nagiber Status Implememted {ip millisns) Impased Agreemest
The Pension, Hospitalization and Benefit Plan of the 13-6123601/001 Green NA $16.0 No 473072019
Electrical Industry - Pension Trust Fund
Carpenters Pension Trust Fund for Northern California 94-6050970 Red Implemented 8.2 No 6/30/2019
Laborers Pension Trust Fund for Northern California 94-6277608 Yellow Implemented 6.6 No 6/30/2019
Nonthern California Electrical Workers Pension Plan 94.6062674 Green NiA 5.2 No 5/31:2018
Steamfiners Industry Pension Fund 13-6149680/001 Green N/A 39 No 6/30/2020

(a) The Company's contributions as a percentage of total plan contributions were not available for any of its plans.

In addition to the individually significant plans described above, the Company also contributed approximately $32.1 million in 2017 to
other multiemployer pension plans.

10. Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820 prioritizes the use of inputs used in valuation techniques into the following three
levels:

» Level ] inputs are observable quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities
» Level 2 inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, but are not Level 1 inputs
e Level 3 inputs are unobservable

The following fair value hierarchy table presents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Fair Vatue Hizrarchy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash eguivalents™® 5 192868 3 - % —~ 5 192,868
Restricted cash® 4,780 4,780
Investments in licu of retainage®™ 69,891 2,405 72,296
Total $ 267539 § 2405 § $ 269,944

{a) Includes money market funds with original maturity dates of three months or less.

(b} Investments in lieu of retainage are included in accounts receivable and are comprised of money market funds and municipal
bonds, the majority of which are rated A3 or better. The fair values of the money market funds are measured using quoted market
prices; therefore, they are classified as Level 1 assets. The fair values of municipal bonds are measured using readily available
pricing sources for comparable instruments; therefore, they are classificd as Level 2 asscts. All of the above investments are
available-for-sale securities.

The Company did not have material transfers between Levels | and 2 during the year ended December 31, 2017,

The carrying values of receivables, payables and other amounts anising out of normal contract activities, including retainage, which
may be settied beyond one year, are estimated to approximate fair vaiue. The Company’s restricted investments carried at amortized
cost have an aggregate fair value of $52.5 million as of December 31, 2017, determined using Level 2 inpuls. OF the Company’s long-
term debt, the fair values of the 2017 Senior Notes as of December 31, 2017 was $537.5 million. The fair valuc of the Convertibic
Notes was $222.2 million as of December 31, 2017. The fair values of the 2017 Senior Notes and Convertible Notes were determined
using Level | inputs, specifically current observable market prices. The reported value of the Company’s remaining borrowings as of
December 31, 2017 approximates fair value.
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11. Variable Interest Entities

From time to time the Company may form joint ventures with third parties for the execution of single contracts or projects. In
accordance with ASC 810, the Company assesses its joint ventures at inception to determine if any meet the qualifications of a VIE.
The Company considers a joint venture a VIE if either (a) the total equity investment is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support, (b) characteristics of a controlling financial interest are missing (either the
ability to make decisions through voting or other rights, the obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity or the right to receive
the expected residual returns of the entity), or (c) the voting rights of the equity holders are not proportional to their obligations to
absorb the expected losses of the entity and/or their rights to recejve the expected residual retums of the entity, and substantially all of
the entity’s activities either involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights. Upon the
occurrence of certain events outlined in ASC B10, the company reassesses its initial determination of whether the joint venture is a
VIE.

ASC 810 also requires the Company to determine whether it is the primary beneficiary of the VIiE. The Company concludes that it is
the primary beneficiary and consolidates the VIE if the Company has both (a) the power to direct the economically significant
activities of the VIE and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of, or the right to receive benefits from, the VIE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. The Company considers the contractual agreements that define the ownership structure, distribution of profits
and losses, risks, responsibilities, indebtedness, voting rights and board representation of the respective parties in determining if the
Company is the primary beneficiary. The Company also considers all parties that have direct or implicit variable interests when
determining whether it is the primary beneficiary. In accordance with ASC 810, management’s assessment of whether the Company is
the primary beneficiary of a VIE is performed continuously.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet included current and noncurrent assets of $95.5 million and
$11.6 million, respectively, as well as current liabilities of $140.7 million related to the operations of its consolidated VIEs.

One large joint venture that the Campany is conselidating was established to construct the Purple Line Segment 2 Extension project, a
$1.4 billion mass-transit project in Los Angeles, California. The Company has a 75% interest in the joint venture with the remaining
25% held by O&G Industries, Inc. The joint venture was initially financed with contributions from the partners and, per the terms of
the joint venture agreement, the partners may be required to provide additicnal capital contributions in the future.

12. Business Segments

The Company offers general contracting, pre-construction planning and comprehensive project management services, including
planning and scheduling of manpower, equipment, materials and subcontractors required for the timely completion of a project in
accordance with the terms and specifications contained in a construction contract. The Company also offers self-performed
construction services: site work; concrete forming and placement; steel erection; electrical, mechanical; plumbing; and heating,
ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC). As described below, the Company’s business is conducted through three segments: Civil,
Building and Specialty Contractors. These segments are determined based on how the Company's Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (chicf operating decision maker) aggregales business units when evaluating performance and allocating resources.

The Civil segment specializes in public works construction and the replacement and reconstruction of infrastructure. The civil
contracting services include construction and rehabilitation of highways, bridges, tunnels, mass-transit systems, and water
management and wastewaler (reatment facilities.

The Building segment has significant experience providing services for private and public works customers in a number of specialized
building markets, including: high-rise residential, hospitality and gaming, transportation, health care, commercial and government
offices, sports and entertainment, education, correctional facilities, biotech, pharmaceutical, industrial and high-tech.

The Specialty Contractors segment specializes in electrical, mechanical, plumbing, HVAC, firc protection systems and pneumalically
placed concrete for a full range of Civil and Building construction projects in the industrial, commercial, hospitality and gaming, and
mass-transit end markets. This segment provides the Company with unique strengths and capabilities that allow the Company to
position itself as a full-service contractor with greater control over scheduled work, project delivery and risk management.
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The following tables set forth certain reportable segment information relating to the Company's operations for the year ended
December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Reportable Segments

Specizlty Segment Consolidated
{in thousands) Civil Building Contractors Total Corporate Total
Total revenue § 1,856,164 § 1,982,857 § 1,213,708 § 5,052,729 § — § 5,052,729
Elimination of intersegment revenue {253.989) {41,532) e (295.521) — {295,521)

Revenue from extemal customers $ 1602175 § 1941,325 § 1,213,708 $ 4,757,208 § - § 4,757,208
Income froin construction operations ] 192,207 § 34,199 § 18938 § 245344 § (65,867)0% 179,477
Capital expenditures $ 27,694 § 267 § 721§ 28,682 § 1,598 % 30,280
Depreciation and amortization® [ 33,767 § 2,021 § 4,699 § 40,487 § 11,443 % 51,930

{a) Consists primarily of corporate general and administrative expenses.
(b) Depreciation and amortization is included in income from construction operations.

There were no material changes in estimates during the year ended December 31, 2017,

Total assets by segment as of December 31, 2017 are as follows (in thousands):

Civil $ 2,452,108
Building 909,207
Specialty Contractors 767,807
Corporate and other™ 135,001
Total assets § 4264123

(a) Consists principally of cash, equipment, tax-related assets and insurance-refated assets, offset by the elimination of assets related to
intersegment revenue.

Geographic Information

Information concerning principal geographic areas as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

Revenue:

United States $ 4,613,644
Foreign and U.S. territortes 143 564
Total revenue $ 4757208
Assets:

United States $ 4,093,673
Foreign and U.S. territories 170,450
Total assets $ 4,264,123

Reconciliation of Segment [nformation te Consolidated Amounts

A reconciliation of segment results to the consolidated income before income taxes for the year ended December 13, 2017 15 as
follows (in thousands):

Income from construction operations $ 179,477
Other income, net 43,882
Interest expense {69.384)
Incomne before income taxes $ 153,975
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13. Related Party Transactions

The Company leases, at market rates, certain facilities from an entity owned by Ronald N. Tutor, the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Under these leases, the Company paid $2.8 million and recognized expense of $3.2 million during the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Raymond R. Oneglia, Vice Chairman of O&G Industries, Inc. (“0&G™), is a director of the Company. The Company occasionally
forms construction project joint ventures with O&G, in which each partner may provide services and equipment to these joint ventures
on customary trade terms. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had three active joint ventures with O&G
including two infrastructure projects in the northeastern United States that are both complete, and one for a project in Los Angeles,
California in which the Company’s and O&G’s joint venture interests are 75% and 25%, respectively. Payments made by these joint
ventures to O&G for services and equipment during the year ended December 31, 2017 were immaterial.

Peter Arkley, Senior Managing Director, Construction Services Group, of Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. (*Alliant™), is 2 director of
the Company. The Company uses Alliant for various insurance-related services. The associated expenses for services provided for the
year ended December 31, 2017 were $17.6 million. The Company owed Alliant $0.5 million as of December 31, 2017 for services
rendered.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Tutor Perini Corporation
Sylmar, Califomia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tutor Perini Corporation and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2016. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tutor Perini Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The supplemental consolidating information on pages 31-34 has been subjected to audit procedures
performed in conjunction with the audit of the Company's consolidated financial statements. The
supplemental consolidating information is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our audit
procedures included determining whether the supplemental consolidating information reconciles to the
consolidated financial statements or the underlying accounting and other records, as applicable, and
performing procedures to test the completeness and accuracy of the information presented in the
supplemental consolidating information. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

e « Towde Ler

February 23, 2017
{March 31, 2017 as to the supplemental consolidating information)



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUE

COST OF OPERATIONS

GROSS PROFIT

General and administrative expenses

INCOME FROM CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS

Other income, net
Interest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Provision for income taxes

NET INCOME

BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

s 4,973,076
{4,515 886)

457,150
(255,270)

201,920

6917
(59,782)

149,115
{53,293)

h] 95,822

b 1.95

$ 1.92

49,150

49,864



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 131, 2016

{(In thousands)
NET INCOME 5 95,822
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TAX:
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments {2,623)
Foreign currency translation adjustment {261)
Unrealized loss in fair value of investments (340)
Unrealized loss in fair value of interest rate swap (24)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax (3,248)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 5 92,574

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statermnents.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash, including cash equivalents of $15,302
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, including retainage of $569,391
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
Other current assets

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land
Building and improvements
Construction equipment
Other equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total property and equipment, net
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable, including retainage of $258,294
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities, net of unamortized discount and debt issuance cost of $56,072

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred stock — authorized 1,000,000 shares (81 par value), none issued
Common stock — authorized 75,000,000 shares ($1 par value), issued and outstanding 49,211,353 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained carnings

Accurnulated other comprehensive loss
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

$ 146,103
50,504
1,743,300
831,826

66,023

2,837,756

41,382
124,157
444,153
181,717
791,409

(313,783)
477,626
585,006

92,997

45235

3 4.038,620

b3 85,890
994,016
331,112

107,925

1,518,943

673,629
131,007

162,018

2,485 597

49,211

1,075,600

473,625
{45.413)

1,553,023

$ 4018620

—————



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization of intangible assets

Share-based compensation expense

Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensation
Change in debt discount and deferred debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes

Loss on sale of property and equipment

Qther long-term liabilities

Other non-cash items

Changes in other components of working capital

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment excluding financed purchases

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Change in restricted cash
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Issuance of convertible notes
Proceeds from debt
Repayment of debt
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensation
Issuance of common stock and effect of cashless exercise
Debt issvance costs
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at ¢nd of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5 95,822

63,759
3,543

13,423
(269)

10,968

(10,169)

453

28,210

(1,874}

(90,530}

113,336

{15,743)
1,899
(4,651)
(18,495)

200,000
1,353,895
{1,562,684)

269

(584)

— (15,086)
(24,190)

70,651

75,452

b 146,103



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(In thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Paid-lo Retained Comprehensive
—Stgck _ Capita] = Earpings Loss Total

Balagnce - December 31, 2015 $ 49,073 § 1,035516 § 377,303 § (42,165} $ 1,420,227
Net income — 95,822 - 95,822
Other comprehensive loss (3,248) (3,248)
Tax effect of share-based compensation 457) - (457)
Share-based compensation expense 13,423 13,423
Issuance of common stock, net 138 676 - 814
Convertible note praceeds allocated to conversion option, net 26,442 — 26,442
Balance - December 31, 2016 $49211 $ 1075600 § 473625 $ (45413) § 1,553,023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financizl statements,



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America ("GAAP") as codified in the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (*FASB™) Accounting
Standards Codification (*ASC”).

(b} Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tutor Perini Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the
*Company"). The Company frequently forms joint ventures or partnerships with unrelated third parties for the execution of single
contracts or projects. The Company assesses its joint ventures or partnerships at inception to determine if they meet the qualifications
of a variable interest entity ("VIE") in accordance with ASC 810, Consolidation. If a joint venture or partnership is a VIE and the
Company is the primary beneficiary, the joint venture or partnership is fully consolidated. For construction joint ventures that do not
need to be consolidated, the Company accounts for its interest in the joint ventures using the proportionate consolidation method,
whereby the Company’s proportionate share of the joint ventures’ assets, liabilities, revenue and cost of operations are included in the
appropriate classifications in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP reguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts. These estimates are based on information available through the date of the issuance of the financial statements;
therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(d) Construction Contracts

The Company and its affiliated entities recognize construction contract revenue using the percentage-of-completion method, based
primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared to total estimated contract cost. Cost of revenue includes an allocation of
depreciation and amortization. Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred. Changes to total estimated contract cost or losses, if any,
are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its construction contracts with periods typically
extending for a limited duration following substantial completion of the Company’s work on & project. Historically, watranty claims
have not resulted in material costs incurred.

The Company classifies construction-related receivables and payables that may be settled in periods exceeding one year from the
balance sheet date as current, consistent with the length of time of its project operaling cycle. For example:

®  Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings represent the excess of contract costs and profits (or contract revenue) over
the amount of contract billings to date and are classified as a current asset.

» Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings represcat the excess of contract billings to date over the amount of contract
costs and profits (or contract revenue) recognized to date and are classified as a current liability.

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings result when either: 1) the appropriate contract revenue amount has been recognized
in accordance with the percentage-of-completion accounting method, but a portion of the revenue recorded cannot be billed currently
due to the billing terms defined in the contract, or 2) costs are incurred related to certain claims and unapproved change orders. Claims
occur when there is a dispute regarding both a change in the scope of work and the price associated with that change. Unapproved
change orders occur when a change in the scope of work results in additional work being performed before the parties have agreed on
the corvesponding change in the contract price. For bath claims and unapproved change orders, the Company recognizes revenue, but
not profit, when it is determined that recovery of incurred cost is probable and the amounts can be reliably estimated. For claims, these
requirements are satisfied under ASC 605-35-25 when the contract or other evidence provides a legal basis for the claim, additional
costs were caused by circumstances that were unforeseen at the contract date and not the result of deficiencies in the Company’s
performance, claim-related costs are identifiable and considered reasonable in view of the work performed, and evidence supporting
the claim or change order is objective and verifiable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

Reported costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2016 consists of the following (in thousands):

Claims $ 477425
Unapproved change orders 207,475
Other unbilled costs and profits 146,926

Total costs and estimated eamnings in excess of billings 3831826

The prerequisite for billing claims and unapproved change orders is the final resolution and agreement between the parties. The
prerequisite for billing other unbilled costs and profits is provided in the defined billing terms of each of the applicable contracts. The
amount of costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2016 estimated by management to be collected
beyond one year is approximately $414.7 million.

(e) Changes ir Estimates

The Company’s estimates of contract revenue and cost are highly detailed and many factors change during a contract performance
period that result in a change to contract profitability. These factors include, but are not limited 1o, differing site conditions;
availability of skilled contract labor; performance of major material suppliers and subcontractors; on-going subcontractor negotiations
and buyout provisions; unusual weather conditions; changes in the timing of scheduled work; change orders; accuracy of the original
bid estimate; changes in estimated labor productivity and costs based on experience to date; achievement of incentive-based income
targets; and the expected, or actual, resolution terms for claims. The factors that cause changes in estimates vary depending on the
maturation of the project within its lifecycle. For example, in the ramp-up phase, these factors typically consist of revisions in
anticipated project costs and during the peak and close-out phases, these factors include the impact of change orders and claims as
well as additional revisions in remaining anticipated project costs. Generally, if the contract is at an early stage of completion, the
current period impact is smaller than if the same change in estimate is made to the contract at a later stage of completion. Management
evaluates changes in estimates on a contract by contract basis and discloses significant changes, if material, in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The cumulative catch-up methed is used to account for revisions in estimates.

() Depreciation of Property and Equipment and Amortization of Long-Lived Intangible Assets

Property and equipment and long-lived intangible assets are depreciated or amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives ranging from three to forty years.

(g) Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances indicate that the future cash flows generated by the assets
might be less than the assets’ net carrying value. In such circumstances, an impairment loss will be recognized by the amount the
assets’ net carrying value exceeds their fair value.

(h) Recoverability of Goodwill

The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually for each reporting unit in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year, and between
annual tests if events occur or circumstances change which suggest that goodwill should be reevaluated. Such events or circurnstances
include significant changes in legal factors and business climate, rccent losses at a reporting unit, and industry trends, among othet
factors. The Civil, Building and Specialty Contractors segments each represent a reporting unit. We perform our annual quantitative
impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each year using a weighted average of an income and a market approach. The
income approach is based on estimated present value of future cash flows for each reporting unit, The market approach is based on
assumnptions about how market data relates to the Company. The weighting of these two approaches is based on their individual
correlation to the economics of each reporting unit. The quantitative assessment performed in 2016 resuited in an estimated fair value
for each of our reporting units that cxceeded their respective net book values; thercfore, no impairment charge was necessary for 2016.

(i) Recoverability of Non-Amertizable Trade Names

Certain trade names have an estimated indefinite life and are not amortized to earnings, but instead are reviewed for impairment
annually, or more often if events occur or circurnstances change which suggest that the non-amortizable trade names should be
recvaluated. We perform our annual quantitative impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each year using an income
approach (relief from royalty method). The quantitative assessment performed in 2016 resulted in an estimated fair value for the non-
amortizable trade names that exceeded their respective net book values; therefore, no impairment charge was necessary for 2016.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31,2016

(i} Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the effects of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the income tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect when such differences
reverse. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not threshold to be recognized. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of the income tax provision.

(k) Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Potentially dilutive securities include restricted stock units and stock options. Diluted EPS reflects the assumed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive securities using the treasury stock method. The calculations of the basic and diluted EPS for the year ended December 31,
2016 are presented below (in thousands, except per share data):

Net income $ 95822
Weighted-average common shares cutstanding - basic 49,150
Effect of diluted stock options and unvested restricted stock 714
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — diluted 49 864

Net income per share;

Basic 3 1.95
Diluted $ 1.92
Anti-dilutive securities not included above 1,132

With regard to diluted EPS and the impact of the Convertible Notes (as discussed in Note 5) on the diluted EPS calculation, because
the Company has the intent and ability to settle the principal amount of the Convertible Notes in cash, per ASC 260, Earnings Per
Share, the settlement of the principal amount has no impact on diluted EPS. ASC 260 also requires any potential conversion premium
associated with the Convertible Notes' conversion option to be considered in the calculation of diluted EPS when the Company's
average stock price, as defined in the indenture governing the Convertible Notes, is higher than 130% of the Convertible Notes’
conversion rate of 33.0579 (or $39.32); however, this was not the case during the year ended December 31, 20186.

() Cash and Cash Equivalenis and Restricted Cash

Cash equivaleats include short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when acquired. Cash
and cash equivalents, as reported in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet, consist of amounts held by the Company that are
available for general purposes and the Company’s proportionate share of amounts held by construction joint ventures that are available
only for joint-venture-related uses, including future distributions to joint-venture partners. Restricted cash is primarily held to secure
insurance-related contingent obligations, such as insurance claim deductibles, in licu of letters of credit,

Cash and cash cquivalents and restricled cash as of December 31, 2016 consisted of the [oliowing (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents § 49,539
Company's share of joint-venture cash and cash equivalents 96,564
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 146,103
Restricted cash $ 50,504

{m) Share-Based Compensation

The Company's long-term incentive plan allows the Company to grant share-based compensation awards in a variety of forms,
including restricted and unrestricted stock units and stock options. Restricted stock units and stock options generally vest subject to
service and/or performance requirements, with related compensation expense equal to the fair value of the award on the date of grant
and recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Unrestricted stock units are issued to the directors as part of
their annual service fee, vest immediately and are expensed over a 12-month service period.

.9.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

(n) Insurance Liabilities

The Company typically utilizes third party insurance coverage subject to varying deductible levels with aggregate caps on losses
retained. The Company assumes the risk for the amount of the deductible portion of the losses and liabilities primarily associated with
workers’ compensation and general liability coverage. In addition, on certain projects, the Company assumes the risk for the amount
of the deductible pertion of losses that arise from any subcontractor defaults. Losses are accrued based upon the Company's estimates
of the aggregate liability for claims incurred using historical experience and certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance

industry. The estimate of insurance liability within the deductible limits includes an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based
on data compiled from historical experience,

{0} Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its components in the
consolidated financial statements. The Company reports the change in pension benefit plans assets/liabilities, cumulative foreign
currency translation, change in fair value of investments and change in fair value of interest rate swap as components of accumulated
other comprehensive loss (“AOCI™).

The tax effects of the components of other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Before-Tax Net-of-Tax
—Amoynt ez Benefit _ Amount
Other comprehensive loss:

Defined benefit pension plan adjustments § (4452) § 1,829 3 (2,623)
Foreign currency translation adjustment {439) 178 (261)
Unrealized loss in fair value of investments (576) 236 (340)
Unrealized loss in fair value of interest rate swap (45) 21 (24)
Total other comprehensive loss 5 (5512) § 2264 § (3,248)

The changes in AOCI balances by component (after-tax) for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Unrealized
Unrealized Gala (Loss) In Accumulated
Defined Foreign Gain (Loss) in Fair Value of Other
Beneflt Curreocy Fair Value of Interest Rate Compreheasive
Pegsion Plan Translation Investipents Swap Loss
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ (38242) § (4,603) § 656 3 24 3 (42,165)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications (3,722) (261) (340) 24) {4,347)
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 1,099 - 1,099
Balance as of Decemnber 31, 2016 $ (40865) $ (4.864) % 316 § s (45,413)

The significant items reclassified out of AOCI during the yecar ended December 31, 2016 and the corresponding location and impact
on the Consolidated Statement of Operations are as follows (in thousands}):

Component of AQC]: cati lidated Statement

Defined benefit pension plan adjustments Various accounts $ 1,745
Income tax benefit Provision for income taxes (646)
Net of tax § 1,099

———

(p) New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issucd new accounting guidance which amended the existing accounting standards for revenue recognition.
The new accounting guidance establishes principles for recognizing revenuc upon the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers, in an amount that reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance
wili be effective for the Company as of January 1, 2018. The amendments may be applied retrospectively to each prior peried
presented or with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of initial application (modified retrospective method). The Company
is currently reviewing contracts within types of projects in order to determine the impact, if any, the adoption of this ASU will have on
its consolidated financial statcments. A number of industry-specific implementation issues are still unresolved and the final resolution

-10 -
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of certain of these issues could impact the Company's current accounting policies and/or revenue recognition patterns. The Company
currently expects to adopt this new standard using the modified retrospective method.

In January 2017, The FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), Simplifying the Test for Goodwill
Impairment. This ASU simplifies the calculation of goodwill impairment by eliminating Step 2 of the impairment test prescribed by
ASC 350. Step 2 requires companies to calculate the implied fair value of their goodwill by estimating the fair value of their assets,
other than goodwill, and liabilities, including unrecognized assets and liabilities, following the procedure that would be required in
determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. The calculated net fair value of the
assets would then be compared to the fair value of the reporting unit to determine the implied fair value of goodwill, and to the extent
that the carrying value of goodwill was less than the implied fair value, a loss would be recognized. Under ASU 2017-04, however,
goodwill is impaired when the calculated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, and the impairment charge will
equal that difference; i.e., impairment will be calculated at the reporting unit level and there will be no need to estimate the fair value
of individual assets and liabilities. This guidance will be effective for the Company for any goodwill impairment tests performed in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, however, early adoption is permitted for tests performed on testing dates after
January 1, 2017. The Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In the first quarter of 2016, the Company adopted ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) and applied the
guidance retrospectively. This ASU requires companies to present, in the balance sheet, debt issuance costs related to a recognized
debt liability as a direct deduction from the camrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with the presentation of debt discounts. In
addition, the amortization of debt discounts is required to be presented as a component of interest expense.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic-842), which amends the existing guidance in ASC 840 Leases.
This amendment requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases currently classified as operating
leases. Other significant provisions of the amendment include (i) defining the “lease term™ to include the non-cancellable period
together with periods for which there is a significant economic incentive for the lessee to extend or not terminate the lease; (ii)
defining the initial lease liability to be recorded on the balance sheet to contemplate only those variable lease payments that depend on
an index or that are in substance “fixed”; and (iii) a dual approach for determining whether lease expense is recognized on a straight-
line or accelerated basis, depending on whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant portion of the leased
asset’s economic benefits. This guidance will be effective for the Company as of January 1, 2019 and will be applied using the
modified retrospective transition method for existing leases. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of this
ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company elected to early adopt ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes
(Subtopic 740-10), as allowed for by the guidance. This ASU requires entities to present all deferred tax assets and all deferred tax
liabilities as noncurrent in a classified balance sheet. The Company applied the guidance retrospectively.

2. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Below are the changes in other components of working capital, as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the
supplemental disclosure of cash paid for interest and income taxes during the year ended December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

Decrease {Increase) in:

Accounts receivable $  (269,900)

Costs and estimated carnings in excess of billings 73,349

Other current assets 39,480
Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts payable 56,552

Billings in excess of costs and estimaled earnings 42,926

Accrued expenses {32937
Changes in other components of working capital §  (90,530)
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest ] 47,403

s S
Income taxes 5 26,908
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3.  Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy established by ASC B20, Fair Value Measurement, prioritizes the use of inputs used in valuation techniques
into the following three levels:

Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2 — inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 — unobservable inputs

The following table presents, for each of the fair value hierarchy levels required under ASC 820, the Company’s assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

Fajr Value Hierarchy
—. Total Level ] Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ® $ 146,103 § 146,103 § $
Restricted cash ® 50,504 50,504 .
Investments in lieu of customer retainage ® 51,266 46,855 4411 s
Total $ 247873 § 243462 § 4411 $

(a) Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash consists primarily of moncy market funds with original maturity dates of three months
or less measured using quoted market prices.

(b) Investments in lieu of customer retainage are classified as accounts receivable and are comprised of money market funds, U.S.
Treasury Notes and other municipal bonds, the majority of which are rated Aa3 or better, The fair value of money market funds is
measured using quoted market prices; therefore they are classified as Level 1 assets. The fair values of the U.S. Treasury Notes
and municipal bonds are measured using readily available pricing sources for comparable instruments; therefore, they are
classified as Level 2 assets.

The Company did not have material transfers between Levels | and 2 for either financial assets or liabilities during the year ended
December 31, 2016.

The carrying values of receivables, payables, other amounts arising out of normal contract activities, including retainage, which may
be settled beyond one year, are estimated to approximate fair value. Of the Company's long-term debt, the fair value of the 2010
Notes as of December 31, 2016 was $302.6 million and the fair value of the Convertible Notes was $228.4 million as of December 31,
2016; the fair values were determined using Leve) | inputs, specifically current observable market prices. The reported value of the
Company’s remaining long-term debt at December 31, 2016 approximates fair value.

The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Notes as of the issuance date of June 15, 2016 was $153.2 million, which
was determined using a binomial lattice approach based on Level 2 inputs, specifically quoted prices in active marlkets for similar debt
instruments that do not have a conversion feature. See Note 5 for additional information related to the Company’s Convertible Notes.

4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had $585.0 miltion of geodwill allocated to its reporting units as follows: Civil, $415.3
million; Building, $13.5 million; and Specialty Contractors, $156.2 million. The balances presented include historical accurmulated
impairment of $76.7 million for the Civil segment and $411.3 million for the Building segment.

In addition, as of Dccember 31, 2016, the Company had the following: (1) non-amortizable trade names with a carrying value of $50.4
million; (2) amortizable trade names with a gross carrying value of $51.1 million and accumulated amortization of $13.8 million; and
(3) amortizable customer relationships with a gross carrying value of $23.2 million and accumulated amortization of $17.9 million.

Amortization expense rclated to amortizable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2016 totaled $3.5 million. Future
amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets will be approximately $3.5 million per year for the years 2017 through
2021.

The weighted-average amortization period for amortizable trade names and customer relationships is 20 years and 12 years,
respectively.
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5. Financial Commitments

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2016 consists of the following (in thousands):

Term Loan $ 54,650
2014 Revolver 147,990
2010 Notes 298,120
Convertible Notes 152,668
Equipment financing and mortgages 101,558
Other indebtedness 4.533
Total debt 759,519
Less — current maturities (85,890)
Long-term debt, net $ 673,629

The following table reconciles the outstanding debt balance to the reported debt balances as of December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2016
Outstanding Unamortized Loag-Term
Long-Term Discount and Debt,
e Debt _ IssusoceCost  _asreported

Term Loan 5 57,000 3% (2,350) § 54,650
2014 Revolver 152,500 (4,510) 147,990
2010 Notes 300,000 (1,880} 298,120
Convertible Notes 200,000 (47,332) 152,668

2014 Credit Facility

On Jupe 5, 2014, the Company entered into a Sixth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Original Facility,” with subsequent
amendments discussed herein, the “2014 Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender
and L/C Issuet and a syndicate of other lenders. The 2014 Credit Facility provides for a $300 million revolving credit facility (the
“2014 Revolver™), a $250 million Term Loan (the “Term Loan™} and a sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit up to the aggregate
amount of $150 million, all maturing on May |, 2018. Borrowings under both the 2014 Revolver and the Term Loan bear interest
based on either on Bank of America’s prime lending rate or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™), each plus an applicable
margin ranging from 1.25% to 3.00% contingent upon the latest Consolidated Leverage Ratio.

During the first half of 2016, the Company entered into two amendments to the Original Facility (the *Amendments”): Waiver and
Amendment No. |, entered into on February 26, 2016 (*Amendment No. 17), and Consent and Amendment No. 2, entered into on
June 8, 2016 (“Amendment No. 2”), In Amendment No. 1, the lenders waived the Company’s violation of its consolidated leverage
ratio covenant and consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio covenant. These violations were the result of the Company’s financial
results for the year ended December 31, 2015, which included the previously reported $23.9 million non-cash, pre-tax charge related
to an adverse ruling on the Brightwater litigation matter in the third quarter of 2015, as well as $45.6 million of pre-tax charges in the
third and fourth quarters of 2015 for various Five Star Electric projects. In Amendment No. 2, the lenders consented to the issuance of
the Convertible Notes subject to certain conditions, including the prepayment of $125 million on the Term Loan and the paydown of
$69 million on the 2014 Revolver, and consented to a potential sale transaction of one of the Cotnpany’s business units in its Building
segment, which the Company later decided not to sell.

In addition to the Amendments’ provisions discussed above, the Amendments also modified other provisions and added new
provisions to the Original Facility, and Amendment No. 2 superseded and modified some of the provisions of Amendment No. 1. The
following refiects the more significant changes to the Original Facility and the results of the Amendments that are now reflected in the
2014 Credit Facility. Unless otherwise noted, the changes below were primarily the result of Amendment No. t: (1) The Company
may utilize LIBOR-based borrowings. {Amendment No. 1 precluded the use of LIBOR-based borrowings until the Company filed its
compliance certificate for the fourth quarter of 2016; however, Amendment No. 2 negated this preclusion.) (2) The Company is
subject to an increased rate on borrowings, with such rate being 100 basis points higher than the highest rate under the Original
Facility if the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 3.50:1.00 but not more than 4.00:1.00, and an additional 100 basis
points higher if the Company's consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 4.00:1.00. (3) The Company will be subject to increased
commitment fees if the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 3.50:1.00. (4) The impact of the Brightwaler litigation
matter in the third quarter of 2015 is to be excluded from the calculation of the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio and
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consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio covenants. (5) Interest payments are due on a monthly basis; however, if the Company is in
compliance with its consolidated leverage ratio and consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio covenants provided in the Original
Facility as of December 31, 2016, the timing of interest payments will revert to the terms of the Original Facility. As of December 31,
2016, the Company is in compliance with its consolidated leverage ratio and consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio covenants
provided in the Original Facility and the timing of our interest payments reverted back to the terms of the Original Facility, quarterly
for the Term Loan and base rate borrowings and upon maturity for Eurodollar borrowings. {6) The accordion feature of the Original
Facility, which would have allowed either an increase of $300 million in the 2014 Revolver or the establishment of one or more new
term Joan commitments, is no longer available. (7) The Company's maximum allowable consolidated leverage ratio was increased to
4.25:1.00 for the first, second and third quarters of 2016 after which it returns to the Original Facility’s range of 3.25:1,00 to
3.00:1.00. (Amendment No. 1 increased the Company’s maximum allowable consolidated leverage ratio covenant requirements to
4.25:1.00 for the first quarter of 2016 and 4.0:1.0 for the second and third quarters of 2016. Amendment No. 2 increased the maximum
allowable consalidated leverage ratio covenant requirements to 4.25:1.00 for the second and third quarters of 2016.) (8) The Company
is subject to additional covenants regarding its liquidity, including a cap on the cash balance in the Company’s bank account and a
weekly minimum liquidity requirement (based on specified available cash balances and availability under the 2014 Revolver). (9) The
Company is required to achieve certain cumulative quarterly cash collection milestones, which were eased somewhat in Amendment
No. 2. (10) The Company is required to make additional quarterly principal payments, which will be applied to the Term Loan balloon
payment, with some of the payments based on a percentage of certain forecasted cash collections for the prior quarter. This change
was effective in the fourth quarter of 2016. (11) The lenders’ coliateral package was increased by pledging to the lenders (i) the equity
interests of each direct domestic subsidiary of the Company and (ii) 65% of the stock of each material first-tier foreign restricted
subsidiary of the Company. (12) The 2014 Credit Facility will now mature on May 1, 2018, as opposed to June 5, 2019, the maturity
date of the Original Facility.

As of December 31, 2016, there was $147.3 million available under the 2014 Revolver and the Company had utilized the 2014 Credit
Facility for letters of credit in the amount of $0.2 million. The Company was in compliance with the financial covenants under the
2014 Credit Facility for the period ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the effective interest rate on the Term Loan
and the 2014 Revolver was 4.68% and 5.05%, respectively.

2010 Senior Notes

In October 2010, the Company issued $300 million of 7.625% Senjor Notes due November 1, 2018 (the 2010 Notes™) in a private
placement offering. Interest on the 2010 Notes is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year. The Company may
redeem the 2010 Notes at par beginning on November 1, 2016, which was not exercised as of December 31, 2016. At the date of any
redemption, any accrued and unpaid interest would also be due,

Convertible Notes

On June 15, 2016, the Company issued $200 mithon of 2.875% Convertible Senior Notes due june 15, 2021 (the “Convertible Notes”)
in a private placement offering.

Tao account for the Convertible Notes, the Company applied the provisions of ASC 470-20, Debt with Conversion and Other Options.
ASC 470-20 requires issuers of certain convertible debt instruments that may be seitled in cash upon conversion to separately account
for the liability (debt) and equity (conversion option) components of the instrument in a manner that reflects the issuer's
nonconvertible debt borrowing rate. This is done by allocating the proceeds from issuance to the liability component based on the fair
value of the debt instrument excluding the conversion feature, with the residual allocated to the equity component and classified in
additional paid in capital. The $46.8 million difference between the principal amount of the Convertible Notes ($200.0 million) and
the proceeds allocated to the liability component ($153.2 million) is treated as a discount on the Convertible Notes. This difference is
being amortized as non-cash interest expense using the interest method, as discussed below under fnterest Expense. The equity
component, however, is not subject to amortization nor subsequent remeasurement,

In addition, ASC 470-20 requires that the debt issuance costs associated with a convertible debt instrument be allocated between the
liability and equity components in proportion o the allocation of the debt proceeds between these two components. The debt issuance
costs attributable to the liability component of the Convertible Notes (8$5.1 million) are also trealed as a discount on the Convertible
Notes and amorlized as non-cash interest expense. The debt issuance costs attributable to the equity component ($1.5 million) were
netted with the equity component and will not be amortized.
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TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

The following table presents information related to the liability and equity components of the Convertible Notes as of December 31,
2016 {in thousands):

Liability component:

Principal £ 200,000
Conversion feature (46,800}
Allocated debt issuance costs (5,051)
Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs (non-cash interest expense) 4,519
Net carrying amount § 152,668
Equity compcnent;
Conversion feature $ 46,800
Allocated debt issuance costs {1,543)
Net deferred tax liability (18,815)
Net carrying amount $ 26442

The Convertible Notes, governed by the terms of an indenture between the Company and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as
trustee, are unsecured obligations and do not contain any financial covenants or restrictions on the payments of dividends, the
incurrence of indebtedness or the issuance or repurchase of securities by the Company. The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of
2.875% per year, payable in cash semiannually in June and December.

Prior to January 15, 2021, the Convertible Notes will be convertible only under the following circumstances: (1) during the five
business day period afier any ten consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible
Notes for such trading day was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion
rate on each such trading day; (2) during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on September 30, 2016, if
the last reported sale price of the common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130%
of the conversion rate of 33.0579 {or $39.32), on each applicable trading day; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events.
On or after January 15, 2021 until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date,
holders may convert all or any portion of their notes, in multiples of $1,000 principal amount, at the option of the holder regardless of
the foregoing circumstances.

The Convertible Notes will be convertible at an initial conversion rate of 33.0579 shares of the Company’s common stock per $1,000
principal amount of the Convertible Notes, which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $30.25. The conversion
rate will be subject to adjustment for some events but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following
certain corporate events that occur prior to the maturity date, the Company is required 1o increase, in certain circumstances, the
conversion rate for a holder who elects to convert their Convertible Notes in connection with such a corporate event including
customary conversion rate adjustments in connection with a “make-whole fundamental change” described in the indenture. Upon
conversion, and at the Company's clection, the Company may satisfy its conversion obligation by paying or delivering, as applicable,
cash, shares of its common stock or a combination of cash and shares of ils common stock. As of December 31, 2016, none of the
conversion provisions of the Convertible Notes have been triggered.

Equipment Financing and Morigages

The Company has certain loans entered into for the purchase of specific property, plant and equipment and secured by the assets
purchased. The aggregate balance of equipment financing loans was approximately $84.9 million at December 31, 2016 with interest
rates ranging from 1.90% to 5.93% with equal monthly installment payments over periods up to ten years with additional balloon
payments of $12.4 million in 2021 and $6.3 million in 2022 on the remaining loans outstanding at December 31, 2016. The aggregate
balance of mortgage loans was approximately $16.7 million at December 31, 2016 with interest rates ranging from a fixed 2.50% to
LIBOR plus 3% and equal monthty installment payments over periods up to seven years with additional balloon payments of $2.6
million in 2018, $2.9 million in 2021 and $6.7 million in 2023.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

The following table presents the future principal payments required under all of the Company’s debt obligations, discussed above,

including the terms of the Amendments (in thousands).
Year

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Thereafter

Less: Unamortized Discount and Issuance Cost
Total

Interest Expense

$ 85,890
478,583
12,294
5,378
218,923
14,523

815,591
{56.072)

3 759,519

Interest Expense as reporied in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 consists of the

following (in thousands):

Cash interest expense:
Interest on 2014 Credit Facility
Interest on 2010 Senior Notes
Interest on Convertible Notes
Other interest
Total cash interest expense
Non-cash interest expense:'
Amortization of debt issuance costs on 2014 Credit Facility
Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs on 2010 Senior Notes
Amortization of discount and debt issuance costs on Convertible Notes
Total non-cash interest expense

Total cash and non-cash interest expense

$ 19,201
22,875
3,115

3,623

48,814

5,447
1,002
4,519

10,968

$ 59,782

vl —

(a) Non-cash interest expense produces effective interest rates that are higher than contractual rates; accordingly, the effective interest
rates for the 2014 Credit Facility, the 2018 Senior Notes and the Convertible Notes are 9.86%, 7.99% and 9.39%, respectively.

Leases

The Company leases certain construction equipment, vehicles and office space under non-cancellable operating leases, with future

minimum rent payments as of December 31, 2016 as follows (in thousands):

Year

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021
Thereafter

Less - Sublease rental agreements
Total

Rental expense under operating leases of construction equipment, vehicles and office space was $28.2 million in 2016.

16 -

§ 22950
13,612
9,983
7.417
5,455
19,260

78,677

(3.150)

$ 75527



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

6. Income Taxes

Income before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016 is summnarized as follows (in thousands):

United States Operations $ 128,072
Foreign Operations 21,043
Total § 149,015

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows {in thousands):

Current expense:
Federal $ 43,850
State 13,039
Foreign 6,573
Total current 63,462

Deferred (benefit) expense:

Federal (3,059)
State (5,302)
Foreign (1.813)
Total deferred (10,169)
Total provision § 53203

The following table is a reconciliation of the Company’s provision for income taxes at the statutory rates to the provision for income
taxes at the Company's effective rate for the year ended December 31, 2016 (dollars in thousands).

—Amoupt = _ Rate

Federal income expense at statutory tax rate $ 52,190 350 %
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 5,972 40
Officers' compensation 3,807 2.6
Domestic Production Activities Deduction 4,018) (2.7)
Impact of state tax rate changes on deferred taxes (1,358) (0.9
Other (33000 _{2.3)
Provision for income taxes $ 53293 357 %

The Company's provision for income taxes and effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2016 were significantly impacted
by rate changes agsociated with shifts of revenue affecting state apportionment as well as various return-to-provision and depreciation
adjustments. The decrease in the state rate was applied to deferred tax balances, which further decreased the effective rate.
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The following is a summary of the significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2016 (in
thousands):

Deferred Tax Assets

Timing of expense recognition $ 36,055
Net operating losses 10,140
Other, net 33,507
Deferred tax assets 79,702
Valuation allowance 460
Net deferred tax assets 79,242
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Intangible assets, due primarily to purchase accounting (34,679)
Fixed assets, due primarily to purchase accounting (107,081)
Construction contract accounting (12,564)
Joint ventures - construction (29,609}
Other {24,970}
Deferred tax liabilities (208,903)
Net deferred tax liability $ (129,661)
The net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2016 is presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows (in thousands):
Deferred tax asset 5 1,346
Deferred tax liability (131,007)
Net deferred tax liability $ (129661)

The Company had a valuation allowance of $0.5 million as of December 31, 2016 for federal and state capital loss carryforwards as
the ultimate utilization of this item was not likely.

The Company has not provided for deferzed income taxes or foreign withholding tax on basis differences in its non-U.S. subsidiaries
that result from undistributed earnings aggregating $19.7 million which the Company has the intent and the ability to reinvest in its
foreign operations. Generally, the U.S, income taxes imposed upon repatriation of undistributed earnings would be reduced by foreign
tax credits from foreign income taxes paid on the eamnings. Determination of the deferred income tax liability on these basis
differences is not reasonably estimable because such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances existing if and when remittance
OCEUrs.

The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as an element of income tax expense. The
cumulative amounts related to interest and penalties are added to the total unrecognized tax liabilities on the balance sheet. The total
amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2016 that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $7.6
million. During 20186, the Company recognized a net increase of $4.0 million in liabilities. The Company does not expect any
significant relcase of unrecognized tax bencfits within the next twelve months.

The Company accounts for its uncertain tax positions in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending
amounts of these tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

Beginning balance $ 3,612
Change in tax positicns of prior ycars 3,543
Change in tax positions of current year 419
Reduction in tax positions for statute expirations _

Ending Balance $ 7574

We conduct business internationally and, as a result, one or more of our subsidiaries files income tax returns in U.8. federal, U.S. state
and certain foreign jurisdictions. Accordingly, in the normal course of business, we arc subject to examination by taxing authorities
principally throughout the United States, Guam and Canada. We are no longer under examination by the taxing authority regarding
any U.S. federal income tax returns for years before 2011 while the years open for cxamination under various state and local
jurisdictions vary.
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7. Contingencies and Commitments

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are involved in litigation and are contingently liable for commitments and performance
guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company and certain of its customers have made claims arising from the
performance under their contracts. The Company recognizes certain significant claims for recovery of incurred cost when it is
probable that the claim will result in additional contract revenue and when the amount of the claim can be reliably estimated. These
assessments require judgments conceming matters such as litigation developments and outcomes, the anticipated outcome of
negotiations, the number of future claims and the cost of both pending and future claims. In addition, because most contingencies are
resolved over long periods of time, assets and liabilities may change in the future due to various factors. Management believes that,
based on current information and discussions with the Company’s legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Several matters are in the litigation and dispute resolution process. The following discussion provides a background and current status
of the more significant matters.

Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Matter

The Company reconstructed the Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Interchange project for the New York State
Department of Transportation (the *NYSDOT"). The $130 million project was substantially completed in January 2004 and was
accepted by the NYSDOT as complete in February 2006. The Company incurred significant added costs in completing its work and
suffered extended schedule costs due to numerous design errors, undisclosed utility conflicts, lack of coordination with local agencies
and other interferences for which the Company believes the NYSDOT is responsible,

In March 2011, the Company filed its claim and complaint with the New York State Court of Claims and served to the New York
State Attorney General’s Office, seeking damages in the amount of $53.8 million. In May 2011, the NYSDOT filed a motion to
dismiss the Company’s claim on the grounds that the Company had not provided required documentation for project closeout and
filing of a claim. In September 2011, the Company reached agreement on final payment with the Comptroller's Office on behalf of the
NYSDOT which resulted in an amount of $0.5 million payable to the Company and formally closed out the project allowing the
Company to re-file its claim. The Company re-filed its claim in the amount of $53.8 million with the NYSDOT in February 2012 and
with the Court of Claims in March 2012. In May 2012, the NYSDOT served its answer and counterclaims in the amount of

$15) million alleging fraud in the inducement and punitive damages related to disadvantaged business enterprise (“DBE™)
requirements for the project. The Court subsequently ruled that NYSDOT's counterclaims may only be asserted as a defense and
offset to the Company’s claims and not as affirmative claims. [n November 2014, the Appellate Division First Department affirmed
the dismissal of the City’s affirmative defenses and affirmative counterclaims based on DBE fraud. The Company does not expect the
counterclaims to have any material effect on its consolidated financial statements,

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impacl of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

Fontaineblean Matter

Desert Mechanical Inc. (“DMI") and Fisk Electric Company (“Fisk™), wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
subcontractors on the Fontainebleau Project in Las Vegas (“Fontainebleau™), a hotel/casino complex with approximately 3,800 rooms.
In June 2009, Fontainebleau filed for bankruptcy protection, under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, in the Southern District
of Florida. Fontainebleau is headquartered in Miami, Florida.

DMI and Fisk filed liens in Nevada for approximately $44 million, representing unreimbursed costs to date and lost profits, including
anticipated profits, Other unaffiliated subcontractors have also filed liens. In June 2009, DM! filed suit against Tamberry West
Construction, Inc., the general contractor, in the 8th Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada (the “District Court™}, and in

May 2010, the court entered an order in favor of DMI for approximately $45 million.

In January 2010, the Bankruptcy Court approved the sale of the property to Icahn Nevada Gaming Acquisition, LLC, and this
transaction closed in February 2010. As a result of a July 2010 ruling relating to certain priming liens, there was approximately

$125 million set aside from this sale, which is available for distribution to satisfy the creditor claims based on seniority. At that time,
the total estimated sustainable lien amount was approximately $350 million. The project lender filed suit against the mechanic’s lien
claimants, including DMI and Fisk, alieging that certain mechanic’s liens are invalid and that all mechanic’s liens are subordinate to
the lender’s claims against the property. The Nevada Supreme Court ruled in October 2012 in an advisory opinion at the request of the
Bankruptcy Court that lien priorities would be determined in favor of the mechanic lien holders under Nevada law.
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In October 2013, a settlement was reached by and among the Statutory Lienholders and the other interested parties. The Bankrupicy
Court appointed a mediator to facilitate the execution of that settlement agresment. Settlement discussions are ongoing.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges Matter

In 1999, the Company was awarded a contract for reconstruction of the Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges project for the
City of New York (the “City™). In June 2003, after substantial completicn of the project, the Company initiated an action to recover
$8.8 million in claims against the City on behalf of itself and its subcontractors. In March 2010, the City filed counterclaims for
$74.6 million and other relief, alleging fraud in connection with the DBE requirements for the project. [n May 2010, the Company
served the City with its response to the City’s counterclaims and affirmative defenses. In August 2013, the Court granted the
Company's motion to dismiss the City's affirmative defenses and counterclaims relating to fraud.

In January 2017, the Court granted the City’s motion for summary judgment and dismissed the Company's claim against the City of
New York. The Company has filed a notice of appeal. The Court also granted the Company's motion for summary judgment for
release of retention plus interest from 2010 for an aggregate amount of approximately $1.1 million.

The Company does not expect ultimate resolution of this matter to have any material effect on its consolidated financial siatements.
Westgate Planet Hollywood Matter

Tutor-Saliba Corporation ("TSC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, contracted to construct a timeshare development
project in Las Vegas which was substantially completed in December 2009. The Company's claims against the owner, Westgate
Planet Hollywood Las Vegas, LLC (“WPH"), relate to unresolved owner change orders and other claims. The Company filed a lien on
the project in the amount of $23.2 million, and filed its complaint with the District Court, Clark County, Nevada. Several
subcontractors have also recorded liens, some of which have been released by bonds and some of which have been released as a result
of subsequent payment, WPH has posted a mechanic’s lien release bond for $22.3 million.

WPH filed a cross-complaint alleging non-conforming and defective work for approximately $51 million, primarily related to alleged
defects, misallocated costs, and liquidated damages. WPH revised the amount of their counterclaims to approximately $45 million.

Following multiple post-trial motions, final judgment was entered in this matter on March 20, 2014. TSC was awarded total judgment
in the amount of $19.7 million on its breach of contract claim, which includes an award of interest up through the date of judgment,
plus attorney’s fees and costs. WPH has paid $0.6 miilion of that judgment. WPH was awarded total judgment in the amount of

$3.1 million on its construction defect claims, which includes interest up through the date of judgment. The awards are not offsetting.
WPH and its Sureties have filed a notice of appeal. TSC has filed a notice of appeal on the defect award. In July 2014, the Court
ordered WPH to post an additional supersedeas bond on appeal, in the amount of $1.7 million, in addition to the lien release bond of
$22.3 million, which increases the security up to $24.0 million, The Nevada Supreme Court has not yet ruled on this matter.

The Company does not expect ultimate resolution of this matter to have any material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
Management has made an cstimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Matter

Rudolph and Sletten, [nc. (“R&S"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract with the United States
Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (“"NOAA™) for the construction of a 287,000 square-
foot facility for NOAA's Southwest Fisheries Science Center Replacement Headquarters and Laboratory in La Jotla, California. The
contract work began on May 24, 2010, and was substantially completed in Septernber 2012. R&S incurred significant additional costs
as a result of a design that contained errors and omissions, NOAA's unwillingness to correct design flaws in a timely fashion and a
refusal to negotiate the time and pricing associated with change order work.

R&S has filed three certified claims against NOAA for contract adjustments related to the unresolved Owner change orders, delays,
design deficiencies and other claims. The First Certificd Claim was submitted on August 20, 2013, in the amount of $26.8 million
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("First Certified Claim") and the Second Certified Claim was submitted on October 30, 2013, in the amount of $2.6 million ("Second
Certified Claim") and the Third Certified Claim was submitted on October 1, 2014 in the amount of $0.7 million (“Third Certified
Claim™).

NOAA requested an extension to issue a decision on the First Certified Claim and on the Third Certified Claim, but did not request an
extension of time to review the Second Certified Claim. On January 6, 2014, R&S filed suit in the United States Federal Court of
Claims on the Second Certified Claim plus interest and attorney's fees and costs. This was followed by a submission of a lawsuit on
the First Certified Claim on July 31, 2014. In February 2015, the Court denied NOAA's motion to dismiss the Second Certified Claim.
In March 2015, the Contracting Officer issued decisions on all Claims accepting a total of approximately $1.0 million of claims and
denying approximately $29.5 million of claims. On April 14, 2015, the Court consolidated the cases. Trial is scheduled to commence
in December 2017.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

Five Star Electric Matter

In the third quarter of 2015, Five Star Electric Corp. ("Five Star"), a subsidiary of the Company that was acquired in 2011, entered into
a tolling agreement retated to an ongoing investigation being conducted by the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New
York (“USAO EDNY™). The tolling agreement extended the statute of limitations to avoid the expiration of any unexpired statute of
limitations while the investigation is pending. Five Star has been cooperating with the USAO EDNY since late June 2014, when it was
first made aware of the investigation, and has been providing information related to its use of certain minority-owned, women-owned,
small and disadvantaged business enterprises and, in addition, most recently, information regarding certain of Five Star’s employee
compensation, benefit and tax practices. The investigation covers the period of 2005-2014.

The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of the investigation and cannot accurately estimate any poteatial liability that Five
Star or the Company may incur or the impact of the results of the investigation on Five Star or the Company.

Alaskan Way Viaduct Matter

In January 2011, Seattle Tunnel Pariners (“STP"), a jeint venture between Dragados USA, Inc. and the Company, entered into a
design-build contract with the Washington State Department of Transportation (“WSDOT") for the construction of a large diameter
bored tunnel in downtown Seattle, King County, Washington to replace the Alaskan Way Viaduct, also known as State Route 99.

The construction of the large diameter bored tunnel requires the use of a tunnel boring machine (“TBM™). In December 2013, the
TBM struck a steel pipe, installed by WSDOT as a well casing for an exploratory wetl. The TBM was damaged and was required to be
shut down for repair. STP has asserted that the steel pipe casing was a differing site condition that WSDOT failed to properly disclose.
The Disputes Review Board mandated by the contract to hear disputes issued a decision finding the steel casing was a Type [ differing
site condition. WSDOT has not accepted that finding.

The TBM is insured under a Builder’s Risk Insurance Policy (“the Policy™) with Great Lakes Reinsurance (UK) PLC and a
consortium of other insurers (the “Insurers™). STP submitted the claims to the insurer and requested interim payments under the
Policy. The Insurers refused to pay and denied coverage. In June 2015, STP filed a lawsuit in the King County Superior Court, State
of Washington {“Washington Supcrior Court™) seeking declaratory relief concerning contract interpretation as well as damages as a
result of the Insurers’ breach of its obligations under the terms of the Policy. WSDOT is deemed a plaintiff since WSDOT is an
insured under the Policy and had filed its own claim for damages. Hitachi, the manufacturer of the TBM, has also joined the case asa
plaintiff for costs incurred to repair the damages to the TBM. Trial is scheduled for June 2018.

In March 2016, WSDOT filed a complaint against STP in Thurston County Superior Court for breach of contract alleging STP's
delays and failure to perform and declaratory relief concemning contract interpretation. STP filed its answer to WSDOT’s complaint
and filed a counterclaim against WSDOT and against the manufacturer of the TBM. Trial is set for June 2018.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company has concluded that the potential for a material adverse financial impact due to the Insurer's
and WSDOT’s respective legal actions is neither probable nor remote. With respect to STP’s counterclaim, management has included
an estimate of the total anticipated recovery, concluded to be both probable and reliably estimable, in revenue recorded to date. To the
extent new facts becomne known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the impact of the
change will be reflected in the financial statements at that time.
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8. Share-Based Compensation

The Amended and Restated Tutor Perini Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan™) provides for various types of share-based
grants, including restricted and unrestricted stock units and stock options. Restricted and unrestricted stock units give the holder the
right to exchange their stock units for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis. Stock options give the holder
the right to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price equal to the fair value of the Company's common
stock on the date of the stock option’s award. Restricted stock units and stock options are usually subject to certain service and
performance conditions and may not be sold or otherwise transferred until those restrictions have been satisfied; however, unrestricted
stock units have no such restrictions. The term for stock options is limited to 10 years from the date of grant. As of December 31,
2016, there were 327,584 shares available to be granted under the Company’s share-based compensation plan.

Many of the awards issued under the Plan contain separate tranches, each for a separate performance period and each witha
performance target to be established subsequent to the award date; accordingly, the tranches are accounted for under ASC 718 Srock
Compensation ("ASC 718") as separate grants, with the grant date being the date the performance targets for a given tranche are
established and communicated to the grantee. Similarly, for these awards, compliance with the requirements of the Plan is also based
on the number of units granted in a given year, as determined by ASC 718, rather than the number of units awarded in a given year,
As a result, as of December 31, 2016, the Company had outstanding awards with 448,000 restricted stock units and 448,000 stock
options that had not been granted yet. These units will be granted in 2017, 2018 and 2019 when the performance targets for those
respective years are established,

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit and stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2016:

Resiricted Stock Units Stock Options

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Grant Date Exerclse/
Fair Value {Strike) Price

Number Per Share Number Per Share
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015 725,597 % 25.28 1,998,000 $ 19.62
Granted 483 387 19.14 274,000 16.20
Vested/exercised (52,500} 18.74 (97.500) 12.72
Quistanding as of December 31, 2016 1,156,484 § 2264 2174500 §$ 19.50

The following table summarizes unrestricted stock units issued to the members of the Company’s Board of Directors during the year
ended December 31, 2016 as part of their annual retainers:

Unrestricted Stock Units _
Weighted-Average

Grant Date

Fair Value
Ycar Number Per Share
2016 64,603 $21.67

The fair value of unrestricted stock units issued during 2016 was approximately $1.4 million.

The fair value of restricted stock units that vested during 2016 was approximately $1.0 million. The aggregate intrinsic valuc,
representing the difference between the market value on the date of excrcise and the option price of the stock options exercised during
2016 was $1.1 million. As of December 31, 2016, the balance of unamartized restricted stock and stock option expense was $6.5

million and $0.7 million, respectively, which will be recognized over weighted-average periods of 1.3 years for restricted stock units
and 0.5 years for stock options.

The 2,174,500 outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2016 had an intrinsic valuc of $18.5 million and a weighted-average

remaining contractual life of 4.3 years. Of those oulstanding options: 1} 1,402,500 were exercisable with an intrinsic value of $11.3
million, a weighted-average excrcise price of $19.95 per share and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 3.1 years; and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2016

2) 772,000 have been granted but have not vested, of which 756,876 are expected to vest and have an intrinsic value of $7.2 million, a
weighted-average exercise price of $18.49 and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 6.5 years.

The fair value on the grant date and the significant assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for stock aption
awards granted during 2016 are as follows:

Total stock options granted 274,000
Weighted-average grant date fair value $ 5.31
Weighted-average assumptions:
Risk-Free Rate 1.2 %
Expected life of options® 4.2
Expected volatility® 40.6 %
Expected quarterly dividends s —

(a} Calculated using the simplified method due to the terms of the stock options and the limited pool of grantees.
(b) Caleculated using historical volatility of the Company's common stock over periods commensurate with the expected life of the
option.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recognized, as part of general and administrative expense, costs for stock-based
payment arrangements for both employees of $13.4 million and non-employee direciors of $1.4 million with related aggregate tax
benefit of §6.1 million.

9. Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan that covers certain of its executive, professional, administrative and clerical
employees, subject to certain specified service requirements. The plan is noncontributory and benefits are based on an employee's
years of service and “final average earnings,” as defined by the plan. The plan provides reduced benefits for early retirement and takes
into account offsets for social security benefits. The Company also has an unfunded supplemental retirement plan (“Benefit
Equalization Plan") for certain employees whose benefits under the defined benefit pension plan were reduced because of
compensation limitations under federal tax laws. Effective June 1, 2004, all benefit accruals under the Company’s pension plan and
Benefit Equalization Plan were frozen; however, the current vested benefit was preserved. Pension disclosure as presented below
includes aggregated amounts for both of the Company s plans, except where otherwise indicated.

The Company historically has used the date of its year-end as its measurement date to determine the funded status of the plan.

The long-term investment goals of our plan are to manage the assets in accordance with the legal requirements of all applicable laws;
produce investment returns which maximize return within reasonable and prudent levels of risks; and achieve a fully funded status
with regard to current pension liabilities. Some risk must be assumed in order to achieve the investment goals. Investments with the
ability to wilhstand short and intermediate term variability are considered and some interim fluctuations in market value and rates of
return are tolerated in order to achieve the plan’s longer-term objectives.

The pension plan’s assets are managed by a third-party investrnent manager. The Company monitors investment performance and risk
on an ongoing basis.
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A summary of net periodic benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):

Interest cost s 4,153
Service cost 600
Expected return on plan assels (4,803)
Recognized net actuarial losses 1,745
Net periodic benefit cost 5 1,695
Actuarial assumptions used to determine net cost;
Discount rate 4.10 %
Expected return on assets 6.00 %
Rate of increase in compensation N/A

The target asset allocation for the Company's pension plan by asset category for 2017 and the actual asset allocation as of December
31, 2016 by asset category are as foliows:

— Percentape of Plag Assets
Target Actual
Allocation Allocation
Asset Category 2017 2016
Cash 5% 4%
Equity securities:
Domestic 50 47
International 25 28
Fixed income securities 20 21
Total 100 % 100 %

As of December 31, 2016, plan assets included approximately $39.1 million of investments in hedge funds and equity partmerships
which do not have readily determinable fair values. The underlying holdings of the funds were comprised of a combination of assets
for which the estimate of fair value is determined using information provided by fund managers.

The Company expects to contribute approximatety $2.6 million to its defined benefit pensicn plan in 2017,

Future benefit payments under the plans are estimated as follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2017 3 6,488
2018 6,632
2019 6,691
2020 6,717
2021 6,732
Thereafter

32,722

Total 3 65,982

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the fair value of plan assets and plan benefit obligations during 2016,
and a summary of the funded status as of December 31, 2016 (in thousands).

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Balance at beginning of year § 72,296
Actual retum on plan assets (1,909)
Company contribution 2,025
Benefit payments (6,355)
Balance at end of year 3__ 66,057
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Change in Benefit Obligations

Balance at beginning of year $ 105942
Interest cost 4,153
Service cost 600
Assumption change (gain) loss 308
Actuarial (gain) loss (967)
Benefit payments {6,355)
Balance at end of year $ 103,681

Funded status $ (37,624
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet consist of:
Current liabilities $ (271)
Long-term liabilities (37.353)

Net amount recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive loss

$_(371.629)

Net actuarial loss $ (61,132)
Cumulative Company contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost 23 508
Net amount recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet 3 (37,624)

The change in actuarial loss during the period resulting from changed assumptions was $4.3 million in 2016.

The estimated amount of the net accumulated loss that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net period

benefit cost in 2017 is $1.8 million.

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation was 3.9% as of December 31, 2016. The
discount rate used for the accumulated post-retirement obligation was derived using a blend of U.S. Treasury and high-quality

corporate bond discount rates.

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption was 6.0% for 2016. The expected long-tetm rate of return on assets

assumption was developed considering forward looking capital market assumptions and historical return expectations for each asset
class assuming the plans’ target asset allocation and full availability of invested assets.

Fund strategies seek o capitalize on inefficiencies identified across different asset classes or markets. Hedge fund strategy types
include [ong-short, cveni-driven, multi-strategy, equity parinerships and distressed credit.

Plan assets were measured at fair value. The following provides a description of the valuation techniques employed for each major
asset class; Corporate equities were valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual securities were
purchased.

Registered investment companies are public investment vehicles valued using the Net Asset Vatue (NAV) of shares held by the plan at
year-end. Closely held funds held by the plan, which are onty available through private offerings, do not have readily determinable
fair values. Estimates of fair value of these funds were determined using the information provided by the fund managers and it is
generally based on the net asset value per share or its equivalent. Corporate bonds were valued based on market values quoted by
dealers who are market makers in these securities, and by independent pricing services which use multiple valuation techniques that
incorporate available market information and proprietary valuation models using market characteristics, such as benchmark yield
curve, coupon rates, credit spreads, estimated default rates and other features.
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The following table sets forth the plan assets as of December 31, 2016 at fair value in accordance with the fair value hierarchy
described in Note 3 (in thousands):

—  FairValucHierarchy
Total Level l Level 2 Level 3

Cash and cash equivalents § 2437 § 2437 § - g
Fixed Income 14,023 14,023 - --
Equities - e
Mutual Funds 10,489 10,489
$ 26949 3§ 26949 § - $
Closely held funds®
Equity Partnerships 6,931
Hedge Fund Investments 32,177
Total closely held funds® 39,108
Total $ 66057 $ 26949 § — §

{(a) Closely held funds in private investment were measured at fair value using NAV and were not categorized in the fair value
hierarchy. Although the investments were not categorized within the fair value hierarchy, the holdings of these private investment
funds were comprised of a combination of Level 1, 2 and 3 investments, but were not categorized in the fair value hierarchy
because they were measured at NAV using the practical expedient. This is a change from prior years’ presentation as there is no
longer a requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the NAV
per share practical expedient.

The plans have benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of each plan’s assets as of December 31, 2016 detailed as foltows (in
thousands}):

Benefit
Pension Equalization
Plan Plap Total
Projected benefit obligation $ 100,336 § 3,345 § 103,681 |
Accumulated benefit obligation 100,336 3,345 103,681
Fair value of plans' assets 66,057 66,057
Projected benefit obligation greater than fair value of plans' assets § 34279 % 3345 § 37624
Accumulated benefit obligation greater than fair value of plans' assets $ 34279 % 3,345 § 37624

Section 401(k) Plans

The Company has several contributory Section 401(k)} plans which cover its executive, professional, administrative and clerical
employees, subject to certain specified setvice requirements. The 401 (k) expense provision was $4.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016, The Company’s contribution is based on a non-discretionary match of employees’ contributions, as defined by
each plan.

Cash-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has multiple cash-based compensation plans and a share-based incentive compensation plan for key employees, which
are generaily based on the Company’s achievement of a certain level of profit. For information on the Company’s share-based
incentive compensation plan, see Note 8.

Multiemployer Plans

In addition to the Company's defined benefit pension and contribution plans discussed above, the Company participates in
multiemployer pension plans for its union construction employees. Contributions are based on the hours worked by employees
covered under various collective bargaining agreements. Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Acl, a contributor to a
multiemployer plan is only liable for its proportionate share of a plan’s unfunded vested liability upon termination, or withdrawal
from, a ptan. The Company currently has no intention of withdrawing from any of the multiemployer pension plans in which it
participates and, therefore, has not recognized a liability for its proportionate share of any unfunded vested liabilities associated with
these plans.
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The following tables summarize key information for the plans that the Company had significant involvement with during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Pension Expiration
Protections FIPRP Date of
Act Zone Status Company Collective
EIN/Pension Status Pending Or Contributions®™ Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund — PispNumber 2016 _ lmplemented  (in millions) —Imposed = _Aereement
The Pension, Hospitalization and Benefit Plan of 13-6123601/001 Green N/A 3158 No 5/31/2019
the Electricat Indusiry - Pension Trust Fund
Laborers Pension Trust Fund for Northemn 94-6277608 Yellow Implemented 5.6 No 6/30:2019
California
Carpenters Pension Trust Fund for Northern 94-6050970 Red Implemented 44 No 6/30/2019
California
Excavators Union Local 731 Pension Fund 13-1809825/002 Green N/A 42 No 4/30/2022
Steamfitiers Industry Pension Fund 13-6149680/001 Green NiA 19 No 6/30/2017
Iron Workers Locals 40, 361 & 417 Pension Fund 51-6102576/001 Green Implemented 318 No 6/30/2020
Local 147 Consteuction Workers Retirement Fund 13-6528181 Green N/A 3.7 No 67302018
Southern California Gunite Workers Pension Fund 95-4354179 Green N/A 5 No 6/30/2019

(a) The Company's contributions as a percentage of total plan contributions were not available for any of our plans.

In addition to the individually significant plans described above, the Company also contributed approximately $38.8 million to other
multiemployer pension plans during the year ended December 31, 2016.

10. Business Segments

The Company offers general coniracting, pre-construction planning and comprehensive project management services, including
planning and scheduling of manpower, equipment, materials and subcontractors required for the timely completion of a project in
accordance with the terms and specifications contained in a construction contract. The Company also offers self-performed
construction services: site work, concrete forming and placement, steel erection, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and heating,
ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC). As described below, our business is conducted through three segments: Civil, Building and
Specialty Contractors. These segments are determined based on how the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (chief
operating decision maker) aggregates business units when evaluating performance and allocating resources.

The Civil segment specializes in public works construction and the replacement and reconstruction of infrastructure. The civil
contracting services include construction and rehabilitation of highways, bridges, tunnels, mass-transit systems, and water
management and wastewater treatment facilities.

The Building segment has significant experience providing services to a number of specialized building markets for private and public
works customers, including the high-rise residential, hospitality and gaming, transportation, health care, commercial and government
offices, sports and entertainment, education, correctional facilities, biotech, pharmaceutical, industrial and high-tech markets.

The Specialty Contractors segment specializes in electrical, mechanical, plumbing, HVAC, fire protection systems and pneurnatically
placed concrete for a full range of civil and building construction projects in the industrial, commercial, hospitality and gaming, and
mass-transit end markets. This segment provides the Company with unique strengths and capabilities that allow the Company to
position itself as a full-service contractor with greater contro! over scheduled work, project delivery and risk management.
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The following table sets forth certain reportable segment information relating to the Company’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2016 (in thousands).

__Reportable Sepments
Specialty Segment Consolidated
Civil Building __Contractors Total _Corporate Total

Total revenue $ 1,830,857 § 2,146,747 § 1,234,272 § 5211876 8§ - § 5211876
Elimination of intersegment revenue {161,894) (76,906) _ = (238,800} e (238.800)
Revenue from external customers $ 1,668963 § 2,069,841 § 17234272 $ 4973076 $ $ 4,973,076
Income from construction operations $§ 172,668 § 51,564 3% 37,908 § 262,140 § (60,2200 § 201,920
Capital expenditures $ 13,541 § 516 § 1,005 % 15062 § 681 § 15,743
Depreciation and amortization ® $ 48,561 § 2,186 % 5035 % 55782 % 11,520 % 67,302

(a) Consists primarily of corporate general and administrative expenses.
{b) Depreciation and amortization is included in income from construction operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company recorded the foliowing offsetting adjustments in the Specialty Contractors
segment: a favorable adjustment of $14.0 million for a completed project (80.17 per diluted share)} and an unfavorable adjustment of
$13.8 million for a project that is substantially complete ($0.16 per diluted share).

The above were the only changes in estimates considered material to the Company’s results of operations during the period presented
herein.

The following table scts forth the total assets for the reportable segments as of December 31, 2016 (in thousands).

Civil £ 2,152,123
Building 917,317
Specialty Contractors 813,851
Corporate and other @ 155329

Total Assets 3 4,038,620

(a) Consists principally of cash, equipment, tax-related assets and insurance-related assets, offset by the eliminahion of assets related
to intersegment revenue.

Geographic Information

Information concerning principal geographic areas as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 is as follows {in thousands):

Revenue:

United States $ 4,802,393
Foreign and U.S. termitories 170,683
Total $ 4373,076
Asscts:

United States § 3,911,865
Foreign and U.S. territories 126,755
Total Assets §$ 4,038,620

———

Reconciliation of Segment Information to Consolidated Amounts

The following table reconciles segment results to the consolidated income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016
{in thousands).

Income from construction operations $ 201,920
Qther income, net 6,977
Interest expense (59,782)
Income before income taxes §__ 149,115
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11. Related Party Transactions

The Company leases certain facilities from an entity owned by Ronald N. Tutor, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, at market lease rates. Under these leases the Company paid §2.8 million and recognized expense of $3.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Raymoend R. Oneglia, Vice Chairman of O&G Industries, fnc. (“O&G"), is a director of the Company. The Company occasionally
forms construction project joint ventures with O&G, and O&G often provides equipment and services for the projects on customary
trade terms. Currently, the Company has a 30% interest in a joint venture for a highway construction project. The payments made by
the joint venture to O&G during the year ended December 31, 2016 were immaterial.

Peter Arkley, Senior Managing Director, Construction Services Group, of Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. (*Alliant™), is a director of
the Company. The Company uses Alliant for various insurance related services. The associated expense for services provided for the
year ended December 31, 2016 was $8.9 million. The Company owed Alliant $5.2 million as of December 31, 2016 for services
rendered.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Tutor Perini Corporatian
Sylmar, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tutor Perini Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2015. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tutor Perini Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

The supplemental consolidating information on pages 31-34 has been subjected to audit procedures
performed in conjunction with the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The
supplemental consolidating information is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our audit
procedures included determining whether the supplemental consolidating information reconciles to the
consolidated financial statements or the underlying accounting and other records, as applicable, and
performing procedures to test the completeness and accuracy of the information presented in the
supplemental consolidating information. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Tt | e #9

February 29, 2016

{April 11, 2016 as to the supplemental consolidating information)

Member of
Defotie Touche Tohmatsu Umited



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUE $ 4,920,472
COST OF OPERATIONS (4,564.219)
GROSS PROFIT 356,253
General and administrative expenses {250,840)
INCOME FROM CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS 105,413
Other income, net 12,453
Interest expense {44.027)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 73,839
Provision for income taxes (28,547)
NET INCOME 3 45,292
BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE s 0.92
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 3 0.91

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:
BASIC 48,081
DILUTED 49.666

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

(In thousands)

NET INCOME $ 45,292
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TAX:
Defined benefit pension plan adjustments 2,026
Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,214)
Unrealized gain in fair value of investments 766
Unrealized loss in fair value of interest rate swap (125)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax ] {547)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3 44,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 131, 2015
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash, including cash equivalents of $1,696
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, including retainage of $484,255
Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, at cost:
Land
Building and irmprovements
Construction equipment
Other equipment

Less - Accuimulated depreciation
Total property and equipment, net

GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable, including retainage
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Note 7)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Prefeered stock - authorized 1,000,000 shares ($1 par value), none issued
Common stock - authorized 75,000,000 shares ($1 par value), issued and outstanding - 49,072,710 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained carnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part of thesc consolidated financial statements.

-4-

75,452
45,853
1,473,615
905,175
26,306
108,844

2,635,245

41,382
123,600
431,080
181,940

778,002
254477

523,525

585,006
96,340
202,125

4,042,441

88,917
937,464
288,311
159,016

1,473,708

734,531
273,310
140,665

2622214

49,073

1,035,516

377,803
{42,165)

1,420,227

4,042 441




TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

(Io thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets and debt issuance costs
Share-based compensation expense
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Loss on sale of investments
Gain cn sale of property and equipment
Other long-term liabilities
Other non-cash items
Changes in other components of working capital

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment excluding financed purchases
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities
Change in restricted cash
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from debt
Repayment of debt
Business acquisition-related payments
Excess income tax benefit from share-based compensation
Issuance of common stock and effect of cashless exercise
Debt issuance costs
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

45,292

37919
5,810
9,477

(186)

22,214

(2,909)
28,912
(3,680)

(128777

14,072

(35,912)
4,980

{1483}

(32,415}

1,013,205
(1,054,371)

186
{808)

(41,788)

(60,131}
135,583

75,452




TUTOR PERIN] CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

{In thousands)
Accumulsted
Additional Other
Common Pald-in Retained Comprehensive
Stock Capital —Estnings ~ _ (Losilncome = Total
Balance - December 31, 2014 $ 48,671 §  1,025941 §$ 332511 % (41,618) § 1,365,505
Net income - 45,292 45,292
Other comprehensive loss . - (547 {547)
Total comprehensive income 44.745
Tax effect of share-based compensation (186) {186)
Share-based compensation expense 9,477 - 9,477
Issuance of common stock, net 402 284 - 686
Balance - December 31, 2015 b 42,073 3 1,035516 8§ 377,803 $ (42,165) § 1,420,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as codified in the Financial Accounting Standards Board's (“FASB") Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC™).

{b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tutor Perini Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries (the
“Company”). The Company's interests in construction joint ventures are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method
whereby the Company's proportionate share of each joint venture's assets, liabilities, revenue and cost of operations are included in
the appropriate classifications in the consclidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

{c} Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts. These estimates are based on information available through the date of the issuance of the financial statements.
Therefore, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(d) Construction Contracts

The Company and its affiliated entities recognize construction contract revenue using the percentage-of-completion method, based
primarily on contract cost incurred to date compared to total estimated contract cost. Cost of revenue includes an allocation of
depreciation and amortization. Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred. Changes to total estimated contract cost or losses, if any,
are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

The Company generally provides limited warranties for work performed under its construction contracts with periods typically
extending for a limited duration following substantial completion of the Company’s work on a project. Historically, warranty claims
have not resulted in material costs incurred.

The Company classifies construction-related receivables and payables that may be settled in periods exceeding one year from the
balance sheet date as current, consistent with the length of time of its project operating cycle. For example:

¢ Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings represent the excess of contract costs and profits (or contract revenue) over
the amount of contract billings to date and are classified as a current asset.

o Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings represent the excess of contract billings to date over the amount of contract
costs and profits {or contract revenue) recognized to date and are classified as a current liability.

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings result when either: 1) costs are incurred related to certain claims and unapproved
change orders, or 2) the appropriate contract revenue amount has been recognized in accordance with the percentage-of-completion
accounting method, but a portion of the revenue recorded cannot be billed currently due to the billing terms defined in the contract.
Claims occur when there is a dispute regarding both a change in the scope of work and the price associated with that change.
Unapproved change orders occur when there is a dispute regarding only the price associated with a change in scope of work. For both
claims and unapproved change orders, the Company recognizes revenue, but not profit, when it is determined that recovery of incurred
cost is probable and the amounts can be reliably estimated. For claims, these requirements are satisfied under ASC 605-35-25 when
the contract or other evidence provides a legal basis for the claim, additional costs were cavsed by circumstances that were unforeseen
at the contract date and not the result of deficiencies in the Company’s performance, claim-related costs are identifiable and
considered reasonable in view of the work performed, and evidence supporting the claim or change order is objective and verifiable.

Reported costs and estimated carnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2015 consists of the following (in thousands):

Claims 5 407,164
Unapproved change orders 270,019
Other unbilled costs and profits 227,992
Total costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 3 905,175




TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 11, 2015

The prerequisite for billing claims and unapproved change orders is the final resolution and agreement between the parties. The
prerequisite for billing other unbilled costs and profits is provided in the defined billing terms of each of the applicable contracts. The
amount of costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of December 31, 2015 estimated by management to be collected
beyond one year is approximately $353.2 million.

(e} Changes in Estimaltes

The Company’s estimates of contract revenue and cost are highly detailed and many factors change during a contract performance
period that result in a change to contract profitability. These factors include, but are not limited to, differing site conditions;
availability of skilled contract labor; performance of major material suppliers and subcontractors; on-going subcontractor negotiations
and buyout provisions; unusual weather conditions; changes in the timing of scheduled work; change orders; accuracy of the original
bid estimate; changes in estimated labor productivity and costs based on experience to date; achievement of incentive-based income
targets; and, the expected, or actual, resolution terms for claims. The factors that cause changes in estimates vary depending on the
maturation of the project within its lifecycle. For example, in the ramp-up phase, these factors typically consist of revisions in
anticipated project costs and during the peak and close-out phases, these factors include the impact of change orders and claims as
well as additional revisions in remaining anticipated project costs. Generally, if the contract is at an early stage of completion, the
current period impact is smaller than if the same change in estimate is made to the contract at a later stage of completion. Management
focuses on evaluating the performance of contracts individually and uses the cumulative catch-up method to account for revisions in
estimates. Material changes in estimales are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

() Depreciation of Property and Equipment and Amortization of Long-Lived Intangible Asseis

Property and equipment and long-lived intangible assets are depreciated or amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives ranging from three to forty years.

() Recoverability of Long-Lived Asseis

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances indicate that the future cash flows generated by the assets
might be less than the assets’ net carrying value. In such circumstances, an impairment loss will be recognized by the amount the
assets’ net carrying value exceeds their fair value.

(h) Recoverability of Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized to earnings, but instead is reviewed for impairment at a reporting unit level annually, or more often if there
are indicators between the annual review dates that signal that impairment is probable. The Civil, Building and Specialty Contractors
segments each represent a reporting unit. We perform our annual quantitative impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each
year using a weighted average of an income and a market approach. The income approach is based on estimated future cash flows for
each reporting unit, which then are discounted to their present value. The market approach is based on assumplions about how market
data relates to the Company. The weighting of these two approaches is based on their individual correlation to the economics of each
reporting unit. The quantitative assessment performed in 2015 resulted in an estimated fair value for each of our reporting units that
exceeded their respective net book values; therefore, no impairment charge was necessary for 2015.

(i) Recoverability of Non-Amortizabie Trade Names

Certain trade names have an estimated indefinite life and are not amortized to earnings, but instead are reviewed for impairment
annually, or more oflen if there are indicators between the annual review dates that signal that impairment is probable. We perform
our annual quantitative impairment assessment during the fourth quarter of each year using an income approach (reliel from royalty
method). The quantitative assessment performed in 2015 resulted in an estimated fair value for the non-amortizable trade names that
exceeded their respective net book values; therefore, no impairment charge was necessary for 2015.

(j} Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the effects of temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the income tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect when such differences
reverse. income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not threshold to be recognized. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties rclated to uncertain tax positions as a component of the income tax provision.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

(k) Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Potentially dilutive securities include restricted stock units and stock options. Diluted EPS reflects the assumed exercise or conversion

of all dilutive securities using the treasury stock method.

The calculations of the basic and diluted EPS for the year ended December 31, 2815 under the treasury stock method are presented
below (in thousands, except per share data);

Net income 3 45,292
Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic 48,981
Effect of diluted stock options and unvested restricted stock 685
Weighted-average common shares cutstanding - diluted 49,666

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.92
Diluted $ 0.91
Anti-dilutive securities not included above 1,372

(I) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when acquired. Cash
and cash equivalents, as reported in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, consist of amounts held by the Company that are
available for general purposes and the Company’s proportionate share of amounts held by construction joint ventures that are available
only for joint venture-related uses, including future distributions to joint venture pariners. Restricted cash is primarily held to secure
insurance-related contingent obligations, such as insurance claim deductibles, in lieu of letters of credit.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash as of December 31, 2015 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents b 18,409
Company's share of joint venture cash and cash equivalents 57.043
Total cash and cash equivalents % 75,452
Restricted cash 5 45,853

{m) Share-Based Compensation

The Company’s long-term incentive plan allows the Company to grant share-based compensation awards in a varicty of forms,
including restricted stock units and stock options. Restricted stock units and stock options generally vest subject to service and/or
performance requirements, with related compensation expense equal to the fair value of the award on the date of grant and recognized
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

(n) Insurance Liabilities

The Company typically utilizes third party insurance coverage subject to varying deductible levels with aggregate caps on losses
retained. The Company assumes the risk for the amount of the deductible portion of the losses and liabilitics primarily associated with
workers' compensation and general liability coverage. In addition, on certain projecis, the Company assumes the risk for the amount
of the deductible portion of losses that arisc from any subcontractor defaults. Losses are accrued based upon the Company's estimates
of the aggregate liability for claims incurred using historical experience and certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance
industry. The estimate of insurance liability within the deductible limits includes an estimate of incurred but not reported claims based
on data compiled from historical experience.

{0} Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its components in the
consolidated financial statements. The Company reperis the change in pension benefit plans assets/liabilities, cumulative foreign

-9.



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

currency translation, change in fair value of investments and change in fair value of interest rate swap as components of accumulated
other comprehensive loss (*AOCI™).

The tax effects of the camponents of other comprehensive income {loss) for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows
(in thousands}):

Tax (Expense)
Before-Tax Amount, . Begefit = _Net-of-Tax Amount
Other comprehensive income (Joss):

Defined benefit pension plan edjustments 5 il % 1995 % 2,026
Foreign currency transiation adjustment {5,897) 2,683 (3,214)
Unrealized gain (loss) in fair value of investments 1,123 {357) 766
Unrealized gain {loss) in fair value of interest rate swap (31 {88) (125)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 5 {4,780) § 4& $ (547)

The changes in AOCI balances by component (after-tax) for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows!" (in thousands):

Unrealized Gain Accumulated Other
Unrealized Gain (Loss) in Fair Value Comprehensive

Defined Benefit Foreign Currency  {Loss} in Fair Value of Interest Rate Income
— PensionPlan = Teansiation _ __offovestments = _____ Swap  ___ (Losg) Net
Ralance as of December 31, 2014 1 (40,268) § (1,389) % {110) % 149 § {41,618)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 2026 {3,214) 166 {125} {547}
Balance as of December 31, 2015 5 (38242) § (4,603) § 656 $ 24 § {42,165)

" There were no reclassifications from AOCI during the year ended December 31, 2015.
{p) New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2054-09, Revenue from Contracts with Custamers (Topic 606), which supersedes the
revenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue Recognrition. This ASU addresses when and how an entity should recognize
revenue for the transfer of goods and/or services to customers. This ASU is effective for fiscal year and interim periods within those
years beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of this ASU will have on
its financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810) , which amends the consolidation standard and
updates the analysis that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of legal entities. The
amcndment modifics the cvaluation of whether limited partnerships and similar legal entities arc variable interest entities (VIEs) or
voling interest entities and affects the consolidation analysis of repeorting cntitics that are involved with VIEs, particularly those that
have fee arangements and related party relationships, among other provisions. This ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of
this ASU will have on its financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest — Imputation of Interest {(Subtopic 835-30). This ASU requires that debt
issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of
that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. In August 2015, the FASB also issued ASU 2015-15, Interest—Imputation of
Interest (Subtopic 835-30}: Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated With Line-of-Credit
Arrangements — Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to Staff Announcement ar June 18, 2015, EITF Meeting. This update
allows an entity to defer and present debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements as an asset and subsequentty amortize
the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, rcgardless of whether there are any
outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. These ASUs are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2015. The adoption of these ASUs is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes (Sublopic 740-10). This ASU

require entities to present all deferred tax assets and all deferred tax liabilities as noncurrent in a classified balance sheet. This ASU is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016, The Company had $26.3 million
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of current deferred tax assets and $24.9 million of current deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2015, which will be presented as
noncurrent upon adoption of this ASU.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No, 2016-02, Leases (Topic-842} which amends the existing guidance in ASC 840 Leases.
This amendment requires the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases currently classified as operating
leases. Other significant provisions of the amendment include (i} defining the “lease term” to include the non-cancellable period
together with periods for which there is a significant economic incentive for the lessee to extend or not terminate the lease; (ii)
defining the initial lease liability to be recorded on the balance sheet to contemplate only those variable lease payments that depend on
an index or that are in substance “fixed”; and (iii) a dual approach for determining whether lease expense is recognized on a straight-
line or accelerated basis, depending on whether the lessee is expected to consume more than an insignificant portion of the leased
asset’s economic benefits. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of this ASU will have on its financial statements.

2. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Below are the changes in other components of working capital, as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the
supplemental disclosure of cash paid for interest and income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Decrease (Increase) in:

Accounts receivable $ 4,734

Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings (178,774)

Other current assets (38,615)
Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts payable 139,290

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings (30,985)

Accrued expenses (24,426)
Changes in other components of working capital $ (128.777)
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest s 45,055

Income taxes $ 35299

3. Fair Value Measurements
The fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, prioritizes the use of inputs used in valuation techniques
into the following three levels:

Level 1 — quoled prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2 — inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are abservable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 — unobservable inputs
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The following table presents, for each of the fair value hierarchy levels required under ASC 820, the Company's assets and liabilities |
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands): \

Esir Yalue Hierarchy
Total Levell Level 2 eve
Asgets:
Cash and cash equivalents (a) $ 75452 § 75452 8 s
Restncted cash (a) 45853 45,853
Investments in licu of customer retainage (b) 41,566 35,350 6216
Total s 162871 3 156,655 § 6216 %
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap contract (c) $ 45 $ H 45 3
Contingent consideration (d)
Total $ 45 § $ 45 3

(a) Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash consist primarily of money market funds with original maturnity dates of three months
or less, for which fair value is determined through quoted market prices.

(b) Investments in lieu of customer retainage are classified as accounts receivable and are comprised of money market funds, U.S.
Treasury Notes and other municipal bonds, the majority of which are rated Aa3 or better. The fair values of the U.S. Treasury
Notes and municipal bonds are obtained from readily-available pricing sources for comparable instruments, and as such, the
Company has classified these assets as Level 2.

(c) The Company values the interest rate swap liability utilizing a discounted cash flow model that takes into consideration forward
interest rates observable in the market and the counterparty’s credit risk.

(d) Represents earn-out payments for businesses acquired in 2011. The earn-out payments were estimated based on the projected
operating results of the acquired businesses. The fair value of the earn-out payments was estimated by calculating their present
value using discount rates ranging from 14% to 18%.

The following is a summary of changes in Level 3 liabilities during 2015 (in thousands):

Contingeat
— Consideration
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 24,814
Fair value adjustments included in other income (expense), net (3,739

Amount no longer subject to contingency {21.075)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ ~

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these items. The carrying
values of reccivables, payables, other amounts arising out of normal contract activities, including retainage, which may be settled
beyond one year, are estimated to approximate fair value. Of the Company's long-term debt, the fair value of the Senior Notes as of
December 31, 2015 was 3$305.6 miliion, compared to the carrying value of $299.0 million. The fair value of the Senior Notes was
calculated using Level 1 inputs based on quoted prices in the aclive markets for the Senior Notes as of December 31, 2015. For other
fixed rate debt, fair value is determined using Level 3 inputs based on discounted cash flows for the debt at the Company's current
incremental borrowing rate for similar types of debt. The estimated fair values of other fixed rate debt as of December 31, 2015 was
$121.7 million, compared to the carrying amounts of $124.7 million. The fair value of variable rate debt, which includes the
Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan, approximated its carrying value of $399.7 million as of December 31, 2015.
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4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the Company's reporting units for 2015
(in thousands):

Specialty
Civil Building Contractors Total

Balance as of December 31, 2014® $ 415358 8 13,455 § 156,193 § 585,006

2015 activity : :

Balance as of December 31, 2015® 5 415358 § 13455 3§ 156,193 § 585,006

{a) Balances presented include historical accumulated impairment of $76.7 million for the Civil segment and $411.3 million for the
Building segment.

The following table presents the carrying value and accumulated amortization, as appropriate, of intangible assets other than goodwill
as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Yalue __ Amortization Valye
Trade names (non-amortizable) b 50410 § NA § 50,410
Trade names (amortizable) ® 51,118 {11,316) 39,802
Customer relationships 23,155 __ (16,827) 6,328
Total p 124,683 § (28,143) $ 96,540

(a) The weighted-average amortization period for amortizable trade names and customer relationships is 20 years and 11 years,
respectively.

Amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $3.7 million. Future
amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets is as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year
2016 $ 35
2017 35
2018 35
2019 35
2020 35
Thereafter 28.6
Total $ 46.1

5. Financial Commitments
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2015 consists of the following (in thousands):

Senior Notes ($300,000 face, less unamortized discount of $933) $ 299,067
Revolving Credit Facility 158,000
Term Loan 223,750
Equipment financing, mortgages and acquisition-related notes 133,288
Other indebtedness 9,343
Total debt 823,448
Less — current maturities (28,917)
Long-term debt, net § 734,531
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Senior Notes

In October 2010, the Company issued $300 mitlion of 7.625% senior unsecured notes (the “Senior Notes™) due November 1, 2018, in
a private offering exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933. The Company received net proceeds of
$293.2 million from the issuance, after discounts and issuance costs. The Senior Notes pay interest semi-annually on May | and
November | of each year. The Company may redeem these notes at a redemption price equal to 101.9 percent of their principal
amount prior to October 31, 2016 and subsequently without a redemption premium. However, if a change of control triggering event
occurs, as defined by the terms of the indenture, the Company is required to offer to redeem the notes at a redemption price equal to
101 percent of their principal amount. At the date of any redemption, any accrued and unpaid interest is also due. The Senior Notes are
senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s existing and future subsidiaries
that also guaraniee obligations under the Company’s Credit Agreement as defined below. In addition, the indenture for the Senior
Notes provides for customary events of default such as restrictions on the payment of dividends and share repurchases.

Credit Agreement - Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan

In June 2014, the Company entered into a Sixth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Original Facility™), restructuring its
former $300 million Revolving Credit Facility and 3200 million Term Loan and providing for a $300 million revolving credit facility
(the “Original Revolver") and a $250 million term loan (the “Original Term Loan"), both maturing on June 5, 2019, Principal on the
Original Term Loan was originally payable on a quarterly basis beginning on September 38, 2014, with approximate aggregate
principal paymeats for each year ending December 31, as follows: $7 million in 2014, $19 million in 2015, $26 million in 2016, $34
million in 2017, $41 million in 2018 and $123 million in 2019, The Company may repay all borrowings under the Original Facility at
any time before maturity without penalty.

Interest on the Criginal Revolver depended on how the Company utilized the facility to meet its liquidity needs. As a result, the
interest rate could equal either Bank of America's prime lending rate, plus an applicable margin, or the London Interbank Offered
Rate (“"LIBOR"), plus an applicable margin, ranging from either 1.25% to 2.00% or 2.25% to 3.00%, based on a pricing tier utilizing
the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio. Similarly, the interest rate on the Original Term Loan was equal to LIBOR plus an
applicable margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.00%. The Company also has an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of
$25 million that effectively converted interest on $25 million of the debt from a variable rate to a fixed rate of 0.975%. The swap
expires in June 2016, and there 15 no requirement under the Original Facility to enter into an additional swap agreement at that time,

The Original Facility provides a sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit up to the aggregate amount of $150 millien.

The Original Facility also allowed the Company to either increase the Original Facility or establish one or more new term loan
commitments (an accordion feature), up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $300 million.

Amended Credit Agreement

On February 26, 2016, we cntered into Waiver and Amendment No. | (the “Amendment”) to the Original Facility (collectively, the
“Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer and a syndicate of other
lenders. As a result of the Company’s financial results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, which included the previously
reported $23.9 million non-cash, pre-tax charge from an adverse ruling on the Brightwater litigation matter in the third quarter as weil
as $45.6 million of pre-tax charges in the third and fourth quarters for Five Star Electric, the Company was nol in compliance with the
required consolidated leverage ratio and consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio under the Original Facility, which are both
calculated on a rolling four quarter basis. In the Amendment, the lenders waived these covenant violations and modified certain
provisions of the Original Facility.

The Credit Facility provides for a $300 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolver™) and a $250 million term loan (the “Term
Loan™). As a result of the Amendment, both the Revolver and the Term Loan will now mature on May |, 2018. The Term Loan
principal payments have been modified to include certain additional principal payments which will be applied against the balloon
payment (discussed below). Boarrowings under the Revolver bear interest, based either on Bank of America’s prime lending rate, plus
an applicable margin, or the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), plus an applicable margin. Borrowings under the Term Loan
bear interest based on LIBOR plus an appticable margin. Under the terms of the Amendment, for so long as the Company’s
consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 3.5 to 1.0, it will not be permitted to make LIBOR-based borrowings and will be subject to
an increased interest rate on borrowings, with such rate being 100 basis points higher than the highest rate under the Original Facility
while the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 3.5 to 1.0 but not more than 4.0 to 1.0, and an additiona) 100 basis
points higher while the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio is greater than 4.0 to 1.0, The Company also will be subject to
increased commitment fees at these higher leverage ratio levels. In addition, until the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio goes
below 3.5 to 1.0, LIBOR-bascd borrowings will convert to base rate borrowings. The Amendment provides for the exclusion of the
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impact of the Brightwater litigation matter from the calculation of the Company's consolidated leverage ratio and consolidated fixed
charge coverage ratio. Interest payments will be due on a monthly basis, rather than a quarterly basis. If the Company is in compliance
with the leverage and fixed charge ratio covenants provided in the Original Facility as of December 31, 2016, interest payments will
again be due on a quarterly basis thereafter. The Amendment also removes the accordion feature of the Original Facility, which would
have allowed, as noted above, either an increase of $300 million in the Revolver or the establishment of one or more new term loan
commitments.

The Amendment also modifies several of the covenants in the Original Facility, including the Company’s maximum zllowable
consolidated leverage ratio to be at 4.25:1.00 in the first quarter of 2016, stepping down to 4.0:1.0 in the second and third quarters of
2016 and then returning to the Original Facility’s range of 3.25:1.00 to 3.00:1.00 beginning with the fourth quarter of 2016. The Credit
Facility will continue to require the Company to maintain a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.25:1.00. Other
usual and customary covenants for credit facilities of this type (such as, restrictions on the payment of dividends and share
repurchases) were included in the Original Facility (subject to certain modifications made in the Amendment), while the Amendment
adds covenants regarding the Company's liquidity, including a cap on the cash balance in the Company’s bank account and a weekly
minimum liquidity requirement (based on specified available cash balances and availability under the Revolver). The Amendment also
requires the Company to achieve certain quarterly cash collection milestones and increases the lenders’ collateral package. Beginning
in the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company will be required to make quarterly principal payments towards the Term Loan balloon
payment, based on a percentage of certain forecasted cash collections for the prior quarter, in addition to the scheduled amortization
payments of the Original Facility.

Substantially all of the Company's subsidiaries unconditionally guarantee our obligations under the Credit Facility. The obligations
under the Credit Facility are secured by a lien on substantially all real and personal property of the Company and its subsidiaries party
thereto. Under the Amendment, the Company agreed to increase the lenders’ collateral package, including by pledging to the lenders
(i) the equity interests of each direct domestic subsidiary of the Company and (ii) 65% of the stock of each material first-tier foreign
restricted subsidiary of the Company.

The Term Loan balance was $223.8 million at December 31, 2015. The next quarterly Term Loan payment under the Credit Facility is
due and payable in March of 2016.

We had $158.0 million of outstanding borrowings under our Revolver as of December 31, 2015. We utilized the Revolver for letiers
of credit in the amount of $0.2 million as of December 31, 2015. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2015, we had $141.8 million
available to borrow under the Revolver.

There were no other material changes in our contractual debt obligations as of December 31, 2015. As of the issuance date of these
consolidated financial statements and giving effect 1o the Amendment, we are in compliance with the modified financial covenants
under the Credit Facility.

Equipment Financing, Mortgages and Acquisition-Related Notes

The Company has certain loans entered into for the purchase of specific property, plant and equipment and secured by the assets
purchased. The aggregate balance of equipment financing loans was approximately $70.6 million as of December 31, 2015 with
interest rates ranging from 2.12% to 4.85% with schedules calling for cqual principal and interest payments over periods up to five
years. The aggregate balance of transportation-equipment financing loans was approximately $45.0 million December 31, 2015 with
interest rates ranging from a fixed 3.35% to LIBOR plus 3% and equal monthly installment payments over periods up to ten years and
balloon payments of $12.4 million in 2021 and $6.15 million in 2022 on the remaining loans outstanding at December 31, 2015. The
aggregate balance of mortgage loans was approximately $17.7 million as of December 31, 2015 with interest rates based on LIBOR
plus applicable margins up to 3% or prime less 1.0%, depending on the loan, and equal monthly installment payments over periods up
to ten years with additional balloon payments of $5.6 million in 2016, $2.6 million in 2018 and $6.7 million in 2023,

During 2011, the Company issued approximately $21.7 million of 5% promissory noles in conjunction with an acquisition. The
Company paid all outstanding principa! and accrued interest on these notes in 2015.
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The following table presents the future principal payments required under all of the Company’s debt obligations, discussed above,
including the terms of the Amendment (in thousands).

Flscal Year
2016 3 88,917
2017 124,008
2018 407,575
2019 169,790
2020 4,824
Thereafter 28334
3 823,448
Leases

The Company leases certain construction equipment, vehicles and office space under non-cancelable operating leases. Future
minimum rent payments under non-canceiable operating leases as of December 31, 2015 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
2016 3 26,819
2017 19,958
2018 15478
2019 10,549
2020 8,923
Thereafter 24 927
Subtotal 106,654
Less - Sublease rental agreements {3.833)
Total 3 102,821

1

Rental expense under operating leases of construction equipment, vehicles and office space was $17.4 million in 2015.
6. Income Taxes

Income before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015 is summarized as follows (in thousands):

United States Operations $ 69,822
Foreign Operations 4017
Total 3 73,839

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

Current expense:
Federal $ 5,465
State (362)
Foreign 1,126
Total current 6,229

Deferred (benefit) expense:

Federal 19,583
State 2,735
Foreign =
Total deferred 22318
Total provision $ 28,547
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The following table is a reconciliation of the Company’s provision for income taxes at the statutory rates to the provision for income
taxes at the Company's effective rate for 2015 (dollars in thousands).

Amount Ratg

Federal income expense at statutory tax rate $ 25,844 350 %
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1,250 1.7
Officers’ compensation 2,900 39
Domestic Production Activities Deduction (1,499) (2.0)
Impact of state tax rate changes on deferred 2,435 33
Other (2,383) (3.2)
Provision for income taxes 5 28,547 38.7 %

The Company's provision for income taxes and effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2015 were significantly impacted
by a favorable discrete item related to the reversal of FIN 48 reserves due to the resolution of certain state tax matters.

The following is a summary of the significant components of the defesred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2015
(in thousands):

Deferr ax Assets

Timing of expense recognition $ 58,048
Net operating losses 3,564
Other, net 114,225
Deferred tax assets 175,837
Valuation allowance {460)
Net deferred tax assets 175,377
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Intangible assets, due primarily to purchase accounting {99,549)
Fixed assets, due primarily to purchase accounting (101,022)
Construction contract accounting (7,530)
Joint ventures - construction (27,604)
Other (62,494)
Deferred tax liabilities (298,199)
Net deferred tax liability b (122,822)

The net deferred tax liability is classified in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015 based on when the future tax
benefit or expense is expecied to be realized as follows (in thousands):

Current deferred tax asset b3 26,306
Long-term deferred tax asset 149,071
Current deferred tax liability (24,889)
Long-term deferred tax liability (273,310
Net deferred tax liability b3 (122,822)

The Company had & valuation allowance of $0.5 million as of December 3, 2015 for federal and state capital loss carryforwards as
the ultimate wtilization of this item was not likely.

The Company has not provided for deferred income taxes or foreign withholding tax on basis differences in its non-U.S, subsidiaries
that result from undistributed earnings aggregating $12.1 million which the Company has the intent and the ability to reinvest in its
foreign operations. Generally, the U.S. income taxes imposed upon repatriation of undistributed earmings would be reduced by foreign
tax credits from foreign income taxes paid on the eamings. Determination of the deferred income tax liability on these basis
differences is not reasonably estimable because such liability, if any, is dependent on circumstances existing if and when remittance
occurs.

The Company's policy is to record interest and penalties on unrecognized tax benefits as an element of income tax expense. The
cumulative amounts related to interest and penalties are added to the total unrecognized tax liabilities on the balance sheet. The total
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amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2015 that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $3.6
million. The Company does not expect any significant release of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve moaths.

The Company accounts for its uncertain tax positions in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending
amounts of these tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

Beginning balance 5 7,636
Change in tax positions of prior years (3,073)
Change in tax positions of current year 169
Reduction in tax positions for statute expirations {1,120)

Ending Balance 3 3612

We conduct business internationally and, as a result, one or more of our subsidiaries files income tax returns in U.S. federal, U.S. state
and certain foreign jurisdictions. Accordingly, in the normal course of business, we are subject to examination by taxing authorities
principally throughout the United States, Guam and Canada. We are no longer under examination by the taxing autherity regarding
any U.S. federal income tax returns for years before 2011 while the years open for examination under various state and local
jurisdictions vary.

7. Contingencies and Commitments

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are involved in litigation and are contingently liable for commitments and performance
guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company and certain of its customers have made claims arising from the
performance under their contracts. The Company recognizes certain significant claims for recovery of incurred cost when it is
probabie that the claim will result in additional coniract revenue and when the amount of the claim can be reliably estimated. These
assessments require judgments concerning matters such as litigation developments and outcomes, the anticipated outcome of
negotiations, the number of future claims and the cost of both pending and future claims. In addition, because most contingencies are
resolved over long periods of time, liabilities may change in the future due to various factors.

Several matters are in the litigation and dispute resolution process and represent contingent losses or gains to the Company. The
following discussion provides a background and current status of the more significant matters.

Tutor-Saliba-Perini Joint Venture vs. Los Angeles MTA Matter

During 1995, Tutor-Saliba-Perini (“Joint Venture") filed a complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of
Los Angeles against the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (“LAMTA™), seeking to recover costs for extra
work required by LAMTA in connection with the construction of certain tunnel and station projects, all of which were completed by
1996. In 1999, LAMTA countered with civil claims under the California False Claims Act against the Joint Venture, Tutor-Saliba and
Perini Corporation jointly and severally (together, “TSP"), and obtained a judgment that was reversed on appeal and remanded for
retrial before a different judge.

Between 2005 and 2010, the court granted certain Joint Venture motions and LAMTA capitulated on others, which reduced the
number of false claims LAMTA may seek and limited LAMTA"s claims for damages and penaltics. In September 2010, LAMTA
dismissed its remaining claims and agreed to pay the entire amount of the Joint Venture's remaining claims plus intercst. In the
remanded proceedings, the Court subsequently entered judgment in favor of TSP and against LAMTA in the amount of $3.0 million
after deducting $0.5 million, representing the tunnel handrail verdict plus accrued interest against TSP. The parties filed post-trial
motions for costs and fees. The Court ruled that TSP’s sureties could recover costs, LAMTA could recover costs for the tunnel
handrail trial and no party could recover attomeys’ fees. TSP appealed the false claims jury verdict on the tunnel handrail claim and
other issues, including the denial of TSP’s and its sureties” request for attorneys’ fees. LAMTA subsequently filed its cross-appeal. In
June 2014, the Court of Appeal issued its decision reversing judgment on the People's Unfair Competition claim and reversing the
denial of TSP's Sureties’ request for attomey's fees and affirming the remainder of the judgment. In January 2015, payment was made
by LAMTA in the amount of $3.8 million in settlement of all outstanding issucs except for the attorney’s fees for TSP’s Sureties.

On May 1, 2015, TSP’s Surety’'s motions for attorney’s fees were heard, and the Court issued its written ruling on May 5, 2015 in
favor of TSP's Sureties for a total award of $2.1 million. The Court denied adding interest onto these amounts. On June 26, 2015,
payment was made by LAMTA for these amounts, which was received by TSP. Based on the Court’s decision, the Company wrate off
the remaining booked position, which was immaterial to its consolidated financial statements. On June 23, 2015, TSP's Sureties filed

a Notice of Appeal challenging the amount awarded to seek an increase. The appeal remains pending while the Court prepares the trial
record for the Court of Appeal. However, the Company does not expect the ultimate resclution of this matter to have a material effect
on its consolidated financial statements,
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Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Matter

The Company reconstructed the Long Island Expressway/Cross Island Parkway Interchange project for the New York State
Department of Transportation (the “NYSDOT"). The $130 million project was substantially completed in January 2004 and was
accepted by the NYSDOT as finally complete in February 2006. The Company incurred significant added costs in completing its work
and suffered extended schedule costs due to numerous design errors, undisclosed utility conflicts, lack of coordination with local
agencies and other interferences for which the Company believes the NYSDOT is responsible.

In March 201§, the Company filed its claim and complaint with the New York State Court of Claims and served to the New York
State Attorney General’s Office, seeking damages in the amount of $53.8 million. In May 2011, the NYSDOT filed a motion to
dismiss the Company’s claim on the grounds that the Company had not provided required documentation for project closeout and
filing of a claim. In September 2011, the Company reached agreement on final payment with the Comptroller’s Oifice on behalf of the
NYSDOT which resulted in an amount of $0.5 million payable to the Company and formally closed out the project allowing the
Company to re-file its claim. The Company re-filed its claim in the amount of $53.8 million with the NYSDOT in February 2012 and
with the Court of Claims in March 2012. In May 2012, the NYSDOT served its answer and counterclairos in the amount of $151
million alleging fraud in the inducement and punitive damages related to disadvantaged business enterprise ("DBE") requirements for
the project. The Court subsequently ruled that NYSDOT's counterclaims may only be asserted as a defense and offset to the
Company's claims and not as affirmative claims. In November 2014, the Appeliate Division First Department affirmed the dismissal
of the City’s affirmative defenses and counterclaims based on DBE fraud. The Company does not expect the counterclaims to have
any material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements at that time.

Fontainebleau Matter

Desert Mechanical Inc. (“DMI") and Fisk Electric Company (“Fisk”), wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, were
subcontractors on the Fontainebleau Project in Las Vegas (“Fontainebleau'), a hotel/casino compiex with approximately 3,800 rooms.
In June 2009, Fontainebleau filed for bankruptcy protection, under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, in the Southern District
of Florida. Fontainebleau is headquartered in Miami, Florida.

DMI and Fisk filed liens in Nevada for approximately $44 million, representing unreimbursed costs to date and lost profits, including
anticipated profits. Other unaffiliated subcontractors have also filed liens. In June 2009, DMI filed suit against Tumberry West
Construction, Inc., the general contractor, in the 8th Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada, and in May 2010, the court entered
an order in favor of DMI for approximately $45 million.

In January 2010, the Bankrupicy Court approved the sale of the property to Icahn Nevada Gaming Acquisition, LLC, and this
transaction closed in February 2010, As a result of a July 2010 ruling relating to certain priming liens, there was approximately $125
million set aside from this sale, which is available for distribution to satisfy the creditor claims based on seniority. At that time, the
total estimated sustainable lien amount was approximately $350 million. The project lender filed suit against the mechanic’s lien
claimants, including DMI and Fisk, alleging that certain mechanic’s liens are invalid and that all mechanic’s liens are subordinate to
the lender's claims against the property. The Nevada Supreme Court ruled in October 2012 in an advisory opinion at the request of the
Bankxuptcy Court that licn priorities would be determined in favor of the mechanic lien holders under Ncvada law.

In October 2013, a scttlement was reached by and among the Statutory Lienholders and the other interested parties. The agreed upon
settlement has not had an impact on the Company’s recorded accounting position as of the year ended December 31, 2015. The
execution of that settlement agreement continues under the supervision of a mediator appointed by the Bankruptcy Court.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this praject, and such cstimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the financial statements at that time.

Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges Matter

In 1999, the Company was awarded a contract for reconstruction of the Honeywell Street/Queens Boulevard Bridges project for the
City of New York (the “City™). In June 2003, after substantial completion of the project, the Company initiated an action to recover
$8.8 million in claims against the City on behalf of itself and its subcontractors. In March 2010, the City filed counterclaims for $74.6
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million and other relief, alleging fraud in connection with the DBE requirements for the project. In May 2010, the Company served the |
City with its response to the City’s counterclaims and affirmative defenses. In August 2013, the Court granted the Company’s motion
to dismiss the City’s affirmative defenses and counterclaims relating to fraud. In September 2013, the City filed a Notice of Appeal to
the Court’s decision; said appeal was dismissed by the Appellate Court in November 2014, Discovery is ongoing and is expected to
conclude in early 2016.

The Company does not expect ultimate resolution of this matter to have any material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
Westgate Planet Hollywood Matter

Tutor-Saliba Corporation (“TSC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, contracted to construct a timeshare development
project in Las Vegas which was substantially completed in December 2009. The Company’s claims against the owner, Westgate
Planet Hollywood Las Vegas, LLC (“WPH"), relate to unresolved owner change orders and other claims, The Company filed a lien on
the project in the amount of $23.2 million, and filed its complaint with the District Court, Clark County, Nevada. Several
subcontractors have also recorded liens, some of which have been released by bonds and some of which have been released as a result
of subsequent payment. WPH has posted a mechanic's lien release bond for $22.3 million.

WPH filed a cross-complaint alleging non-conforming and defective work for approximately $51 million, primarily related to alleged
defects, misallocated costs, and liquidated damages. WPH revised the amount of their counterclaims to approximately $45 mitlion.

Following multiple post-trial motions, final judgment was entered in this matter on March 20, 2014. TSC was awarded total judgment
in the amount of $19.7 million on its breach of contract claim, which includes an award of interest up through the date of judgment,
plus attorney’s fees and costs. WPH has paid $0.6 million of that judgment. WPH was awarded total judgment in the amount of $3.1
million on its construction defect claims, which includes interest up through the date of judgment. The awards are oot offsetting. WPH
and its Sureties have filed a notice of appeal. TSC has filed a notice of appeal on the defect award. In July 2014, the Court ordered
WPH to post an additional supersedeas bond on appeal, in the amount of $1.7 million, in addition to the lien release bond of $22.3
million, which increases the security up to $24.0 million. The Nevada Supreme Court is anticipated to rule on this matter during the
first quarter of 2016,

The Company does not expeet ultimate resolution of this matter to have any material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the financial statements at that time.

Brightwater Matter

In 2006, the Department of Natural Resources and Parks Wastewater Treatment Division of King County (“King County”), as Gwner,
and Vinci Construction Grands Projects/Parsons RCI/Frontier-Kemper, Joint Venture (“VPFK"), as Contractor, entered into a contract
to construcl the Brightwater Conveyance System and tunnel scctions in Washington State. Frontier-Kemper, a 20% minority pariner in
the joint venture, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that was acquired in June 2011.

In April 2010, King County filed a lawsuit alleging damages in the amount of $74 millien, plus costs, for VPFK’s failure to complete
specified components of the project in the King County Superior Court, State of Washington. Shortly thereafler, VPFK filed a
counterclaim in the amount of approximately $75 million, seeking reimbursement for additional costs incurred as a result of differing
site conditions, King County’s defective specifications, and for damages sustained on VPFK's tunnel boring machines (“TBM"), and
increased costs as a result of hyperbaric interventions. VPFK's claims were presented to a Dispute Resolution Board who generally
found that King County was liable to VPFK for VPFK's claims for encountering differing site conditions, including damages to the
TBM, but not on claims related to defective design specifications. From June through August 2012, each party filed several motions
for summary judgment on certain claims and requests in preparation for trial, which were heard and ruled upon by the Court, The
Court granted and denied various requests of each party related to evidence and damages.

In December 2012, a jury verdict was received in favor of King County in the amount of $155.8 million and a verdict in faver of
VPFK in the amount of $26.3 million. In late April 2013, the Court ruled on post-trial motions and ordered VPFK's sureties to pay
King County's attorneys’ fees and costs in the amount of $14.7 million. All other motions were denied. On May 7, 2013, VPFK paid
the full verdict amount and the associated fees, thus terminating any interest on the judgment. VPFK's notice of appeal was filed on
May 31, 2013. King County has appcaled approximately $17.0 million of the verdict award in VPFK’s favor and VPFK's sureties
have appealed the Court’s order granting King County’s request for legal fees and costs. Oral argument was held on March 9, 2015.
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The Company received notice on November 9, 2015, that the Court of Appeals of the State of Washington filed their decision that
day, which affirmed the trial court’s judgment and denied the appeals brought forth by both VPFK and King County. Management
baoked the impact of this judgment during the third quarter of 2015, resulting in a non-cash, pre-tax charge of $23.9 million. The
Court granted King County’s request for recovery of reasonable attorney fees and appellate costs but did not quaatify an amount. The
Company does not expect the award of attorney fees, while not specifically determinable, to have a material financial impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

156 Stations Matter

In December 2003, Five Star Electric Corporation (“FSE”), a2 wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with the Prime Contractor Transit Technologies, L.L.C., a Consortium member of Siemens Transportation Transit Technologies,
L.L.C., to assist in the installation of new public address and customer information screens system for each of the 156 stations for the
New York City Transit Authority as the owner.

In June 2012, an arbitration panel awarded FSE a total of approximately $11.9 million. Subsequently, the Court affirmed FSE’s
position; however, it decided that only $8.5 million of the total arbitration award of $11.9 million can be recovered against the
payment bond. In December 2014, FSE filed its reply for the motion for re-argument with regard to the reduction in recoverable costs
against the payment bond.

This matter was fully settled in April 2015 and payment was received. The settlement amount was consistent with the Company’s
recorded position and, accordingly, the settlement did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

U.S. Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Matter

Rudolph and Sletten, Inc, (*"R&S"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract with the United States
Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration ("NOAA™} for the construction of a 287,000 square-
foot facility for NOAA's Southwest Fisheries Science Center Replacement Headquarters and Laboratory in La Jolla, California. The
contract work began on May 24, 2010, and was substantially completed in September 2012. R&S incurred significant additional costs
as a result of a design that contained errors and omissions, NOAA's unwillingness to correct design flaws in a timely fashion and a
refusal to negotiate the time and pricing associated with change order work.

R&S has filed three centified claims against NCAA for contract adjustments related to the unresolved Owner change orders, delays,
design deficiencies and other claims. The First Certified Claim was submitted on August 20, 2013, in the amount of $26.8 million
{"First Certified Claim") and the Second Certified Claim was submitted on October 30, 2013, in the amount of $2.6 million ("Second
Certified Claim") and the Third Certified Claim was submitted on October 1, 2014 in the amount of $0.7 million (“Third Certified
Claim").

NOAA requested an extension to issue a decision on the First Certified Claim and on the Third Certified Claim, but did not request an
extension of time to review the Second Certified Claim. On January 6, 2014, R&S filed suit in the United States Federal Court of
Claims on the Second Certified Claim plus interest and attorney's fees and costs. This was followed by a submission of a lawsuit on
the First Certified Claim on July 31, 2014. In Fcbruary 2015, the Court denied NOAA's motion to dismiss the Second Centified Ciaim.
In March 2015, the Contracting Officer issued decisions on all Claims accepting a total of approximately $1.0 million of claims and
denying approximately $29.5 million of claims. On April 14, 2015, the Court consolidated the cases and has commenced discovery
through mid-2016. No trial date has been set.

Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated recovery on this project, and such estimate is included in revenue recorded
to date, To the extent new facts become known or the final recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the cstimate, the
impact of the change will be reflected in the financial stalements at that time.

Five Star Elcctric Matter

In the third quarter of 2015, Five Star Electric Corp ("Five Star"), a subsidiary of the Company that was acquired in 2011, cntered into
a tolling agreement refated to an ongoing investigation being conducted by the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of New
York ("USAOQ EDNY™"). The tolling agreement extended the statute of limitations to avoid the expiration of any unexpired statute of
limitations while the investigation is pending. Five Star has been cooperating with the USAO EDNY since late June 2014, when it was
first made aware of the investigation, and has been providing information related to its use of certain minority-owned, women-owned,
small and disadvantaged business enterprises and, in addition, most recently information regarding certain of Five Star’s employee
compensation, benefit and tax practices. The investigation covers the period of 2005-2014.
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The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of the investigation and cannot accurately estimate any potential liability that Five
Star or the Company may incur or the irnpact of the results of the investigation on Five Star or the Company.

Alaskan Way Viaduct Matter

In January 2011, Seattle Tunnel Partners (“STP”), a joint venture between Dragados USA, Inc. and the Company, entered into a
design-build contract with the Washington State Department of Transportation ("WSDOT") for the construction of a large diameter
bored tunnel in downtown Seattle, King County, Washington to replace the Alaskan Way Viaduct, also known as State Route 99,

The construction of the large diameter bored tunnel requires the use of a tunnel bering machine (“TBM™). In December 2013, the
TBM struck a steel pipe, installed by WSDOT as a well casing for an exploratory well. The TBM was damaged and was required to be
shut down for repair. STP has asserted that the steel pipe casing was a differing site condition that WSDOT failed to properly disclose.
The Disputes Review Board mandated by the contract to hear disputes issued a decision finding the steel casing was a Type I differing
site condition. WSDOT has not accepted that finding,

The TBM is insured under a Builder’s Risk Insurance Policy (“the Policy™) with Great Lakes Reinsurance (UK) PLC and a
consortium of other insurers (the “Insurers"). STP submitted the claims to the insurer and requested interim payments under the
Policy. The Insurers refused to pay and denied coverage. In June 2015, STP filed a lawsuit in the King County Superior Court, State
of Washington seeking declaratory relief concerning contract interpretation as well as damages as a result of the Insurers’ breach of its
obligations under the terms of the Policy, and added WSDOT as a defendant since WSDOT is an insured under the Policy and had
filed its own claim for damages. In August 2015, the Insurers filed a complaint in the Supreme Court, State of New York County
seeking declaratory relief concerning contract interpretation. The Court in New York has stayed the Insurers® lawsuit pending a
decision from the Washington State Court.

[n October 2015, WSDOT filed a complaint against STP in the King County Superior Court, State of Washington for breach of
contract and declaratory relief concerning contract interpretation.

As of December 2015, the Company has cancluded that the potential for a material adverse financial impact due to the Insurer’s and
WSDOT"s respective legal actions are neither probable nor remote. Management has made an estimate of the total anticipated
recovery on this project and such estimate is included in revenue recorded to date. To the extent new facts become known or the final
recovery included in the claim settlement varies from the estimate, the impact of the change will be reflected in the financial
statements at that time.

8. Share-Based Compensation

The Company’s executive share-based compensation plan provides for various types of share-based grants, including restricted stock
units and stock options. Restricted stock units give the holder the right to exchange their restricted stock units for shares of the
Company’s common 5tock on a one-for-one basis. Stock options give the holder the right to purchase shares of the Company’s
common slock at an exercise price equal to the fair value of the Company’s common slock on the date of the stock option's award.
Awards are usually subject to certain service and performance conditions and may not be sold or otherwise transferred until those
restrictions have been satisfied. The term for stock options is limited to 10 years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2015,
there were 489,022 shares available to be granted under the Company’s share-based compensation plan. Many of the awards under the
plan allow for the fractional earning of the entire award based on achicving separate vesting criteria for separate performance periods.
The Company accounts for each fractional portion of these awards as a separate grant, with the grant date established at the date when
the performance target for a given period is set and communicated to the grantee. As of December 31, 2015, there were 754,500
restricted stock units and 722,000 stock options that have been awarded, but are not yet granted.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock unit and stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2015;

Restricted Stock Units Stock Options
Welghted-Averzge
Grant Date Weighted-Average

Fair Value Exercise/(Strike)

Number Per Share Number Price Per Share
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 1,056,597 % 26.54 1,989,000 § 19.63
Granted 321,500 23.07 259,000 16.07
Expired or forfeited (281,560) 23.89 (250,000) 1597
Vested/exercised (370.940) 27.07 - -
QOuistanding as of December 31, 2015 725,597 § 2528 1,998,000 § 19.62

The fair value of restricted stock units that vested during 2015 was approximately $8.0 million. As of December 31, 2015, the balance

of unamortized restricted stock and stock option expense was $7.5 million and $1.9 million, respectively, which will be recognized
over weighted-average periods of 1.6 years for restricted stock units and 1.4 years for stock options.

The 1,998,000 outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2015 had an intrinsic value of $3.0 million and a weighted-average
remaining contractua! life of 4.9 years. Of those outstanding options: 1) 1,485,000 were exercisable with an intrinsic value of $1.6
million, a weighted-average exercise price of $19.57 per share and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 4.0 years; and

2) 513,000 have been granted but have not vested, of which 483,000 are expected to vest and have an intrinsic value of $1.3 million, a

weighted-average exercise price of $19.27 and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 7.3 years.

The fair value on the grant date and the significant assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! for stack option
awards granted during 2015 are as follows:

Total stock options granted 259,000
Weighted-average grant date fair value § 12.48
Weighted-average assumptions:
Risk-Free Rate 1.3 %
Expected life of options™ 4.7
Expected volatility® 45.5 %
Expected quarterly dividends 3 —

(a) Calculated using the simplified method due to the terms of the stock options and the limited pool of grantees.
(b) Calculated using historical volatility of the Company’s common stock over periods commensurate with the expected life of the
option.

The Company recognized, as part of general and administrative expense, cost for stock-based payment arrangements of $9.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015 with related tax benefits of $4.0 million.
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9. Business Segments

The Company offers general contracting, pre-construction planning and comprehensive project management services, including
planning and scheduling of the manpower, equipment, materials and subcontractors required for the timely completion of a project in
accordance with the terms and specifications contained in a construction contract. The Company also offers self-performed
construction services, including site work, concrete forming and placement, steel erection, electrical, mechanical, plumbing and
HVYAC. Our business is conducted through three segments: Civil, Building and Specialty Contractors, as described further below.
These segments are determined based on how the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (chief operating decision maker)
aggregates business units when evaluating performance and allocating resources.

The Civil segment specializes in public works construction and the repair, replacement and reconstruction of infrastructure. The civi]
contracting services include construction and rehabilitation of highways, bridges, mass-transit systemns, and water management and
wastewater treatment facilities.

The Building segment has significant experience providing services to a number of specialized building markets for private and public
works customers, including the high-rise residential, hospitality and gaming, transportation, health care, commercial and government
offices, sports and entertainment, education, correctional facilities, biotech, pharmaceutical, industrial and high-tech markets.

The Specialty Contractors segment specializes in electrical, mechanical, plumbing, HVAC, fire protection systems and pneumatically
placed concrete for a full range of civil and building construction projects in the industrial, commercial, hospitality and gaming, and
mass-transit end markets. This segment provides unique strengthens and capabilities which position the Company as a full-service
contractor with greater control over scheduled work, project delivery and risk management.

The following tables set forth certain reportable segment information relating to the Company’s operations for the years ended
December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

R e t
Specialty Segment Couasolidsted
Civil Building Contractors Total __ Corporate Tota)

Total Revenue § 2005193 § 1,900,492 § 1,228030 S5 5,133,715 § $ 5,133,715
Elimination of interscgment revenuc {115,286) {97,957 - {(213.243) — {213,243)
Revenue from external customers § 1,889,907 $§ 1,802,535 $§ 1,228,030 § 4,920,472 § - $ 45920472
Income from construction operations:

Before litigation-related charge 3 169,073 § {1,240) § 15,682 § IB3,5i5 § (54,242)(a} $ 129,273

Litigation-related charge (b) (23,860} (23,860} (23.860)
Total s 145,213 % {1,240) % 15,682 § 159,655 § (54,242) 3§ 105,413
Capital Expenditures b 8383 § 2,877 % Li93 § 12,453 % 23,459 % 35912

(a) Consists primarily of corporaie general and administrative expenses.

(b) The Company recorded a non-cash, pre-tax charge of $23.9 million for an adverse appeliate court decision related to a long-
standing litigation matter for which the Company, as part of a 2011 acquisition, assumed liability as 2 minority partner in a joint
venture for a project that had already been completed. (For further information, refer to the Brightwater Matter discussion in
Notc 7.)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded unfavorable adjustments totaling $45.6 million in income from
construction operations ($0.53 in diluted EPS) related to various Five Star Electric projects in New York, none of which were
individually matcrial. Most of these projects are complete or nearing completion. In addition, there were unfavorable adjusiments Lo
the estimated cost to complete a Building segment project, which has been completed and resulted in a decrease of $24.3 million in
income from construction operations ($0.28 in diluted EPS). Furthcrmore, the Company recorded a non-cash litigation-related charge
for the Brightwater Matter, which resulted in a $23.9 million in income from construction operations ($0.28 in diluted EPS), as
discussed in Note 7. Finally, the Company recorded favorable adjustments for a Civil segment runway reconstruction project, which
resulted in an increase of $13.7 million in income from construction operations ($0.16 in diluted EPS).

The above were the only changes in estimates considered individually material to the Company’s results of operations during the year
ended December 31, 2015.
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The following table sets forth the total assets for the reportable segments as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Building $ 798,022
Civil 1,964,674
Specialty Contractors 863,242
Corporate and other (g) 416,503
Total Assets $ 4,042,441

(a) Consists principally of cash and cash equivalents and corporate transportation equipment.
Geographic Information

Information concemning principal geographic areas as of and for the year-ended December 31, 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

Revenue

United States 5 4,694,165
Foreign and U.S. territories 226,307
Total § 4920472
Income (loss) from construction operations

United States $ 128,869
Foreign and U.S. territories 30,786
Corporate (54,242)
Total b 105,413

Income from construction operations has been allocated geographically based on the location of the job site.

Assets

United States b 3,868,449
Foreign and U.S. territories 173,992
Total Assets 3 4,042,441

Reconciliation of Segment Information to Consolidated Amounts

The following table reconciles segment results to the consolidated income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015
(in thousands).

Income from construction operations $ 105,413
Other income (expense), net 12,453
Interest expense {44.027)
Income before income taxes s 73,839

10. Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan that covers certain of its executive, professional, administrative and clerical
employees, subject to certain specified service requirements. The plan is noncontributory and benefits are based on an employee’s
years of service and “final average eamings,” as defined by the plan. The plan provides reduced benefits for early retirement and takes
into account offsets for social security benefits. The Company also has an unfunded supplemental retirement plan (*Benefit
Equalization Plan™) for certain employees whose benefits under the defined benefit pension plan were reduced because of
compensation limitations under federal tax laws. Effective June 1, 2004, all benefit accruals under the Company’s pension plan and
Benefit Equalization Plan were frozen; however, the current vested benefit was preserved. Pension disclosure as presented below
includes aggregated amounts for both of the Company's plans, except where otherwise indicated.

The Company historically has used the date of its fiscal year-end as its measurement date to determine the funded status of the plan.
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The long-term investment goals of our plan are to manage the assets in accordance with the legal requirements of all applicable laws;
produce investment returns which maximize return within reasonable and prudent levels of risks; and achieve a fully funded status
with regard to current pension liabilities. Some risk must be assumed in order to achieve the investment goals. Investments with the
ability to withstand short and intermed:ate term variability are considered and some interim fluctuations in market value and rates of
return are tolerated in order to achieve the plan’s longer-term objectives.

The plan’s assets are managed by a third-party investment manager. The investment manager is limited to pursuing the investment
strategies regarding asset mix and purchases and sales of securities within the parameters defined in the Investment Objectives &
Policy Statement and investment management agreement, Investment performance and risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing
basis through quarterly investment meetings.

A summary of net periodic benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

Interest cost ] 4,055
Expected return on plan assets (5,021)
Recognized net actuarial losses 1,869
Net periodic benefit cost b 903
Actuarial assumptions used to determine net cost:
Discount rate 3.75%
Expected retum on assets 6.50%
Rate of increase in compensation na.

The target asset allocation for the Company’s pension plan by asset category for 2016 and the actual asset allocation as of December
31, 2015 by asset category are as follows:

Percentage of Pla

Target Actual
Allocation Allecation

Asset Category 2016 2015
Cash 5% 4 %
Equity securities:

Domestic 65 61

International 25 30
Fixed income securities 5 5
Total 100 % 100 %

As of December 31, 2015, plan assets included approximately $44.1 million of investments in hedge funds which do not have readily
determinable fair values. The underlying holdings of the funds are comprised of a combination of asscts for which the estimate of fair
value is determined using information provided by fund managers.

The Company expecls to coniribule approximately $1.8 miilion to its defined bencfit pension plan in 2016, Future benefit payments
under the plans are estimated as follows (in thousands):

2016 $ 6,399
2017 6,439
2018 6,601
2019 6,687
2020 6,720
Thereafler 33,510

$ 66,156

- 26 -



TUTOR PERINI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As Of And For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the fair value of plan assets and plan benefit obligations during 2015,
and a summary of the funded status as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands).

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Balance at beginning of year 5 75,956
Actual return on plan assets (984)
Company contribution 2,900
Benefit payments {5.576)
Balance at end of year 3 72,296

Change in Benefit Obligations

Balance at beginning of year 3 110,923
Interest cost 4,055
Assumption change (gain) loss (3.838)
Actuarial loss 378
Benefit payments {5.576)
Balance at end of year b 105,942
Funded status $ (33,646)
Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of;

Current liabilities § (218)

Long-term liabilities (33,428)
Net amount recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets 3 (33,646)

Amounts oot yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in accumnulated other comprehensive loss:

Nelt actuaria! loss 3 (56.824)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (56,824)
Cumulative Company contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost 23,178
Net amount recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets $ (33,646)

The net actuarial gain arising during the period, netted against the amortization of the previously existing actuarial loss resulted in a
net other comprehensive loss of $0.7 million in 2015.

The estimated amount of the net accumulated loss that will be amontized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net period
benefit cost in 2016 is $1.7 million.

Actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligation:

Discouni rate 410 %
Rate of increase in compensation na.
Measurement date December 31

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption was 6.5% for 2015, The expected long-term rate of return on assets
assumption was developed considering forward looking capital market assumptions and historical return expectations for each asset
class assuming the Company’s target assel allocation and full availability of invesled assels.

Plan assets are measured at fair value. The following provides a description of the valuation techniques employed for each major asset
class: Corporate equities are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are purchased.
Registered investment companies arc public investment vehicles valued using the Net Asset Value (NAV) of shares held by the plan at
year-end. The NAV is a quoted price in an active market and classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Closely held funds
held by the plan, which are only available through private offerings, do not have readily determinable fair values. Estimates of fair
value of these funds are determined using the information provided by the fund managers and it is generally based on the net asset
value per shate or its equivalent. Corporate bonds are valued based on market values quoted by dealers who are market makers in
these securities, and by independent pricing services which use multiple valuation techniques that incorporate available market
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information and proprietary valuation models using market characteristics, such as benchmark yield curve, coupon rates, credit
spreads, estimated default rates and other features.

The following table sets forth the plan assets as of December 31, 2015 at fair value in accordance with the fair value hierarchy
described in Note 3 (in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Vatye

Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,654 3 5 = $ 2,654
Fixed Income 4,029 4,029
Equities 6,566 6,566
Mutual Funds 6,994 - - 6,994
Equity Partnerships 7,920 7.920
Hedge Fund Investments:

Cash 324 - 324

Long-Short Equity Fund 12,640 16,370 29,010

Event-Driven Fund 3618 6,984 10,602

Distressed Credit 935 935

Multi-Strategy Fund 1,262 1,262

Private Credit - 2,000 2,000
Total $ 203567 % 24178 % 27551 % 72,296

Fund strategies seek to capitalize on inefficiencies identified across different asset classes or markets. Hedge fund strategy types
include long-short, event-driven, multi-strategy and distressed credit. Genesally, the redemption of the Company’s hedge fund
investments js subject to certain notice-period requirements and, as such, the Company has classified these assets as Level 3 assets,

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Level 3 assets (in thousands):

Changes in Fair Valye of Level 3 Assets
Long-Short Event-Driven Distressed Multi-Strategy
Equity Fund Fupd Credit Fupd Private Credit Total
Balunce, Decernber 31, 2014 s 12,755 § 9562 % 1,320 § 1494 % b 25,131
Realized gains (50) (16} N ¢))] (82)
Unrcalized gains 581 (585) (28) (38) (70)
Purchases 5,631 — — 225 2,642 8,498
Sales (2,547) {1.977) (350) (410) (642) {5.926)
Balance, December 31, 2015 3 16,370 $ 6,984 $ 935 § 1,262 3 2,000 §% 27,551

The Company's plans have benefit obligations in excess of the fair value of the plans’ assets. The following lable provides
information relating to each of the plans’ benefit obligations compared to the fair value of its assets as of December 31, 2015 (in
thousands):

Benefit
Pension Equalization
(in thousands) Plan Pisn Total
Projected benefit obligation $ 102,495 3,447 § 105,942
Accumulsted benefit obligetion 102,495 3,447 105,942
Fair value of plan assets 72,296 72,296
Projected benefit obligation greater than fair value of plan assels 3 30,199 3447 3 33,646
Accumulated henefit obligation greater than fair value of plan assets 3 30,199 3447 3 33,646
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Section 401(k) Plans

The Company has several contributory Section 401(k) plans which cover its executive, professional, administrative and clerical
employees, subject to certain specified service requirements. The 401(k) expense provision was $4.0 million in 2015. The Company’s
contribution is based on a non-discretionary match of employees’ contributions, as defined by each plan.

Cash-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has multiple cash-based compensation plans and a share-based incentive compensation plan for key employees, which
are generally based on the Company’s achievement of a certain level of profit. For information on the Company's share-based
incentive compensation plan, see Note 8.

Multiemployer Plans

In addition to the Company's defined benefit pension and contribution plans discussed above, the Company participates in
multiemployer pension plans for its union construction employees. Contributions are based on the hours worked by employees
covered under various collective bargaining agreements. Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, a contributor 1o a
multiempioyer plan is only liable for its proportionate share of a plan’s unfunded vested liability upon termination, or withdrawal
from, a plan. The Company currently has no intention of withdrawing from any of the multiemployer pension plans in which it
participates and, therefore, has not recognized a liability for its proportionate share of any unfunded vested liabilities associated with
these plans,

The following tables summarize key information for the plans that the Company had significant involvement with during the year
ended December 31, 2015.

Expiratisa
Peaslen FIPRP Date of
Protections Status Company Coliective
EiN/Peaxien Acl Zose Pending Or Contridbudent ] Bargalning
Peastap Faagd, —latws . l;glcmeated  _ (ismillioas) ___ ___Impesed
Pension, Hospnalizstion snd Benefit Plan of the Elscuical 13-6123501/001 Greea Ne 136 No 51206
Industry - Fension Trust Account
Steamfinets ndusery Pension Fund 13-6149680'001 Cireen Mo 62 No £3072017
Excavators Union Local 731 Prasica Fund 13 18098257002 Crreen No 71 Ne £130°2018
Local 147 Construction Worken Retirement Fund 13-6328181 CGreen No 56 No &3072018
fron Workers Locals 40,361 & 417 Paovion Fund 31-6102576/00) Yellow Implemented 52 W No 302020
New York City District Councit of Carpenters Pension Plan 51-017T4276/001 Green ™ No l No £10°2006

{a) These amounts exceeded 5% of the respective total plan contributions.
(b) Pension Protection Act zone status is as of July 1, 2015.

In addition to the individually significant plans described above, the Company alse contributed approximately $40.6 million in 2015.
11. Related Party Transactions

The Company leases certain facilities from an entity owned by Ronald N. Tutor, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, at market lease rates. Under these leases the Company paid $2.7 million and recognized cxpense of $3.2 miilion for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

Raymond R. Oneglia, Vice Chairman of O&G Industries, Inc. ("O&G™), is a director of the Company, and 0&G owns 500,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock. The Company and O&G formed a joint venture to provide contracting services for a highway
construction project. Q&G provides equipment and services to the joint venture on customary trade terms. The joint venture paid
0&G $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Company has a 30% percent interest in the joint venture, which it
accounts for using the proportionate consolidation method.

Peter Arkley, Senior Managing Director, Construction Services Group, of Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. (“Alliant”), is a director of

the Company. The Company uses Alliant for various insurance related services and has paid Alliant $9.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The Company owed Alliant $7.5 million for services rendered as of December 31, 2015.
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PROOF OF STATUS AS VETERAN
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Black Construction Corporation is not a Veteran-Owned Company

Upgrade of the Northern District Wastewater Treatment Plant Page 1 of 1
GWA Project No.: $17-003-0OEA
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APPENDIX K
AFFIDAVIT RE GRATUITIES OR KICKBACKS

(Prime Bidder)

TERRITORY OF GUAM )
}s.s.
HAGATNA, GUAM )

Leonard K Kaae , I . )
{state name of affiont signing below), being first

duly sworn, deposes, and says that:

Black Construction Corporation
1. The name of the offering company or individual is P

(state name of company)
{state one of the following: the offeror, a partner of the
offeror, an officer of the offeror) making the foregoing identified bid or proposal.

Affiant is an glficer of the offeror

2. Tothe best of affiant’s knowledge, neither affiant, nor any of the offeror’s officers,
representative, agents, subcontractors, or employees have violated, are violating the
prohibition against gratuities and kickbacks set forth in 2 GAR Division 4 §11107(e}. Further,
affiant promises, on behalf of offeror, not to violate the prohibition against gratuities and
kickbacks as set forth in 2 GAR Division 4 §11107(e).

3. To the best of affiant’s knowledge, neither affiant, nor any of the offeror’s officers,
representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees have been offered, given or agreed
to give, any government of Guam employee or former government employee, any payment,
gift, kickback, gratuity or offer of employment in connection with the offeror’s proposal.

4. 1 make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror, and on
behalf of the offeror’s officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, and employees.

L ? R Trer.
Sibne‘tﬁre ofone of the following: g™ [ et
Offeror, if the offeror is an individual;

Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation,
Subscribegdla

h
d swogrfi to before me this Qq day of M ﬁ\! , 20 lq
Fi

J

4 JULIE WENDA T. GALILA
ROTRLELC
N and 1or ouam, U.5.A.
- . D E C |LI, ,q My Commission Expires: DEC. 14, 2019
My commission expires g , 20 ; P.O. Box 24667 Barrigada, Guam 96921
Section 0900 Page 23

Procurement Checklist and Appendices
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APPENDIX L
AFFIDAVIT RE ETHICAL STANDARDS

{Prime Bidder)
TERRITORY OF GUAM )

] ss.
HAGATNA, GUAM )

L dK. K , .
it s {state name of affiont signing below), being first

duly sworn, deposes, and says that:

The affiant is __an officer of the offeror (state one of the following: the offeror, a partner of the offeror,
an officer of the offeror) making the foregoing identified bid or proposal. To the best of affiant’s
knowledge, neither affiant nor any officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, or employees of
offeror have knowingly influenced any government of Guam employee to breach any of the ethical
standards set forth in 5 GCA Chapter 5, Article 11. Further, affiant promises that neither he or she, nor
any officer, representative, agent, subcontractor, or employee of offeror will knowingly influence any
government of Guam employee to breach any ethical standards set for in 5 GCA Chapter 5, Article 11.
These statements are made pursuant to 2 GAR Division 4 §11103(b).

Signature of one of the following:

Offerar, if the offeror is an individual;
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeror is a corporation.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Q II I day of

w7
My commission expires DE C ' lL[' ; EU__.I,?I.-

JULIE WENDA T. GALILA
NOTARY PUBLIC
In and for Guam, U.S.A.
My Commission Expires: DEC. 14, 2019
P.O. Box 24667 Barrigada, Guam 9692)

Section 0900 Page 24
Procurement Checklist and Appendices



APPENDIX M

AFFIDAVIT RE CONTINGENT FEES

{Prime Bidder)

TERRITORY OF GUAM }
)s.s.
HAGATNA, GUAM )

Leonard K Kaae
(state name of affiont signing below), being first duly

sworn, deposes, and says that:

1. The name of the offering company or individual is B'ack Construction Corporation

(state name of company)

2. As a part of the offering company's bid or proposal, to the best of my knowledge, the
offering company has not retained any person or agency on a percentage, commission, or
other contingent arrangement to secure this contract. This statement is made pursuant to 2
GAR Division 4 11108(f).

3. As a part of the offering company’s bid or proposal, to the best of my knowledge, the
offering company has not retained a person to solicit or secure a contract with the
government of Guam upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, except far retention of bona fide employees or bon fide
established commercial selling agencies for the purpose of securing business. This
statement is made pursuant to 2 GAR division 4 11108(h).

4. | make these statements on behalf of myself as a representative of the offeror, and on

O;zhalf of the offeror’s officers, representatives, agents, subcontractors, and employees.

SEnature of one of the following:

Offeror, if the offeror is an individual;
Partner, if the offeror is a partnership;
Officer, if the offeroris a corporation.

Subscribed and swol'n/lo before me thESZ | day of W\r! , 20 I l .

JULIE WENDA T. GALILA

: Hwt! NOTARY PUBLIC
UBLIC In and for Guam, U.S.A.
My Commission Expires: DEC. 14, 2019

l l[. lﬂ P.0. Box 24667 Barrigada, Guam 96921
My commission expires 7 20 :
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SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, John D. Barrett, centify that 1 am the Assistant Secretary and an officer of Black Construction
Corporation, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Guam (the “Corporation™), and
that as such I have access to and custody of the corporate records and minute books of the Corporation; and

I further certify:

That the following represents a complete and current list of officers of the Corporation:

Ronald N. Tuter President

Leonard K. Kaae Senior Vice President and General Manager

Mark J. Mamczarz Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary

John McSweeney Vice President

John D. Barrett Vice President, Assistant Treasurer & Assislant Secretary

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand by order of the Board of Directors thereof
this 12® day of February, 2019.

1, Mark J. Mamczarz, certify that [ am the Secretary and officer of Black Construction
Corporation, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of Guam (the "Corporation”) ,
and hereby certify this is a true and correct copy.

Corporate Seal






